
 

 

 
Date: 19th December 2023 
 

To,  

BSE Limited,  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy tower, Dalal Street, Fort,  

Mumbai – 400 001 Scrip Code - 523890  

ISIN –INE891A01014 

To,  

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., 

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (E) Mumbai – 400 051  

ISIN - INE891A01014 

 

Sub: Compliance of Regulations 30 and 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 read with Part A of Schedule III of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulation, 2015.  

 

Pursuant to Regulations 30 and 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) read with Part A of Schedule III of SEBI Listing Regulations, please find enclosed herewith 

32nd Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 and the Notice convening 32nd Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) to be held on shorter notice on Thursday, 21st December 2023 at 11:00 A.M. (IST) at the Registered 

Office of the Company situated at Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas One, Kothurd, Pune 411038. 

 

Further, the Annual Report along with the Notice convening 32nd AGM of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-

23 is being dispatched / sent to the Members through email only on 19th December 2023 whose email were registered 

with the Company / Depositories. 

 

Further, please note the following: 

 

S.NO.  Particulars Date 

1. Cut-off Date / Record Date for Determining the shareholders of 

32nd Annual General Meeting 

19th December 2023 

2. Book Closure Not Applicable 

 

Request you to take the above on your record.  
 

Thanking you,  

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 

 

 

Sumit Ramesh Diwane  

Director 

DIN: 10076062 

 
 



 

 

NOTICE 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Second (32nd) Annual General Meeting (“the AGM / the meeting”) of the members 

of D S Kulkarni Developers Limited (“the Company”) to be held on shorter notice on Thursday, 21st December 2023 at 

11:00 A.M. (IST) at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas One, Kothurd, 

Pune 411038. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) was initiated, on a petition filed by Bank of Maharashtra against 

D S Kulkarni Developers Limited (“Corporate Debtor/Company”), which was admitted vide an order dated September 

26, 2019 (“Insolvency Commencement Date”) of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Mumbai, under 

the provisions Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed 

thereunder (“the Code”).  

 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. Manoj 

Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the Interim 

Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. The appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal was 

confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). As 

per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP the management of affairs and powers of the 

Board of Directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the Company.  

 

The Company has received 3 Resolution Plans which were put to vote before the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). The 

CoC has approved the resolution plan submitted by Consortium of Ashdan Properties Private Limited, Classic Promoters 

& Builders Private Limited and Atul Builders, with a requisite majority of the voting share as per the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC).  

 

The resolution plan submitted by Ashdan Properties Private Limited, Classic Promoters & Builders Private Limited and 

Atul Builders was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide Order No. CP (IB) 

NO. 1633/MB/C-I/2019 dated June 23, 2023 (Certified copy received on 30th June, 2023). 

 

The Thirty Second (32nd) Annual General Meeting (“the AGM / the meeting”) of the Members is being called and 

convened by the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:  

 

1.  To consider and adopt the audited Standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 

ended March 31, 2023, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.  

 

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 

 

 

 

Sumit Ramesh Diwane  

Director 

DIN: 10076062 

 

Registered Office: Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor,  

Swojas One, Kothurd, Pune 411038 

CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Tel:  020 6716 6716 

Website: www.dskcirp.com  

Email: cs.dskdl@ashdanproperties.in  

 

Date: 19th December 2023 

Place: Pune 
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Notes: 

 

1. The Notice of the 32nd AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 is available on the 

website of the Company i.e. www.dskcirp.com.  

 

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a 

poll instead of herself / himself and a proxy need not be a Member of the Company. The instrument appoints 

the proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas One, Kothurd, Pune 

411038 duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

 

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 

than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy to be 

appointed by a Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying 

voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. The holder of proxy 

shall prove her / his identity at the time of attending the Meeting. 

 

4. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to 

send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and 

vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 

5. Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and the route map of the venue of the Meeting are annexed hereto. 

 

6. Members / Proxy holders are requested to produce at the entrance, the attached admission slip for admission 

to the Meeting venue. Duplicate admission slips will not be provided at the venue. 

 

7. Shareholders are requested to intimate changes in their address, if any, quoting the folio number / DP-ID and 

Client ID, to the Company. 

 

8. All documents referred to in the Notice and in the accompanying explanatory statement are open for inspection 

in electronic mode at Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas One, Kothurd, Pune 411038 communication office of the 

Company during office hours on all working days, except holidays, between 10.00 A.M. and 6.00 P.M. up to 

the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

 

9. The statutory registers viz. register of directors and key managerial personnel and their shareholding and 

register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested, shall remain available for online 

inspection during the meeting. 

 

10. Save and except as mentioned elsewhere in this Notice, none of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their relatives have any conflict of interest, financially or otherwise, in any of the resolutions 

as set out in the Notice. 

http://www.dskcirp.com/


 

 

 

11. The Members, whose names appear in the register of Members/ list of beneficial owners as on 19th December 

2023 i.e. the cut-off date, shall be entitled to vote on the resolutions set forth in this Notice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

E-mail Registration-Cum-Consent Form 

 

To,  

The Board of Directors  

D S Kulkarni Developers Limited  

Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas One,  

Kothurd, Pune 411038. 

 

I/We the members of the Company do hereby request you to kindly register/update my e-mail address with the 
Company. I/We, do hereby agree and authorize the Company to send me/ us all the communications in electronic 
mode at the e-mail address mentioned below. Please register the below mentioned e-mail address / mobile number 
for sending communication through e-mail/mobile. 
 
Folio No:……………………. DP-ID:………………… Client ID:……………………………….  
 
Name of the Registered Holder (1st):………………………………………………………………  
 
Name of the joint holder(s) (2nd ): ……………………………(3rd):………………………………  
 
Registered Address: ………………………………………………………………………………… 
  
………………………………………………………….. PIN: ..………………..…………….……… 
  
Mobile Nos. (to be registered):…………………………….……..  
 
Email id (to be registered):…………………………….…………. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Signature of the Shareholder(s)* 

*Signature of all the shareholders is required in case of joint holding. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

Annual General Meeting – (Day), (Date) 

*DP Id. / Client Id.  Name and Address of the registered 

Shareholder: 

 

 

 

 

 

Regd. Folio No.  

No. of Share(s) held  

 

I / We hereby certify that I am / we are a Member / proxy for the Member of the Company. 

I / We hereby record my / our presence for the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Members of D S Kulkarni 

Developers Limited held on shorter notice on Thursday, 21st December 2023 at Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas One, 

Kothrud, Pune 411038 at 11:00 A.M. 

 

____________________________________  __________________________ 

Name of the Member / Proxy (In Block Letters)  Signature of the Member / Proxy 

 

Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting venue. 

  



 

 

PROXY FORM 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Form No. MGT – 11 

D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Regd. Office: Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas One, Kothurd, Pune 411038 

Tel:  020 6716 6716 

Email: cs.dskdl@ashdanproperties.in ; Website: www.dskcirp.com   

************************************************************************************** 

 

Name of the Member(s)    Registered Address 

 

E-mail ID       Folio No. 

I / We, being the Member(s) of …….........……. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint: 

 

1. Name: ………………………….. 

 

Address:……………………………

.. 

 

E-mail 

ID…………………………….. 

 

Signature:…………………………..

, or failing him / her 

 

2. Name: ………………………….. 

 

Address:……………………………

.. 

 

E-mail 

ID…………………………….. 

 

Signature:…………………………..

, or failing him / her 

 

3. Name: ………………………….. 

 

Address:……………………………

.. 

 

E-mail 

ID…………………………….. 

 

Signature:…………………………..

, or failing him / her 

 

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting 

of the Company, to be held on shorter notice on Thursday, 21st December, 2023 at Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas 

mailto:cs.dskdl@ashdanproperties.in
http://www.dskcirp.com/


 

 

One, Kothrud, Pune 411038 at 11:00 A. M. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution(s) as indicated 

below: 

Resolution No. & Matter of Resolution For Against 

1. To consider and adopt the standalone audited financial statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2023 along with Reports of Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon. 

  

 

 

Signed this…….. day of……………..… 2023 

 

Signature of Member……………………….      

 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) …………………… 

 

Notes:  

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of 

the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2. Those Members who have multiple folios with different joint holders may use copies of this Attendance slip/Proxy. 

  



 

 

ASSENT/ DISSENT FORM FOR VOTING ON AGM RESOLUTIONS/ MATTERS FOR  

32ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Regd. Office: Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas One, Kothurd, Pune 411038 

Tel:  020 6716 6716 

Email: cs.dskdl@ashdanproperties.in ; Website: www.dskcirp.com  

************************************************************************************** 

 

1. Name(s) & Registered Address :  

of the sole / first named Member  

 

2. Name(s) of the Joint-Holder(s) :  

If any  

 

3. Registered Folio No. /  

DP ID No & Client ID No. :  

[Applicable to Members holding shares in dematerialized form]  

 

4. Number of Shares(s) held : 

 

5. I /We, hereby exercise my /our vote in respect of Ordinary resolution/ matter numerated below by 

recording my / our assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following manner : 

Resolution No. & Matter of Resolution For Against 

1. To consider and adopt the standalone audited financial statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2023 along with Reports of Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon. 

  

 

Place: 

Date:         _______________________________ 

Signature of Member or Authorised Representative 

    

 

 

 

mailto:cs.dskdl@ashdanproperties.in
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Route Map 

AGM Venue: Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swajas One, Kothrud, Pune 411038 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

To,  

The Members 

D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 

 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution 

Process (“CIRP”) of the Company and Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-

2018/11222 was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Corporate Debtor. The appointment 

of Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal was confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Corporate Debtor 

by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the 

rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”), from the date of appointment of the IRP the management of 

affairs and powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the 

Corporate Debtor. 

 

The resolution plan submitted by M/s Ashdan Properties Private Limited, M/s Classic Promoters & Builders Private 

Limited and M/s Atul Builders was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide 

Order No. CP (IB) NO. 1633/MB/C-I/2019 dated June 23, 2023 (Certified copy received on 30th June, 2023). 

 

Thereafter, a Steering Committee was constituted. The constituted committee is tabulated below: 
 

Particulars Name 

Representative of Secured Financial 
Creditors 

A. State Bank of India- Shri Rasmi Ranjan Pati 
B. ICICI Home Finance Company Limited - Mr. 
Abhishek Yande and/or Mr. Sumit Choudhary 

Representative of the Successful 
Resolution Applicant (SRA) 

Mr. Ranjit Raghunathan 
Mr. Prateek Ghatiya 

Insolvency Professional Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company hereby present the Thirty Second Annual Report on business and operations of 

the Company along with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

1. Financial Results: 

 

Performance of the Company, on standalone basis, for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is as summarized 

below: 

 

 

 



 

 

 

          (Amount in “Lakhs”) 

Particulars Year Ended 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Income from Operations - - 

Other Income - 4.59 

Total Income - 4.59 

Total Expenses 306.61 271.05 

Profit / (loss) before Tax (306.61) (266.46) 

Exceptional items (4,560.77) - 

Tax Expense - - 

Net Profit / (loss) after tax (4,867.38) (266.46) 

Earnings per equity share (Basic and Diluted) (18.87) (1.03) 

 

The revenue from operations for the year ended 31st March, 2023 is Nil as there were no operations in the Company.   

 

2. Indian Accounting Standards: 

 

The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been 

prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS), the relevant provisions of sections 129 and 133 

of Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”), Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations”), which have been reviewed by 

the Statutory Auditors. 

 

3. State of Company’s Affairs:  

 

Search and seizure operations were conducted by the Enforcement Directorate (ED). During this search and seizure 

and during the process of investigation, Economic Offence Wing of Police Dept. has taken in its custody physical and 

electronically maintained records of the Company. 

 

Investigation is going on against the Company under various laws including the Maharashtra Protection of interest of 

Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) – Pune, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, Prevention of 

Money Laundering Act, 2002. The matter is sub-judice and the impact of the outcome, if any, is uncertain at present. 

 

 



 

 

 

During the year there were no business operations in the Company as the Company was under Corporate Insolvency 

Resolution Process. 

 

The Company has received 3 Resolution Plans which were put to vote before the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). The 

Committee of Creditors (CoC) has approved the resolution plan submitted by Consortium of Ashdan Properties Private 

Limited, Classic Promoters & Builders Private Limited and Atul Builders, with a requisite majority of the voting share as 

per the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). The resolution plan submitted by Ashdan Properties Private 

Limited, Classic Promoters & Builders Private Limited and Atul Builders was approved by the Hon’ble National 

Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide Order No. CP (IB) NO. 1633/MB/C-I/2019 dated June 23, 2023 

(Certified copy received on 30th June, 2023). 

 

4. Change in the nature of business: 

 

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review. 

 

5. Dividend: 

 

Since the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process and due losses, no dividend on the equity shares 

of the Company has been recommended. 

 

6. Transfer to reserves: 

 

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserves. 

 

7. Capital Structure  

 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crores) divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five 

Crores) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up equity share capital of the Company 

is Rs. 25,80,10,080/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores Eighty Lakhs Ten Thousand and Eighty only) divided into 

2,58,01,008 (Two Crore Fifty Eight Lakh One Thousand and Eight) equity shares of Rs. 10/- 

 

i) the Company has not issued/allotted Equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;  

ii) the Company has not issued/allotted Equity shares (Including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company 

under any scheme; 

iii) the Company has not bought back any of its securities; 

iv) the Company has not issued any Bonus Shares. 

v) during the year under review, the Company has not issued/ allotted any kind of Equity Shares. 

 



 

 

The entire Paid-up Equity Share capital of the Company of Rs. 25,80,10,080/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores Eighty 

Lakhs Ten Thousand and Eighty only) divided into 2,58,01,008 (Two Crore Fifty Eight Lakh One Thousand and Eight) 

equity shares of Rs. 10/- each was Reduced/ cancelled /extinguished with effect from 27th September 2023 pursuant 

to implementation of Resolution Plan as approved by Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench. 

 

Pursuant to the Order of the Hon’ble NCLT and approved resolution plan, 1,00,00,000/- (One Crore Only) Equity 

Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten each) aggregating to Rs. 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores Only) 

were issued and allotted on 27th September 2023. 

 

8. Public Deposits: 

 

During the year under Report the Company did not accept any fresh deposits from the public and shareholders covered 

under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

9. Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company, occurred after the 

balance sheet date and as at the date of signing this report 

 

The resolution plan submitted by Ashdan Properties Private Limited, Classic Promoters & Builders Private Limited and 

Atul Builders was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide Order No. CP (IB) 

NO. 1633/MB/C-I/2019 dated June 23, 2023 (Certified Copy received on 30th June, , 2023). 

 

The Steering Committee was constituted for the implementation of the Resolution Plan duly approved by the Hon’ble 

NCLT, Mumbai Bench and the below mentioned material changes occurred after the balance sheet date: 

 

a. Mr. Bhushan Vilaskumar Palresha (DIN: 01258918) was appointed as a Managing Director of the Company 

with effect from 24th August, 2023 for a period of five (5) years. Mr. Sumit Ramesh Diwane (DIN: 10076052) 

and Mr. Umesh Shankarlalji Kankaria (DIN: 08039396) were appointed as an Additional Non-executive 

Directors of the Company with effect from 24th August, 2023.  

 

b. Further the members of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 21st 

November 2023 confirmed the appointment Mr. Bhushan Vilaskumar Palresha (DIN: 01258918) as 

Managing Director of the Company with effect from 24th August, 2023 for a period of five (5) years and 

Mr. Sumit Ramesh Diwane (DIN: 10076052) and Mr. Umesh Shankarlalji Kankaria (DIN: 08039396) as Non-

executive Directors of the Company with effect from 24th August, 2023. 

 

c. Mr. Deepak Sakharam Kulkarni (DIN: 00394027), Mr. Vijaykumar Nathu Jagtap (DIN: 02555240) and Mr. 

Sahindra Jagannath Bhawale (DIN: 07352920) vacated from the position of Managing Director and 

Directors respectively of the Company with effect from 21st September 2023 and Ms. Hemanti Deepak 

Kulkarni (PAN: AFOPP4761N) and Mr. Rohit Subhash Purandare (PAN: AUJPP6312P) vacated from the 



 

 

position of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer respectively of the 

Company with effect from 21st September 2023. 

 

d. The entire paid-up equity share capital of the Company of Rs. 25,80,10,080/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores 

Eighty Lakhs Ten Thousand and Eighty only) divided into 2,58,01,008 (Two Crore Fifty Eight Lakh One 

Thousand and Eight) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each was Reduced/ cancelled /extinguished with effect from 

27th September 2023 pursuant to implementation of Resolution Plan as approved by Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai 

Bench. 

 

e. The entire Listed Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company as mentioned below for which Catalyst 

Trusteeship Limited, acting as a Debenture Trustee were redeemed on 21st September 2023.  

 

S. No ISIN 
Number of 

NCD’s 
Particulars 

1. INE891A07011 1,03,444 Listed, Secured, Redeemable Option I NCD’s 

2. INE891A07037 46,851 Listed, Secured, Redeemable Option II NCD’s 

3. INE891A07045 849 Listed, Secured, Redeemable Option III NCD’s 

4. INE891A07029 68,852 Listed, Secured, Redeemable Option IV NCD’s 

 

f. Pursuant to the Order of the NCLT and approved resolution plan, 1,00,00,000/- (One Crore Only) Equity 

Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten each) aggregating to Rs. 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores 

Only) were issued and allotted on 27th September 2023 to Resolution Applicant and its affiliates in following 

manner : 

(a) Allotment of 95,00,000 (Ninety-Five Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to            

Rs. 9,50,00,000/- (Nine Crores Fifty Lakhs) to the resolution applicant in its affiliates comprising 

95% (Ninety-Five) of total equity share capital of the Company in the following manner: 

 

The details of the promoters as per follows: 

 

S.No. Name of Promoters No. of Equity Shares  

1 Ashdan Properties Private Limited 94,99,994 

2 Classic Promoters and Builders Private Limited 1 

3 Atul Builders 1 

4 AC Realty LLP 1 



 

 

5 Astaria Land Developers LLP 1 

6 Hinjewadi Land Developers LLP 1 

7 Eliture Land Developers LLP 1 

 

(b) Allotment of 5,00,000 (Five Lacs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 50,00,000/- 

(Rupees Fifty Lacs only) comprising 5% to DSK Shareholders Trust, a Trust established for the purpose 

of holding the said Equity Shares of the Company. 

g. Pursuant to the Order of the NCLT and approved resolution plan, the company had allotted 48,61,209 

Series-I, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 1,000/- (Rupees One 

Thousand only) each, aggregating to Rs. 4,86,12,09,000 (Rupees Four Hundred Eighty Six Crores Twelve 

Lakhs and Nine Thousand only) and 2,35,16,32 Series-II, Secured, redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures 

of face value of Rs. 1,000/- (Rupees One Thousand only) each, aggregating to Rs.  2,35,16,32,000 (Rupees 

Two Hundred Thirty-Five Crores Sixteen Lakh and Thirty Two Thousand only) on 21st September 2023 and 

989 Series-II, Secured, redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 1,000/- (Rupees One 

Thousand only) each, aggregating to 9,89,000/- (Nine Lakh and Eighty Nine Thousand Only) on 20th 

October 2023. 

 

h. Pursuant to the approved resolution plan, the Company had made the payment of IRP Cost, including the 

CIRP Cost, payment to Operational Creditors, Employees, Unsecured Financial Creditors, Fixed Deposit 

holders within the timeline. 

 

10. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments: 

 

Details of loans, guarantees or investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are given in notes 

to the standalone financial statements forming part of the Annual Report. 

 

Further as per Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide Order No. CP (IB) NO. 1633/MB/C-

I/2019 dated June 23, 2023 (Certified copy received on 30th June, 2023), all the guarantees issued by the Company, 

whether invoked or uninvoked or crystallised or not be considered shall stand extinguished. 

 

11. Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties: 

 

During the year under review, there are no related party transaction under provisions of Section 188 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

There are no materially significant related party transactions entered into by the Company with Promoters, Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons, etc., which may have potential conflict with the interest of the 



 

 

Company at large or which warrants the approval of the shareholders. The details of the transactions with Related 

Party, if any are provided in the Company’s financial statements in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 

(Ind AS). 

 

Since, there are no material related party transactions, there is no requirement of providing details of related party 

transactions in Form AOC-2 as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 

 

12. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies: 

 

As per the details available, the Company is having Three subsidiaries i.e. DSK Developers Corporation, DSK Woods 

LLC, & DSK Infra Pvt Ltd (“said Subsidiaries”), of which one domestic subsidiary have complied with annual filling with 

Registrar of Companies upto 31st March 2016. Further, the RP does not have access to the 

information(s)/detail(s)/record(s)/document(s) of the said Subsidiaries. Hence, the Company is unable to provide a 

report on the performance and the financial position of the subsidiaries associates and joint venture in Form AOC-1 

as required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

Further, the Resolution Plan of DSK Southern Project Private Limited, having CIN: U45200PN2008PTC132140 (herein 

after referred as “DSKPPL”), subsidiary of the Company which was under Corporate Insolvency and Resolution Process 

(“CIRP”), was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, on February 02, 2023. 

Accordingly, the equity shares held by the Company of DSKPPL are extinguished as per the approved resolution plan 

and DSKPPL ceased to be the subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 28th April, 2023. 

 

As per the details available, the Company does not have any ‘Associate Company and/or Joint ventures’ within the 

meaning of Section 2(6) of the Act. 

 

13. Listing of Securities: 

 

The Shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).  

 

The shares of the Company were placed in Z category by BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

 

14. Directors’ Responsibility Statements: 

 

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) had admitted the petition for initiating the Corporate Insolvency 

Resolution (CIRP) Process under the provisions of the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC). Further, pursuant to the 

aforesaid NCLT order and pursuant to Section 17 of the IBC the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended 

and such powers were vested with the Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal (“Resolution Professional”). 

 

In light of the aforesaid and pursuant to the requirements under sub section (3)(c) and (5) of Section 134 of the 

Companies Act 2013 with respect to Directors' Responsibility Statement. it is hereby confirmed by the Board that: 



 

 

 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 

b) accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 

and of the loss of the company for that period; 

 

c) proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 

of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities; 

 

d) the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 

e) Internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down and ensured that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 

 

f) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

15. Vigil Mechanism: 

 

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism in form of whistle blower policy. At present there are no employees on 

the payroll of the Company and also Company’s business operations are also closed. 

 

16. Risk management: 

 

Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) is not applicable to your Company as the 

Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process and the powers of the Board has been suspended.  

 

17. Directors & Key Managerial Personnel’s (KMP’s): 

 

During the year, there were no changes in the composition of Board of Directors of the company.  

 
As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP/RP the management of affairs and powers 

of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the Corporate Debtor. 

Further, on initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions Section 7 of the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”), the powers of Board of 

Directors of the Company are suspended and same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional, and thereafter 

any change in Management of the Company is restricted by the Code. 



 

 

 

Further, as per Regulation 15(2A) of SEBI LODR, the provisions of regulation 17 shall not be applicable during the 

insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing corporate insolvency resolution 

process under the Insolvency Code and that the role and responsibilities of the board of directors as specified under 

regulation 17 shall be fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional in accordance with 

sections 17 and 23 of the Insolvency Code. 

 

As per the approved Resolution Plan, a Steering Committee was constituted for the implementation of the Resolution 

Plan. The constituted committee is tabulated below: 

 

Particulars Name 

Representative of Secured Financial 

Creditors 

A. State Bank of India- Shri Rasmi Ranjan Pati 

B. ICICI Home Finance Company Limited - Mr. Abhishek Yande 
and/or Mr. Sumit Choudhary 

Representative of the Successful 

Resolution Applicant (SRA) 

Mr. Ranjit Raghunathan 

Mr. Prateek Ghatiya 

Insolvency Professional Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 

 

The Steering Committee had appointed Mr. Bhushan Vilaskumar Palresha (DIN: 01258918) as a Managing Director 

of the Company with effect from 24th August, 2023 for a period of five (5) years and appointed Mr. Sumit Ramesh 

Diwane (DIN: 10076052) and Mr. Umesh Shankarlalji Kankaria (DIN: 08039396) as an Additional Non-executive 

Directors of the Company with effect from 24th August, 2023.  

 

Further the members of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 21st November 

2023 confirmed the appointment Mr. Bhushan Vilaskumar Palresha (DIN: 01258918) as Managing Director of the 

Company with effect from 24th August, 2023 for a period of five (5) years and Mr. Sumit Ramesh Diwane (DIN: 

10076052) and Mr. Umesh Shankarlalji Kankaria (DIN: 08039396) as Non-executive Directors of the Company with 

effect from 24th August, 2023. 

 

Mr. Deepak Sakharam Kulkarni (DIN: 00394027), Mr. Vijaykumar Nathu Jagtap (DIN: 02555240) and Mr. Sahindra 

Jagannath Bhawale (DIN: 07352920) vacated from the position of Managing Director and Directors respectively of 

the Company with effect from 21st September 2023 and Ms. Hemanti Deepak Kulkarni (PAN: AFOPP4761N) and Mr. 

Rohit Subhash Purandare (PAN: AUJPP6312P) vacated from the position of Chief Financial Officer and Company 

Secretary cum Compliance Officer respectively of the Company with effect from 21st September 2023. 

 



 

 

18. Declaration of Independent Directors: 

 

The Company was under CIRP and accordingly power of the Board has been suspended. Therefore, the declaration 

from Independent Directors under section 149(7) of Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company. 

 

19. Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors: 

 

The Company was under CIRP and accordingly power of the Board has been suspended. Accordingly, no 

Familiarisation Programme was imparted during the year under review. 

 

20. Board Evaluation: 

 

The provisions of section 134(3)(p) of the Act read with rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for having 

formal self-annual evaluation by the Board of Directors is applicable to the Company. However, the Company was 

under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and the entire Board is suspended, hence no formal evaluation 

of the Board has taken place. 

 

21. Committees of Board: 

 

After the commencement of CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors including Committees of the Company stands 

suspended. 

 

Further, as per Regulation 15(2B) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), regulation 2015 (“SEBI 

Listing Regulations”), the roles and responsibilities of the Committees specified in regulations 18, 19, 20 and 21 of the 

SEBI Listing regulations after the Commencement of CIRP (CIRP) are fulfilled by the RP and powers of the Board of 

Directors and its committees are suspended. Thus, no meetings of the Committees were held after the Commencement 

of CIRP. 

 

22. Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial control with reference to the financial statements: 

 

Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are stated in 

Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this Report. 

 

23. Number of Board Meetings and Committee meetings: 

 

In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers 

of the Board of Directors stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The 

management of the affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of 

Board of Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 

 



 

 

24. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

At present, there are no employees on payroll of the Company and further the Company is under Corporate Insolvency 

Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC). 

 

In view of the above, the particulars of ratio of remuneration of each director to median remuneration of the employees 

of the Company for the financial year under report, percentage increase in remuneration to each Director and Key 

Managerial Personnel (“KMP”), etc. more particularly described under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable. 

 

25. Auditors: 

 

a) Statutory Auditor: 

 

At the 31st Annual General Meeting (AGM) M/s P P S C O & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 

107356W), were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five (5) years to hold office 

up to the conclusion of 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027. 

 

The Auditors’ Report and notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and 

therefore do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Auditors’ Report is 

enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report.  

 

b) Cost Auditor: 

 

The Company is not required to appoint Cost auditor for the Financial Year 2022-2023 in terms of provisions of 

section 148 of the Act read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.  

 

c) Secretarial Auditor & Secretarial Compliance Report: 

 

The Company has appointed M/s. Mihen Halani and Associates as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company under 

section 204 of the Act read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014. The observations referred by the Secretarial Auditors are self-explanatory in nature and therefore do 

not call for any comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. Report of the Secretarial Auditor in form 

MR-3 is attached to this Annual Report as ‘Annexure-1’. 

 

Pursuant to circular No. CIR/ CFD/ CMD1/ 27/ 2019 dated February 08, 2019, issued by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (SEBI), the Company has obtained Annual Secretarial Compliance Report from a Practicing Company 

Secretary (PCS) on compliance of all applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued there under and the 

copy of the same has been submitted with the Stock Exchanges within the prescribed due date. 

 



 

 

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 20th October 2023 appointed M/s. Gajab Maheshwari and Associates, 

Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the F.Y. 2023-24.  

 

26. Annual Return: 

 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 

Annual Return for F.Y. 2021-22 is available on Company’s website at www.dskcirp.com  

 

Further, Annual Return of the Company for the F.Y. 2022-23 will be filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs within 

the prescribed timeline and a copy of the same shall be uploaded on the website of the Company at www.dskcirp.com   

 

27. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

 

The Company has no information to furnish with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign 

Exchange Earnings and Outgo, as are needed to be furnished under section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with rule 8 of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

28. Corporate Governance: 

 

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate 

Governance requirements set out by SEBI. The Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms an Integral part this Annual Report. Requisite 

Certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is 

attached to this Annual Report as ‘Annexure-2’. 

 

A certificate from a practicing Company Secretary on compliance(s) with the corporate governance norms forms part 

of the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

29. Management Discussion and Analysis Report: 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report as stipulated under the SEBI Listing Regulations is presented in a separate 

section forming part of this Annual Report.  

 

30. Significant / Material orders passed by the regulatory etc.: 

 

Except as disclosed in this report and commencement of CIRP under the Code, during the year under review, no  

material orders were passed by Regulators/ Courts / Tribunals during the period impacting the going concern status 

and Company’s operations in future.  

 

http://www.dskcirp.com/
http://www.dskcirp.com/


 

 

However, the resolution plan submitted by Ashdan Properties Private Limited, Classic Promoters & Builders Private 

Limited and Atul Builders was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide Order 

No. CP (IB) NO. 1633/MB/C-I/2019 dated June 23, 2023 (Certified Copy received on June 30, 2023). 

 

31. Disclosure under the Sexual Harrassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013 

 

Your Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and there are no employees in the Company. 

However, the Company has in place Policy on Prevention of sexual harassment in line with the requirements of ‘The 

Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013’. The Policy provides 

for protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and redressal of such complaints.  

 

32. Corporate Social Responsibility: 

 

The provisions of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 

are not applicable to the Company. 

 

33. Secretarial Standards: 

 

Since the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and the powers of the Board of Directors 

are suspended. The RP generally complies with Secretarial Standard issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India wherever applicable.  

 

34. Insolvency And Bankruptcy Code, 2016 : 

 

There are no application made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) against the Company 

during the year. 

 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. Manoj 

Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the Interim 

Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. 

 

The resolution plan submitted by Ashdan Properties Private Limited, Classic Promoters & Builders Private Limited and 

Atul Builders was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide Order No. CP (IB) 

NO. 1633/MB/C-I/2019 dated June 23, 2023 (Certified Copy received on June 30, 2023). 

 

 

35. Voluntary revision of Financial Statements or Board’s Report: 

 

The Company has not revised its Financial Statements or its Board’s Report during the year under review. 



 

 

 

36. No One Time Settlement of Loans 

 

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from banks and financial institutions. 

 

37. Acknowledgement:  

 

Your directors wish to convey their appreciation to the shareholders, Banks, dealers, investors, other business associates 

and all other stakeholders for their continuous trust and support. 

 

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 

 

 

 

Bhushan Vilaskumar Palresha    Sumit Ramesh Diwane 

Managing Director     Director 

DIN: 01258918      DIN: 10076052 

 

Date: 19th December 2023 

Place: Pune 

 

 

  



 

 

 

Annexure -1 

FORM MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 

Companies Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD 

(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by D S Kulkarni Developers Limited (“hereinafter called the company”). Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the D S Kulkarni Developers Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 

and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the 

company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) and the rules made there under; 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under; 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the Rules made there under; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 2018 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; Not Applicable during the 

period under review. 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(“SEBI Act”); The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011 - Not Applicable during the period under review; 

 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 



 

 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations); 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018 - Not Applicable during the period under review; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable during the period under review; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 - 

Not Applicable during the period under review; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 - Not 

Applicable during the period under review, and 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not Applicable 

during the period under review. 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 

2021. 

 

vi. We have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed 

by the Company for compliances under other various applicable Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations to the Company. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of following: 

(i) the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”); 

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s). 

 

During the period under review, we report that: 

1. The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. On 

a petition filed by Bank of Maharashtra against the Company, which was admitted vide an Order dated 

September 26, 2019 of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Mumbai, under the provisions of 

the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”). 

 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. 

Manoj Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the Interim 

Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. Further, Mr. Manoj Agarwal was appointed as the Resolution 

Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Code, from 

the date of appointment of the IRP the management of affairs and powers of the board of directors of the 

Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the Company.  

 



 

 

2. No documents, data or other requisite documents/information’s/details/records were available for our verification 

and accordingly we cannot comment on the compliance status of the company with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

3. Powers of the Board is suspended and the Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted and there is 

no proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.  

 

4. As no details are received from the Company, we are unable to verify whether adequate notice is given to all 

directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in 

advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

5. We are unable to report that Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured 

and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 

6. Further, we are unable to report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

 

7. Further, as stated above, since we have not received any documents/ details/ informations/records from the 

Company, we cannot comment on the compliance status of the Company with all the applicable laws including 

Companies Act, 2013, statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 

 

8. We also report following are the observation during audit period: 

 

It may be noted that as per the provisions of IBC Code and provisions of Regulation 15 (2A) and (2B) of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, the provisions specified in regulation 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 shall not 

be applicable during the CIRP. The conditions as specified in said regulations of the SEBI (LODR) shall not be useful 

during the CIRP and the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Committees, specified in the 

respective regulations, shall be fulfilled by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, as the case 

may be. 

 

i. The Company has not appointed Internal Auditor for the Financial Year 2022-2023 pursuant to the provision of 

section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

ii. During the year, there was no Company Secretary in the Company. It is informed by the Company that the 

Company is in due process of appointment of Company Secretary. 

 

iii. The promoters and promoter group of the Company have not submitted disclosures of encumbered shareholding 

Regulation 31 (4) of SEBI SAST Regulations, 2011. 



 

 

 

iv. No documents, data or other requisite documents / information’s / details / records were available for our 

verification and accordingly we cannot comment on the compliance status of the Company with the provisions of 

the SEBI Listing Regulations and The SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

 

Search and seizure operations were conducted by the Enforcement Directorate (ED). During this search and seizure 

and during the process of investigation, Economic Offence Wing of Police Dept. has taken in its custody physical and 

electronically maintained records of the Company. 

 

Investigation is going on against the company under various laws including the Maharashtra Protection of interest of 

Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) –Pune, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, Prevention of 

Money Laundering Act, 2002. The matter is sub-judice and the impact of the outcome, if any, is uncertainable at 

present. 

We further report that during the audit period, the RP has co-operated with us and have produced before us all the 

available forms information, clarifications, returns and other documents as required for the purpose of our audit. 

 

 

 For MIHEN HALANI & ASSOCIATES 

 Practicing Company Secretary 

Date: 29.05.2023  

Place: Mumbai   

UDIN: F009926E000412196 Sd/- 

 Mihen Halani 

(Proprietor) 

CP No: 12015 

FCS No:9926 

 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” herewith and forms as 

integral part of this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE A 

 

To, 

D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD 

CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is 

to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 

correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide 

a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

Company. 

 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 For MIHEN HALANI & ASSOCIATES 

 Practicing Company Secretary 

Date: 29.05.2023  

Place: Mumbai   

UDIN: F009926E000412196 Sd/- 

 Mihen Halani 

(Proprietor) 

CP No: 12015 

FCS No:9926 

 



 

 

 

ANNEXURE 2 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

COMPANY’S GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY: 

 

The Corporate Governance policy of the Company contemplates compliance with statutes, transparency in 

dealings, simplification and standardization of processes and bonding with customers, which will help the Company 

to achieve its business objectives while maintaining business ethics and professional standards. In pursuit of business 

excellence, the affairs of the Company are administered, directed and controlled in a manner which helps to 

enhance stakeholders’ value by adopting conducive business practices, objectivity, accountability and integrity.  

 

Under Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the 

same are vested on the Resolution Professional, Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

The business of the Company was being managed by the Board of Directors. However, pursuant to initiation of 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stood 

suspended w.e.f. vide NCLT Order dated September 26, 2019 and the Powers of the Board remains vested with 

the Resolution Professional, Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal (the “RP"). 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

(a)  COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. 

Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the 

Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. The appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal was 

confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). 

As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP, powers of the board of directors of the 

Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the Company. 

 

As per Regulation 15(2A) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the SEBI 

Listing Regulations”), the provisions as specified in Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 related to 

“Composition of Board of Directors” are not applicable during the Insolvency Resolution Process period in respect 

of a listed entity, which is undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. 

 

Since no other data/information/documents available with the Company, Mr. Manoj Agarwal is unable to give 

the comment on valid constitution of Board of Directors with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 



 

 

Directors and Independent Directors as required under the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. However, as per the 

data available, as on 31.03.2023 the Board of Directors of the Company consists of three Directors out of which 

two are Independent Directors. The constitution of the Board and other relevant information are given below: 

 

Director DIN Whole time / 

Independent 

Shareholding Number of 

other 

directorship 

held* 

Committee 

position held in 

other companies 

Mr. Deepak 

Sakharam 

Kulkarni 

00394027 Managing 

Director 

6000469 (49.65%) 5  

Mr. Vijaykumar 

Jagtap 

02555240 Independent 

Director 

- 1 - 

Mr. Sahindra 

Jagannath 

Bhawale 

07352920 Independent 

Director 

- 14 - 

 *No of other directorship held exclude the name of the Company.  

 

(i) As per the information available, the Company does not have any nominee director appointed by any 

institution, lender or equity investor. 

 

(ii) The Resolution professional unable to comments whether the Company has entered into any business 

transaction with independent directors. 

 

(iii) The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code, 2016 (IBC) by the Order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench dated 

September 26, 2019. As per Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the Powers of the Board of Directors stands 

suspended and hence all the committees of Board of Directors stands dissolved on September 26, 2019 

when NCLT passed order for initiation of CIRP. Accordingly, the limit of committee memberships under Reg. 

26(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, chairmanship/ memberships of the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee is not required to disclosed. 

 

(iv) A declaration regarding adherence to the Code of Conduct is given separately by the Resolution 

Professional. 

 

(b) NUMBER AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

After the Commencement of CIRP, in terms of section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors have 

suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The management and affairs of the 



 

 

Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of Board of Directors or Committee 

was held after the CIRP. 

 

(c) DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE: 

 

After the Commencement of CIRP, in terms of section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors have 

suspended and such powers of board were vested with the Resolution Professional. 

 

(d) CONSTITUTION AND COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES OF BOARD: 

 

As per Regulation 15(2B) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the provisions as specified in Regulations 18 (Audit 

Committee), Regulation 19 (Nomination and Remuneration Committee), Regulation 20 (Stakeholder’s Relationship 

Committee) and Regulation 21 (Risk Management Committee) under SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 are not 

applicable during the Insolvency Resolution Process. Accordingly, no details are provided. 

 

(e) SHAREHOLDING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: Nil (as per the available information) 

 

(f) FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and the entire Board is suspended; hence 

no formal evaluation of the Independent Directors has taken place. 

 

(g) CORE COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and the entire Board is suspended.  

 

(h) BOARD CONFIRMATION REGARDING INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and the entire Board is suspended; and 

such powers of board were vested with the Resolution Professional. 

 

(i) RESIGNATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR BEFORE THE EXPIRY OF THE TENURE: 

 

The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions section 7 of the Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”), and the powers 

of Board of Directors of the Company are suspended and same are being exercised by the Resolution 

Professional, and thereafter any change in Management of the Company is restricted by the Code hence, none 

of the independent director resigned before the expiry of the tenure. 

 

 



 

 

 

(j) REMUNERATION POLICY: 

 

Since no employees of the Company are on payroll, remuneration policy is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(k) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: Not Applicable 

 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 

The location, time and date where the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held and 

disclosure about Special Resolutions are given hereunder: 

 

AGM/Date/time/ Venue Details of Special Resolutions 

passed 

29th AGM (the adjourned AGM) on 7th January, 2021 at 4.30 p.m. 

through video Conferencing 

No Special Resolution passed 

30th AGM (the adjourned AGM) on 28th September, 2021 at 3.00 p.m. 

through video Conferencing 

No Special Resolution passed 

31st AGM (the adjourned AGM) on 22nd September, 2022 at 3.00 

p.m. through video Conferencing 

No Special Resolution passed 

 

Postal Ballot 

 

During the year under review, No Special resolution was passed through postal ballot. 

 

COMPANY’S MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

 

Website Your Company maintains a website www.dskcirp.com, wherein there is dedicated 

section ‘Investors’. The website provides details, inter alia, about the Company, 

its performance including quarterly financial results, annual reports, press release, 

unpaid dividend details, if any shareholding pattern, Policies required to be 

published under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, contact details, etc. 

Quarterly/ Annual  

Financial Results 

Quarterly / Half Yearly / Yearly Results are subjected to Limited Review by 

Statutory Auditors and are generally published in Financial Express (All Editions) 

& Loksatta (Pune Edition) newspapers having wide circulation. The said Results 

are made available on the website of the Company www.dskcirp.com   

http://www.dskcirp.com/
http://www.dskcirp.com/


 

 

Stock Exchanges All periodical information, including the statutory filings and disclosures, are filed 

with BSE and NSE. The filings required to be made under the Listing Regulations, 

including the Shareholding pattern and Corporate Governance Report for each 

quarter are also filed on BSE Listing Centre and NSE Electronic Application 

Processing System (NEAPS) and also displayed on the Company’s website. 

Investor Servicing SEBI has commenced processing of investor complaints in a centralized web based 

complaints redress system “SCORES”. However, the Company does not have 

access to the user id and password. Further, the RP has provided 

agmfordskdl@gmail.com email Id for sending complaints. Furthermore, RP has 

also requested the RTA, to resolve the concern queries of stakeholders and read 

out the points of Investors correspondence as mentioned in the report. 

Other Information To expedite the process of share transfer, transmission, split, consolidation, re-

materialization and dematerialization etc. of securities of the Company, the RP 

had delegated the powers of approving the same to the Company's RTA namely 

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., Mumbai under his supervision.  

 

In pursuance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the RP is 

taking preventive steps for Prevention of Insider Trading for complying with the 

requirements under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

and the requirements under the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. 

Name, Designation and 

address of the 

Compliance Officer: 

Not Applicable, as on 31st March, 2023 there is no Company Secretary and 

Compliance officer. Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal, Resolution Professional of the 

Company is acting as Compliance Officer of the Company 

 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:  

 

CIN L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Registered Office and 

Address 

Unit No. 301, 3rd Floor, Swojas One, Kothrud Pune 411038 

Date, Time and Venue of 

Annual General Meeting 

The 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company shall be held on Thursday, 

21st December 2023 at 11:00 A.M. (IST). 

Financial Year 1st April to 31st March 

Rate of Dividend and 

dividend declaration 

date 

Not Applicable 

Listing on Stock The shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE), 

mailto:agmfordskdl@gmail.com


 

 

Exchanges Mumbai and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSEIL). 

Listing fees Annual listing fees have been paid for the financial year 2023-24 to NSE & BSE. 

Stock Code BSE: 523890 

NSE: DSKULKARNI 

ISIN Number INE891A01014 

Suspension of trading in 

securities 

Your company is suspended from trading on stock exchange. 

Registrar and Share  

Transfer agents 

For equity: 

M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited  

C 101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), 

Mumbai – 400 083, India  

Tel No: 022 – 4918 6000 

Website: www.linkintime.co.in  

E-mail: helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

 

Share Transfer System All the shares related work is being undertaken by our RTA, Link Intime India Pvt. 

Ltd., Mumbai. To expedite the process of share transfer, transmission, split, 

consolidation, re-materialistion and dematerialization etc. of securities of the 

Company, the RP has been delegated the power of approving the same to the 

Company’s. 

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) for securities market transactions & off 

market/private transactions involving Transfer of Shares in Physical Form of Listed 

Companies. Therefore, it shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) to furnish a 

copy of the PAN Card to the Company/Registrar & Share Transfer Agents for 

Registration of such transfers. Members/Investors are therefore requested to 

make note of the same & submit their PAN Card copy to the Company/ Registrar 

& Share Transfer Agents. 

Outstanding GDR’s/ 

ADR’s / Warrants/ 

Convertible Instruments 

and their Impact on 

Equity 

There are no outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments 

as on 31st March, 2023, which would have impact on the equity share capital of 

the company 

mailto:helpdesk@linkintime.co.in


 

 

Commodity price risk or 

Foreign exchange risk 

and hedging activities 

The Company has neither commodity hedging activities nor any foreign exchange 

transactions during the current year. 

Plant Locations NA 

Credit Ratings The Company has not obtained any credit rating during the Financial Year as the 

Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 

 

MARKET PRICE DATA: 

 

The equity shares of the Company remain suspended from trading on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited during the year. 

 

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2023: 

 

Since the Company is suspended from trading on stock exchange and the RP does not have exact details of 

distribution of Shareholding and Categories of Shareholder, the RP is unable to comment on the Reliability of the 

Data, as the same being prepared according to the available information. 

 

Category No. of shares held % of holding 

Promoter & Promoter Group 1,20,84,990 46.84 

Public 1,37,16,018 53.16 

Non Promoter- Non Public 0 0 

Shares underlying DRs 0 0 

Shares held by Employee Trusts 0 0 

Total 2,58,01,008 100 

 

STATUS OF DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES: 

 

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized mode. As on 31st March 2023, 83.53% shares 

were held in dematerialized form and balance16.47% shares were held in physical form. Those shareholders 



 

 

whose shares are held in physical form are requested to dematerialize the same at the earliest in their own interest. 

The demat security code (ISIN) for the equity shares is INE891A01014. 

 

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT: 

 

The Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report of the Company prepared in terms of SEBI Circular No. 

D&CC/FITTC/CIR-16/2002 dated December 31, 2002, reconciling the total shares held in both the depositories, 

viz. NSDL and CDSL and physical form with the total issued/paid-up capital of the Company were submitted to 

the Stock Exchange(s) till the financial year ended March 31, 2023 quarter only.  

 

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

Registrar & Transfer agents –  

Link Intime India Private Limited,  

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg,  

Bhandup (West) Mumbai – 400 078,  

Ph No. 022 -256963838 

 

Equity: 

sandip.pawar@linkintime.co.in 

Contact: Mr. Sandip Pawar 

 

Debenture: 

dsk.ncd@linkintime.co.in 

Contact: Mr. Dhanaji Jondhale 

Debenture Trustee : GDA Trusteeship Ltd. Catalyst Trusteeship Ltd. 

GDA House, 1st Floor, Plot No.85 S No. 94 & 95,  

Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Kothrud, Pune-411038. 

Ph No. 020-25280081, dt@gdatrustee.com 

Contact: Ms. Shamala Nalawade 

 

OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

 

(a) MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 

There were no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests 

of the Company. 

 

(b) STATUS OF REGULATORY COMPLIANCES: 

  

mailto:sandip.pawar@linkintime.co.in


 

 

Since the Company is under CIRP, The RP strive hard to comply with the material requirements of the Listing 

Agreement/ SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

(c) DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS AND ADOPTION OF THE NON-

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS: 

 

Since the Company is under CIRP, The RP strive hard to comply with the Corporate Governance requirement as 

per SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

(d) MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY : 

 

As per the details available, the Company is having Three subsidiaries as on 31.03.2023 i.e. DSK Developers 

Corporation, DSK Woods LLC, & DSK Infra Pvt Ltd (“said Subsidiaries”), of which one domestic subsidiaries have 

complied with annual fillings with Registrar of Companies upto 31st March 2016. Further, the RP does not have 

access to the information(s)/detail(s)/record(s)/document(s) of the said Subsidiaries.  

 

(e) COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES: 

 

The Company has neither commodity hedging activities nor any foreign exchange transactions during the current 

year. 

 

(f) DETAILS OF PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OR QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL PLACEMENT AS SPECIFIED UNDER 

REGULATION 32 (7A) OF THE SEBI LISTING REGULATIONS:  

 

The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement. 

 

(g) CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

 

Your Company has received the Certificate from the Secretarial auditor of the Company i.e. Mihen Halani & 

Associates regarding non-disqualification of Directors which forms part of this annual report. 

 

(h) WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism in form of whistle blower policy. At present there are no employees 

on the payroll of the Company and Company’s business operations are also closed due to initiation of CIRP. 

 

(i) APPROVAL OF BOARD ON RECOMMENDATION BY THE COMMITTEE: 
 

The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions section 7 of the Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”), and the powers 



 

 

of Board of Directors of the Company are suspended and same are being exercised by the Resolution 

Professional, hence there were no instances where the Board has not accepted any recommendation of any 

committee of the Board. 

 

(j) CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions section 7 of the Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”), and the powers 

of Board of Directors of the Company are suspended. Therefore, declaration on compliance with the Code of 

Conduct and Ethics duly signed by the Chief Executive Officer is not available. 

 

(k) UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS / REFUND AMOUNTS AND TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION 

FUND 

 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, read with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 

(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (including any statutory modification(s) and / or re-

enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), during the year under review the un-paid/unclaimed dividend 

for the financial year 2010-11, & financial year 2014-15 and shares for which no dividend was claimed from 

consecutive seven years were required to be transferred to the IEPF Authority established by the Central 

Government. The list shareholders whose shares and dividend were transferred to IEPF Authority are not available 

and due to non-availability of the data as the Company is in the process of CIRP, the same is not transferred to 

IEPF authority. In case the members have any queries on the subject matter and the Rules, they may contact the 

Company’s RTA.  

 

(l) AUDIT FEES: 

  

Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company is Rs. 3,52,750/- for financial year 2022-23, for all services 

on a consolidated basis. 

 

(m) DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

Your Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and there are no employees in the 

Company. The Company has adopted a Policy in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention 

and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The details of complaints are as under:  



 

 

 

a. No. of complaints filed during the financial year Nil 

b. No. of complaints disposed off during the financial year Nil 

c. No. of complaint pending as on end of the financial year Nil 

 

(n) SECURED REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs) 

 

The Company’s Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) offered for subscription to public under 

were allotted on 6th September, 2014 and are listed on BSE Limited on 10th September, 2014. The ISIN details 

for these NCDs are as under: 

 

Series 

/Tranche 
ISIN 

Scrip 

Code 

No. of 

NCDs 

Face  

Value 

(in cr.) 

Rate of 

Interest 

Interest 

Interval 

Date of 

Redemption 

Option I INE891A07011 935190 1,03,444 5,000 12.50% Quarterly 06/09/2017 

Option II INE891A07037 935192 46,851 5,000 NA Cumulative 06/03/2020 

Option III INE891A07045 935194 849 25,000 12.65% Annually 
Staggered 

Redemption 

Option IV INE891A07029 935196 68,852 5,000 12.75% Monthly 06/09/2021 

 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations, wherever and to the extent applicable and possible. 

 

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 

 

 

 

Bhushan Vilaskumar Palresha    Sumit Ramesh Diwane 

Managing Director     Director 

DIN: 01258918      DIN: 10076052 

 

Date: 19th December 2023 

Place: Pune 

 

 

 



 

 

 

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY THE BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH 

COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL  

  

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

Schedule V (D) of Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

 

On initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”), the powers of Board of Directors of 

the Company are suspended and same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional (“RP”).  

 

This is to certify that in line with the requirements of Schedule V (D) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; the Company has not received affirmation on compliance with rules of Code of 

Conduct from the Board of Directors and Management, and also due to non-availability of various 

data/informations/Documents it is unable to confirm that the Code of Conduct are as per the requirement of Regulation 

26(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023. 

 

 

Sd/- 

Bhushan Vilaskumar Palresha 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01258918 

 

Date: 19th December 2023 

Place: Pune 

 

Date:  

 

 

*NOTE: We do not have details/information/records of compliances under Corporate Governance to be followed by the 

Company, as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 

(IBC), 2016. Further, all statutory records and other relevant documents are seized and in the custody of investigating 

authorities.  Mr. Bhushan Vilaskumar Palresha, Managing Director of the Company is unable to comment on the 

authentication of the available information/ record/ details found during the course of preparing the Corporate 

Governance report. It is further informed that no senior management personnel of the company are available to provide 

the details. 

 



 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. 

Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the 

Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. The appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal was 

confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). 

As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP the management of affairs and powers 

of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the Company. 

Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested on the 

Resolution Professional, Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal. The Moratorium Period as stipulated under Section 14 of the 

IBC Code, 2016 is in force. 

The RP invited Resolution plans for revival of the Company from the prospective Resolution Applicants. The 

Committee of Creditors approved the Resolution Plan submitted by Resolution Applicant – The CoC members have 

approved the Resolution Plan submitted by Ashdan Properties Pvt. Ltd., Classic Promoters & Builders Pvt. Ltd. and 

Atul Builders- Consortium with requisite majority of the voting share as per the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 

(IBC), 2016. The application for approval of the Resolution Plan by NCLT under section 31 of Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 was filed on 24.08.2021. The resolution plan was approved by the Hon’ble National 

Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide Order No. CP (IB) NO. 1633/MB/C-I/2019 dated June 23, 2023 

(uploaded on NCLT website on June 26, 2023). 

 

Economic Overview: 

 

The Indian Government is on the fast track of financial reforms. The Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) with its helping 

hand is supporting the Government to bring down inflation. It is perceived that the Government and RBI are 

working in tandem with each other to accelerate the tempo of development. Economic development benefits 

everyone. 

 

The public and private sector projects which were stalled are now seeing the light at the end of a dark tunnel. 

Government is quickly moving towards the era of ‘Minimum government and maximum governance’ by digitization, 

simplification of procedures, shortening various forms, leveraging technology, transparency in public interface, etc. 

The Government has also taken a number of initiatives for improving ‘Ease of Doing Business’. The emphasis has 

been on simplification and rationalization of the existing rules and introduction of IT (information technology) 

solutions to make governance more proactive, efficient and effective. 

 

Real Estate Sector Overview and Outlook: 

 

It may be noted that the Central Government passed the Real Estate Regulation and Development Act, 2016 which 

got notified on 26th March, 2016.  

 

Rapid home sales, rising inventory levels and weak sentiment pulled down India’s property markets in 2015. The 

sector awaits the return of investors and customers, who seem to be waiting for prices to stabilize and developers 

to honour project delivery schedules before they take the plunge. 



 

 

 

Many steps by the Government/regulators have been seen to stabilise real estate sector, be it in the form of 

formation of REITs and InvITs, regulatory changes, reduction in interest rates or easing FDI norms. Real estate has 

always been an attractive sector for private equity providers and NBFCs. 

 

With the Government’s efforts in pushing start-ups, new projects and overall economic growth, commercial real 

estate seems to be better placed than residential real estate. 

 

Opportunities: 

 

With the Government’s and RBI’s steps for economic reforms, the industry is positive for revival of economic growth 

across all sectors. Be it regulation or execution, government is trying to be transparent and at the same time 

vigilant. 

 

The Government’s ‘Smart City Mission’ will help to revive real estate in the cities which have been recognised in 

Smart City project. Also under Sardar Patel Urban Housing Mission, 30 millions housing will be built in India by 

2022 for economically weaker sections and low income group. 

 

The concept of Smart Township is now shaping the concept in which company has been operating for a long time. 

 

The start-ups boost and ease of doing business will lead to more entrepreneurs and new projects which may lead 

to development of new industrial corridors and as such development of residential avenues.  

 

The relaxation of FDI norms for real estate will see boost in investment in real estate sector. This move should boost 

affordable housing projects and smart cities across the country. 

 

Since the numbers of new launches have reduced, developers are concentrating on completing the existing projects. 

It is giving confidence to the buyers that the launched projects will be completed and as such it is expected to 

boost demand. 

 

Further, as mentioned above as the Company is in Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIR Process”) hence 

outlook, opportunity and threats, developments, risk and concerns and ratios has not been provided separately as 

required under Listing Regulations. 

 

Financial Performance: 

 

The financial performance of the Company for the year 2022-2023 is described in the Directors' Report under 

the head Financial Result. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Outlook: 

 

The recent passage of the IBC (Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code) has been a major change in the environment for 

the company. The Company is expecting positive outlook post approval of the resolutions plans approved by the 

Committee of Creditors. 

 

Internal Control System: 

 

Since the Company in under CIRP, the business operations of the Company are shut. The Company is optimistic 

about the resolution plans received by the Company and looking forward for positive results. 

 

Cautionary Note: 

 

The statements forming part of this Report may contain certain forward looking remarks within the meaning of 

applicable laws and regulations. The actual results, performances or achievements of the Company depend on 

many factors which may cause material deviation from any future results, performances or achievements. 

Significant factors which could make a difference to the Company’s operations include domestic and international 

economic conditions, changes in Government regulations, tax regime and other statutes. 

 

The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements on 

the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events. 

 

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 

 

 

 

Bhushan Vilaskumar Palresha    Sumit Ramesh Diwane 

Managing Director     Director 

DIN: 01258918      DIN: 10076052 

 

Date: 19th December 2023 

Place: Pune 

 

 

 

  



 

 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To, 

The Members, 

D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD 

(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

 

We have examined all the publicly available information and the details of the compliance of conditions of 

Corporate Governance submitted by the Company of D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD ("the Company') 

(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) for the year ended on March 31, 2023, as per the 

relevant provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirement) Regulations, 2015. ("SEBI Listing 

Regulations"). 

 

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 

was limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring 

the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion 

on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

We would like to inform that, the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. On a petition filed by Bank of Maharashtra against the Company, which was 

admitted vide an Order dated September 26, 2019 of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), 

Mumbai, under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”). 

 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. 

Manoj Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the Interim 

Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. Further, Mr. Manoj Agarwal was appointed as the Resolution 

Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Code, from 

the date of appointment of the IRP the management of affairs and powers of the board of directors of the 

Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the Company. 

 

Search and seizure operations were conducted by the Enforcement Directorate (ED). During this search and seizure 

and during the process of investigation, Economic Offence Wing of Police Dept. has taken in its custody physical 

and electronically maintained records of the company. 

 

Investigation is going on against the company under various laws including the Maharashtra Protection of interest 

of Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) – Pune, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, 

Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. The matter is sub-judice and the impact of the outcome, if any, is 

uncertainable at present. Accordingly, no documents, data or other requisite documents/ information’s 

/details/records were available for our verification and accordingly we cannot comment on the compliance status 

of the company with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the 

Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. 

 



 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 For MIHEN HALANI & ASSOCIATES 

 Practicing Company Secretary 

Date: 29.05.2023  

Place: Mumbai   

UDIN: F009926E000412163 Sd/- 

 Mihen Halani 

(Proprietor) 

CP No: 12015 

FCS No:9926 

 

 

 

  



 

 

Mihen Halani &Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

A-501/L, Jaswanti Allied Business Centre, Kachpada, Ramchandralane Extn. Rd, 

Malad (West), Mumbai – 400 064, : 022 – 6236 0279 : mihenhalani@mha-cs.com 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To, 

D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD 

(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. 

Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the 

Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Corporate Debtor. The appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 

was confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Corporate Debtor by the Committee of 

Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP the management of 

affairs and powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of 

the Corporate Debtor. 

 

In exercise of the powers of the Board of Directors by the Resolution Professional of the Corporate Debtor as per 

Section 17(1)(b) of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, hereby present the Thirty First Annual Report on 

business and operations of the Company along with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2023. 

 

Further, Search and seizure operations were conducted by the Enforcement Directorate (ED). During this search 

and seizure and during the process of investigation, Economic Offence Wing of Police Dept has taken in its custody 

physical and electronically maintained records of the Company. 

 

Investigation is going on against the listed entity under various laws including the Maharashtra Protection of interest 

of Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) –Pune, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, 

Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. The matter is sub-judice and the impact of the outcome, if any, is 

uncertainable at present. 

 

We have examined the relevant publically available information of D S Kulkarni Developers Limited having CIN 

L45201PN1991PLC063340 and having registered office at 1187 /60 J M Road, Shivaji Nagar, Pune, 

Maharashtra 411005 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), and information produced before us by the 

Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V 

Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 



 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information provided to us, we hereby state that the Company is under 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. 

 

Further, we have not received any documents/details/informations/records from the Company & its officers, and 

hence we are unable to comment that whether the Directors on the Board of the Company for the Financial Year 

ending on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors 

of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve Bank of India 

or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 

certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 For MIHEN HALANI & ASSOCIATES 

 Practicing Company Secretary 

Date: 29.05.2023  

Place: Mumbai   

UDIN: F009926E000412086 Sd/- 

 

 

 

 

Mihen Halani 

(Proprietor) 

CP No: 12015 

FCS No:9926 
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Independent Auditors' Report 
To the members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited. 

1.	 Report on the audit of standalone Ind AS financial statements 

We were engaged to audit the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial 
statements of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited (the Company), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2023, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, and summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

2.	 Management's responsibility for the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements 

D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (the Code). Its affairs, 
business and assets are being managed by the Resolution Professional 
appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai vide its Order dated 26th September, 
2019 under the provisions of the Code as Interim Resolution Professional and 
subsequently as per section 22 of the Code as Resolution Professional of D. 
S. Kulkarni Developers Limited. The matter against the Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process is pending for order before the Hon'ble NCLT vide CP 
1633/2019. Under provisions of section 17 of the Code, the powers of Board 
of Directors of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited are currently under 
suspension and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional 
of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited. 

In view of ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Resolution 
Professional is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) with respect to the preparation of these 
standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act. 

Mumbai Office: 8, 4th Floor, Shaniya Enclave, V. P. Road, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai - 400056 Tel. : 40124156/ 57 / 58 E: admin@cappsco.in
 

Ahmedabad Office: 129, 1st Floor, Hare Krishna Complex, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380009 Tel. : 94084 56885 E: ahmedabad@cappsco.in
 

W : www.cappsco.in 



PPSCO
 
& ASSOCIATES 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Under section 20 of Code, it is incumbent upon Resolution Professional to 
manage the operations of the Company as a going concern and the financial 
statements have been prepared on going concern basis. 
The written representations with regard to these financial statements 
provided to us during the course of our audit, have been signed by the 
Resolution Professional appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai vide its Order 
dated 26 September,2019. 

3. Auditor's res'ponsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS 
financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the 
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

The Financial Statements provided to us for review have been signed only by 
the Resolution Professional. Section 134(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
requires such signature to be undertaken by (a)the chairperson of the 
company where he is authorized by the board, or by two directors out of 
which one shall be managing director, and (b) the chief executive officer, the 
Chief Financial officer, and the Company Secretary, wherever they are 
appointed. Since the CIRP has been initiated, the Resolution Professional, 
pursuant to his appointment, has been vested with the management of the 
Company and the powers of the board of directors of the Company stand 
suspended. Therefore, the Financial Statements have been signed by the 
Resolution Professional 
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alone. Though the powers of the Board of directors are Suspended, none of 
such directors of the Company were available/ agreeable to sign the said 
Financial Statements. 

The positions of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the 
Company, as on the date of Signing of the Financial Statements, were 
vacant. We understand that the office of the Chief Finance Officer and the 
Company Secretary of the Company is vacant before the start of the year 
under audit. The Company has not appointed such key managerial personnel 
as required under section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rode 8 
of the Companies (Appointments and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014. As such, the Financial Statements may suffer from issues of 
accuracy, veracity, sufficiency, completeness, and reliability, as none of the 
key managerial personnel of the Company other than Resolution Professional 
has signed the Financial Statements. 

For the purpose of this audit review, we have relied upon the Financial 
Statements provided to us by the Resolution Professional. It is observed that 
the Resolution Professional has inserted a note as part of notes to accounts, 
set out in Note 2.31 of financial statements, as per which he has assumed 
that the data/information provided by the officials of the Company and the 
records of the Company made available to him are in conformity with the 
applicable laws and present a true and fair view of the position of the 
Company and has not personally verified such information, and that he 
should be absolved from the accuracy, veracity and sufficiency or 
completeness of information provided to him by the officials of the Company 
based on which the Financial Statements of the Company have been 
prepared. As per the said note, the Resolution Professional has signed the 
financial statements only to facilitate the CIRP process without any liability of 
the same. To the extent to which the Resolution Professional has disclaimed 
his liability with respect to accuracy, veracity, and sufficiency or 
completeness of information provided to him by the officials of the Company, 
the Financial Statements may suffer from issues of accuracy, veracity, 
sufficiency, completeness, or reliability. Relevant observations upon the 
extent of veracity of the Financial Statements have been made in the below 
paragraphs. 

Our objectives are: 

a.	 to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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b.	 to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with the SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of the users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As	 part of the audit in accordance with SAs, we exercised professional 
judgment and maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We	 also: 

a.	 identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, designed and 
performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

b.	 obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls 

c.	 evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management. 

d.	 considered the appropriateness of management's use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, we concluded that a material uncertainty does exist related 
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's 
ability to continue as a going concern. Hence, we drew attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern or vice versa. 
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e.	 evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

f.	 communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identified during our audit. 
Because of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion 
paragraph, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the financial statements. 

4. Basis for disclaimer of opinion 

i.	 In view of irregularities and suspected fraudulent transactions and 
defaults under 'Insolvency Bankruptcy Code 2016, the Company is 
under 'Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process'. As at the date of this 
report, we are not in receipt of any litigation/investigation reports 
conducted by investigative authorities. 

ii.	 In view of the fact that matters relating to abovementioned financial 
irregularities are sub-judice and litigations/investigations by respective 
authorities are yet to be completed, we are unable comment on the 
consequential impact, if any, on the financial statements of the outcome 
of such litigations/investigations / enquiry by law enforcement agencies 
and outcome of related litigation and claims. 

iii.	 In view of the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the 
outcome of which cannot be presently ascertained on the matters listed 
below, we are unable to comment whether the Company will be able to 
continue as a going concern. Consequently, we are unable to comment 
as to whether the going concern basis for preparation of these financial 
statements taken by the Company is appropriate. 

iv.	 There are proceedings going on against the company under various 
laws such as The Maharashtra Protection of Interest of Depositors Act 
(MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) - Pune, Insolvency and 

I 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and other economic laws, Various agencies 
have moved against the Assessee Company and its directors, viz. 
Directorate of Enforcement (ED), Serious Fraud Investigation Office 
(SFIO) and other agencies. The original documents/agreements has 
been seized by ED and are not available for carrying out necessary 
audit. 
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v.	 Other matters (including those listed in paragraph (iv) above), 
limitations with regard to availability of necessary audit evidences 
including original documents and information, satisfactory explanations 
and justifications required for audit for the years ended 31 March 2023. 
In view of the limitations and uncertainties involved, we had expressed 
our inability to express an opinion on the financial statements for the 
audited period. Our disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements is 
also because of the possible effects of the above matters on the figures 
for the current year and on the corresponding figures for the year 
ended 31st March 2022. 

vi.	 We are unable to comment on the necessary adjustments/disclosures in 
these financial statements in relation to the following items, in view of 
non-availability of certain necessary information / 
documentation/satisfactory explanations relevant to the current year 
audit ­

a.	 Lack of reconciliation of consumables and spares consumed 
(included under purchases of stock in trade) with related sales; and 

b. Sale	 of few finished flats but not recognized due to non-availability of 
agreements for which the closing stock shall show and inflated cost 
value; 

c.	 Lease rental agreements for various land given on lease on which rental 
expenses are recognized for the current year, are not provided and 
hence without sufficient appropriate audit evidence we are unable to 
comment on accuracy of rental expenses so recognized or 
unrecognized; 

d.	 Employee details / Salary register on which salary expenses are 
recognized for the current year, are not provided and hence without 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence we are unable to comment on 
accuracy of employee cost so recognized or unrecognized; 

e.	 Bank statement/Interest statements of few Banks accounts/Fixed 
deposits taken from the banks, that were made available by the 
banking authorities have been accounted for, the rest were not 
completely made available by the banking authorities inspite of many 
representations made by Resolution Professional; 

f.	 Debenture statements and Loan statements from few banks based on 
which interest expenses have been recognized were not made available, 
for which we have taken the base of previous year in case of non­
Convertible debentures. 
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g.	 Statutory liabilities due as at 31st March, 2023 are verified based on 
the tally data maintained and provided by the management. Various 
representations to Government authorities for the login credentials or 
data available of the said company have been made by the Resolution 
Professional, based on which the said recognition shall be verified for its 
accuracy but the same was not available. 

h.	 Ledger confirmations including that of related parties had not been 
made available based on which inter balances are not verified. 

i.	 Original documentsl agreements were not made available in most cases 
and hence we had to carry out our audit procedures on the tally data 
provided and management representations. As explained to us by the 
management, all the original documents had been seized by Directorate 
of Enforcement (ED). 

j.	 Report from EOW for its investigation done and report of forensic audit 
conducted have not been provided to us based on which our opinion 
shall have a material impact. 

vii. Attention is drawn to Note 7 of the financial statements i.e., 
unsecured loans to related parties where provision has been made 
for bad and doubtful debts of Rs. 4,713.84 Lakhs, out of Rs. 
6,959.68 Lakhs, which are loans, given to subsidiary company, Mis. 
DSK Developers Corporation. Out of total 4,173.84 lakhs, Rs. 229 
Lakhs is doubtful Interest component. The basis of the provision of 
doubtful debts is not provided to us. 

viii. D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited has one 100% subsidiary DSK 
Southern Projects Private Limited and this subsidiary company was 
also under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. Resolution plan 
for that company was approved by the Hon'ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench 
on 17.02.2023. According to the terms of the approved resolution 
plan, D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited is due to receive 
Rs. 5,00,0001- towards the full and final payment against their 
outstanding loan. The same was received by the company on 
17.05.2023. The total outstanding loan as on the date of the 
approval of the resolution plan was RsA,565.77/- lakhs. The 
remaining amount has been written off as the same is no longer 
receivable. 
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ix.	 As part of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the 
Company has received certain claims aggregating to Rs. 2,68,667 
lakhs till 27 March 2023 from various creditors and out of which the 
total amount of admitted claims were Rs. 1,77,865 lakhs as 
approved by Resolution Professional. 

x.	 Attention is invited to note 9 of the financial statements wherein it 
is stated that Inventory is not physically verified. We have relied on 
Resolution Professional for the figures provided in respect of 
inventory. 

xi. Trade receivables	 include receivables of Rs. 83 lakhs in respect of 
related party (Nikhil Kulkarni & Co,) for the purpose of sale of 
assets which is outstanding since March 2016. It also includes Vat 
receivable from Flat holders of Rs. 219 Lakhs since long which is not 
backed by any evidence. 

xii. The	 Company needs to strengthen its internal control systems, in 
particular its IT controls and those relating to existence of contract 
work-in-progress; reconciliation of consumables and spares 
consumed with related sales; accounts receivables including 
periodic reconciliations with customers, age wise analysis and 
application of receipts from customers; physical verification of 
inventories, accounts payables including vendor selection process 
and periodic reconciliations with vendors; classification of costs 
relating to items of purchase of traded goods including costs 
incurred towards warranty and certain contract expenses; and 
disposal of property, plant and equipment. We are unable to 
determine consequential impact, if any, of these aforesaid 
weaknesses on these financial statements. 

xiii.	 Attention is drawn to the Note 12 of the Financial Statements 
wherein the advances made to the relatives and third parties are 
doubtful in nature. The same has been recorded based on the 
accounting and books maintained by the management! Resolution 
Professional. 

xiv.	 Attention is invited to Note 16 of financial statements wherein 
various Project Loans, Corporate Loans, Vehicle Loans and other 
loans have been verified by the statements as much were provided 
to us by the management. Since the statements for Debentures 
loans were not available or provided to us, the amount 
outstanding has been derived by recording the similar amount of 
accrued interest expense as that of previous year. 
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xv.	 As per the provisions of Sec 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, post 
the transfer of dividend declared to an unpaid dividend account, if 
still remains unpaid for a period of 7 years from the date of such 
transfer shall then be transferred to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund and the company shall send a statement of the 
details of such transfer to the authority which administers the said 
Fund. Attention is invited to Note 22 of financial statement wherein 
the unclaimed dividend outstanding in the books of company 
comprises from the FY 2009-10 till FY 2014-15. 

xvi. Various	 representations and reminders have been made to 
government authorities for the login credentials or the data 
available with themselves pertaining to the Company by the 
Resolution Professional. Since the required data was not available 
to us, the statutory compliances, and dues outstanding have not 
been verified to its accuracy. We are unable to determine 
consequential impact, if any, of these aforesaid weaknesses on 
these financial statements. Whereas the dues accounted for the 
period from 1St April, 2022 to 31St March,2023 has been duly 
verified. The dues recorded were fully paid to the government up 
to the date of Financials. 

xvii. Contingent Liabilities disclosed under Note 24 have been continued 
to be similar as that of previous year. In addition to the same, 
Cenvat Credit availed in non-current assets and income tax dues 
as extracted from the claims made by the authority has been 
disclosed as a contingent liability as there is a contingency and 
estimated value needs to be recorded. 

xviii. The	 Company has not complied with the requirements of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 that are as follows: 

a.	 Failed to file its financial results for the period ended 30 
September 2017 and subsequent periods till date. The financials 
results have been filed for the quarter ended: i. December 2020, 
ii. March 2021, iii. June 2021, iv. September 2021, v. December 
2021, vi. December 2022, vii. March 2023. 
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b.	 Governance reports have been submitted latest till December 
2017. 

c.	 Annual reports for the Financial year 2021-22 has not been filed. 

Consequently, we are unable to comment on the impact, if any, of this 
non-compliance on the financial statements. 

In view of our observations in paras 4(i) to 4(xviii) above, we are unable 
to determine the adjustments, that are necessary in respect of the 
Company's assets, liabilities as on balance sheet date, income and 
expenses for the year, the elements making up the statement of changes 
in equity and cash flow statement and related presentation and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

5. Disclaimer of opinion 

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis 

for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we have not been able to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit 
opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the standalone 
financial statements. 

Material uncertainty related to "going concern" 

We invite attention to 'Annexure AI to our report which expatiates the 
facts and circumstances that indicate that a material uncertainty exists 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. Having regard to the totality of the facts and 
circumstances stated in the said Annexure, it is our considered opinion 
that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern only if it is 
able to raise funds for payment of staff salaries, payment of statutory 
liabilities and for servicing its debts on the due date and if it is able to 
comply with the provisions of the Real Estate Regulation Act, 2016. Our 
opinion about the financial statements for the year under review is not 
modified in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, 
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the 
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current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key 
audit matters listed in 'Annexure 6' to this report have been 
communicated to the management and discussed with the management. 

6.	 Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

i.	 As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 (the Order), 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
Section 143 of the Act and except for the effects, if any, of the matters 
described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we enclose in the 
"Annexure C", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order. 

ii.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a)	 described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were 
unable to obtain all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of 
our audit; 

b)	 due to the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for 
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we are unable to state whether 
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books; 

c)	 the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow 
statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account as maintained, 

d)	 Due to the effect of the related matters described in the basis for 
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we state as below-

i.	 The financial statements do not comply with IND AS 26 ­
Accounting & Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans, Ind AS 29 ­
Financial Reporting in the Hyperinflationary Economies, Ind AS 41 ­
Agriculture, Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payments, Ind AS 103 ­
Business Combinations, Ind AS 104 - Insurance Contracts, Ind AS 
106 - Exploration & Evaluation of Mineral Resources, Ind AS 108 ­
Operating Segments, Ind AS 114 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts 
AND Ind AS 116- Lease as specified under Section 133 of the Act; 
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ii.	 We are unable to state whether the financial statements comply 
with the Indian Accounting Standards (other than those referred to 
in paragraph 6(ii)(d)(i) above) specified under Section 133 of the 
Act. 

e)	 the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph 
above may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company; 

f)	 the basis of written representations to be received from the directors 
as on 31 March 2023, and taken on record by the Board of Directors 
that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act 
except that the then Managing Director (no longer with the Company), 
has not provided such representation to the Company. Accordingly, we 
are unable to comment as to whether the aforesaid individual was 
disqualified as on 31 March, 2023 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

g)	 the reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other 
matters connected therewith are as stated in the basis for disclaimer 
of opinion paragraph above; 

h)	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate report in 'Annexure D', and 

(iii)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor's report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

a.	 view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for 
disclaimer of opinion, we are unable to state whether note 23 to the 
standalone financial statements discloses the complete impact of 
pending litigations on the financial position in the standalone financial 
statements of the Company, 

b.	 view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for 
disclaimer of opinion, we are unable to state whether the Company 
has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long 
term contracts (the Company does not have any derivative contracts); 
and 
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c.	 there has been delay in transferring amounts, required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company. 

For P P S C 0 & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN:) 107356W 

Partner:- Ankit P. Sanghavi 
(M No.) 131353 
Date:- 29/05/2023 
UDIN:- 23131353BGYNNT3941 
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Independent Auditors' Report of Even Date
 
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.
 

On standalone Ind AS financial statements
 
Annexure A-Material uncertainty related to "going concern".
 

The Directors' Responsibility Statement in the Board's Report states that the 
accounts have been prepared on a "going concern" basis. However, whether the 
Company is a "going concern" as at the balance sheet date is a question of 
opinion which must be answered having regard to the totality of the facts and 
circumstances of the case. Accordingly, we state below the facts and 
circumstances which may have a material impact on this issue. 

A. Financial facts & circumstances 

1. Default in repayment of instalments of loans obtained from banks & 
financial institutions and in payment of interest on such loans: 

During the year under review, the Company has been generally unable to service 
the loans obtained from banks & financial institutions in accordance with the 
contractual terms contained in the sanction letters issued by such banks & 
financial institutions i.e., the Company has been generally unable to repay 
instalments and pay interest on the due date. The Resolution Professional had 
written letters to each bank / financial institution in order to obtain information 
about delay in payment of interest & repayment of loan instalment, status of the 
account as at the balance sheet date & the overdue instalments / interest as at 
the balance sheet date. The amount of overdue instalments/interest as stated in 
the Annexure C to the statutory audit report is derived from the replies we 
received from the banks / financial institutions, if any, or, in the absence of such 
replies, from the information available in the Company's records. 

2. Default in repayment of fixed deposits obtained from the public and in 
payment of interest thereon: 

The Company has defaulted in repayment of fixed deposits and in payment of 
interest thereon. Please refer Para (v) of Annexure C to our statutory audit 
report for details. 
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3. Default in payment of statutory dues on account of tax deducted at 
source, self-assessment tax, Maharashtra Value-added tax, service tax, 
employees' provident fund dues etc.: 

The Company filed its return of income under the Income Tax Act for
 
Assessment Year 2016-17 (FY 2015-16) on 30/11/2016. As per the said return,
 
an amount of RS.1251.68 lacs are payable by the Company on account of self­

assessment tax and interest. However, till the date of this report the Company
 
has paid Rs. 45 lacs only and the balance RS.1206.68 lacs are still unpaid. The
 
Income Tax Department has treated the said return as invalid u/s 139(9) of the
 
Income-tax Act, 1961, on the ground that self-assessment tax has not been paid
 
and has asked the Company to show cause why prosecution should not be
 
initiated for such default.
 
The Company has not paid as required by law the tax deducted at source for the
 
previous years except for the year under review under various sections of the
 
Income Tax Act, 1961.
 
The Company has also not paid as required by law the amounts payable on
 
account of service tax, employees' provident fund dues, ESIC dues, employees'
 
profession tax, Maharashtra Value added tax, and contribution to gratuity fund
 
managed by LIe.
 
The details of these statutory liabilities are stated in Annexure C to our statutory
 
audit report.
 

4. Rejection of dividend proposed by the Board of Directors for FY 2015­
16 at the Company's Annual General Meeting: 

When the Company's financial statements for FY 2015-16 were finalized in May 
2016, the Board of Directors recommended to the Annual General Meeting to be 
held in September 2016 that a dividend of Re. 1.25 per share be paid to the 
holders of the Company's eqUity shares. The total outflow on account of dividend 
and additional tax thereon would have been Rs. 388.17 
resolution at the Company's Annual General Meeting held 
not passed and the proposed dividend was not declared. 

lakhs. 
on 29

However, 
/09/2016 

the 
was 

5. Delay in payment of salaries to staff: 

As at the date of this report, the Company has been unable to pay some of its 
staff for full year in addition to four months of previous year. The unpaid 
employee remuneration as at the balance sheet date is Rs. 557.67 lakhs. 
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B. Other facts & circumstances 

6. Resignation of staff and delay in appointment of replacements: 

According to the statistics provided by the HR Department for previous year, the 
Company had 514 employees on 01/04/2016. During the FY 2016-17, 259 
employees resigned whereas only 54 new employees joined the Company, 
Consequently, the Company had 309 employees as at 31/03/2017. No new data 
of the current employees available to us. 

7. Progress of incomplete construction projects 

Relying on the management representations, During the year there has been no 
construction activity. 

8. Rating by credit rating agency 

The credit rating of the Company has been down-graded by CARE from BBB+ to 
D in respect of long- term bank facilities and to C Negative in respect of Fixed 
Deposit Programme and to C Negative in respect of non-convertible debentures 
as per their communications dated 22/03/2017. 

9. Pending litigations 

The Company and its promoters face and are likely to face litigations on account 
of dishonour of cheques and defaults in payment of statutory dues, fixed 
deposits, bank loans and generally dues payable to suppliers. 

10. Non-Maintenance of Records 

The company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

11. No Documentary Evidence 

No documentary evidence was provided as to the details of the periodicity and 
extent of physical verification of Fixed Assets carried out by the management. 
Accordingly, we are unable to comment whether there are any material 
discrepancies and on the manner in which they have been dealt with in the 
books of account, 
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12. No Evidence for Physical Verification 

There is no evidence of physical verification by management of inventories 
available on record. Hence, we are unable to comment on the reasonability of 
verification process and also on the discrepancies, if any. The land valuation 
report provided to us is for the year 2016 and it does not match with the 
workings provided to us regarding the area and value of land held as inventory. 

For P P S C 0 & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN:) 107356W 

Partner: - Ankit P. Sanghavi 
(M No.) 131353 
Date: - 29/05/2023 
UDIN:- 23131353BGYNNT3941 
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Independent Auditors' Report of Even Date
 
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.
 

On standalone Ind AS financial statements
 
Annexure B- Key Audit Matters
 

The following key audit matters are emphasized in order to interpret these 
financial statements. 

1. Compliance with the provisions of the Real Estate Regulation Act, 
2016 

Government of India has enacted the Real Estate (Regulation and 
Development) Act 2016 and all the sections of the Act came into force with 
effect from May 1, 2017. Under this Act, Government of Maharashtra has 
established Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority (Maha RERA), vide 
Notification No. 23 dated 8th March 2017, for regulation and promotion of 
real estate sector in the State of Maharashtra. Consequently, Government of 
Maharashtra also promulgated the Maharashtra Real Estate (Regulation and 
Development) (Registration of Real Estate Projects, Registration of Real 
Estate Agents, Rates of Interest and Disclosures on Website) Rules, 2017 
and other Rules. The last date for registration of on-going projects under 
Real Estate Regulation Act was 31st July 2017. These changes in the 
regulatory environment applicable to real estate development companies are 
so radical that no such company can continue in business without complying 
with the new regulations. 

2. Commitments for DSK Dream City Project & Other Projects 

The Company has made commitments in respect of its on-going projects. The 
Company's success will depend upon its ability to raise funds for meeting 
these commitments. 

3. Requirements of Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Company has been facing capacity issues due to loss of key employees 
while meeting the need for servicing information requirements and providing 
clarifications to multiple investigating agencies, providing information to 
enable the ongoing asset monetization and restructuring activities and 
meeting 'going concern' requirements. Further, financials statements from 
the respective subsidiaries have not been available to us. On further 
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investigation, it was found that out of 4 subsidiaries being DSK Developers 
Corporation, DSK Woods LLC, DSK Southern Projects Pvt Ltd & DSK Infra Pvt 
Ltd, 2 domestic subsidiaries have complied with annual fillings with Registrar 
of Companies up to 31" March 2016. In view of the above, the Financial 
Statements of the subsidiaries have not been available or shall not be 
available before the Annual 
General meeting of the Company. Accordingly, the Company is unable to 
provide its Consolidated Financial Statement and salient features of 
the Financial Statements of the Company's Subsidiaries and Joint 
Ventures in Form AOC-l as required under Section 129(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

4. Advances given to unrelated parties 

During the year 2017-18, the Company has given advances aggregating to 
Rs. 0.38 lakhs to unrelated parties for the purpose of construction & 
development of real estate projects. However, by the balance sheet date the 
said parties had not raised invoices for the work performed by them. 

5.	 Default committed by DSK Global Education & Research ltd. 
(DSKGER) 

The Company is surety for the loan advanced by Central Sank of India (CS1) 
to DSKGER. The said guarantee was given when DSKGER was a subsidiary of 
the Company and it continued even after DSKGER ceased to be a subsidiary. 
The said contingent liability appears in Note 24 to the financial statements. 
On 12/04/2017, CSI has issued a notice to DSKGER u/s 13(2) of the 
Securitisation & Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of Security 
Interest Act, 2002, for payment of the amount outstanding on 11/04/2017 
Le Rs. 8200.39 lacs within 60 days from the date of receipt of notice which 
remains unpaid till date. 

6. Possible contractual liability 

The Company is unable to reasonably quantify the possible liability that may 
arise due to non- performance of the terms of contracts between the 
Company and its customers & suppliers. 
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7. Transaction Audit Report 

The transaction Audit has been conducted by the Transaction auditor i.e., 
Mis. BOO India LLP, as per the provisions of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 
2016, involving an amount of Rs. 450,30 crores. A miscellaneous application, 
based on the said report have been filed with the Hon'ble NCLT, Mumbai 
Bench on 18,11.2020 for further directions. 

For P P S C 0 & Associates
 
Chartered Accountant
 
(FRN:) 107356W
 

~itP. Sanghavi 
(M No.) 131353
 
Date: - 25/05/2023
 
UDIN:- 23131353BGYNNT3941
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Independent Auditors' Report
 
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.
 

On	 standalone Ind AS financial statements
 

Annexure C Referred to in Paragraph (i) under the heading "Report
 
on other legal and regulatory requirements" of Our Report of Even
 
Date
 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of Companies Act, 
2013, we enclose, on the basis of our opinion, our examination on the 
relevant records and according to the information and explanation given to 
us, in the "Annexure C" a statement on the matters specified in Paragraph 3 
& 4 of the said Order. 

i. Property, Plant and Equipment 

(a) The	 company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets during the 
financial year under review. However, records not produced for the 
verification. 

(b) The Resolution Professional has physically verified all	 the fixed 
assets during the financial year 2021-22 for the Valuation of Assets 
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. As informed to us, 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and the 
same have been dealt with in the books of account. 

(c)	 As per the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds 
of immovable properties owned by the Company whether held in the 
name of the company or not is uncertain since the same has been 
sealed by the ED. 

ii.	 Inventory 

The Resolution Professional agpointed by the NCLT order has done 
Physical Verification of inventory during Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process. The projects for which they are not aware about 
its presence, are being carried forward in the books as Work in 
Progress. We do not have such report. 
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iii. Loan granted to related parties. 

(a) Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of 
disclaimer of opinion paragraph 4 of our main report, the 
Company has not granted any fresh loans, secured or unsecured, 
to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register­
maintained u/s 189 of the Act. The amount of loan granted in 
previous stand to be outstanding till the balance sheet date as 
follows: 

Number of parties Amount of loans given 

Balances (in Lacs) 

31-03-2023 31.03.2022 
Two 11,525.45 11,525.45 

(b)	 The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of loans, 
secured or unsecured, granted by the Company, are not, prima 
facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

(c) In respect of the loans, secured or unsecured, given by the 
Company, the terms of repayments of the principal amount and 
the payments of the interest have not been stipulated. Hence 
whether the repayment is overdue or not cannot be decided. 
However, the Company had made provision of Rs. 4,713.84 
Lacs in the previous years for loans whose recovery may be 
doubtful. 

i. Compliance with section 185 & 186 

(a) The Company has not made investments, granted loans, offered 
guarantee and security in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 185 & Section 186 of CA, 2013. The limit prescribed under 
the Companies Act, 2013 for granting loans has been exceeded 
thereby violating the provisions of the Act. 

(b)	 The Company has obtained an opinion from a professional stating 
that provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 are not 
attracted in the matter of giving a guarantee to the bank which 
has advanced a loan to one of the related parties viz. D.S. 
Kulkarni & Co. 
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v. Deposit 

As at 31st March 2023 the Company had outstanding deposits of 
Rs.27.37 Lakhs. During the FY 2022-23 and up to the date of this 
report, no. of depositors has not been increased also. the amount 
of deposit accepted have remained unchanged. However, no Order 
has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company 
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other 
tribunal in this regard. 

vi. Cost Records 

The company has not maintained the cost as required by the 
Companies (Cost Record & Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the 
Central Government u/s 148(1) of the Act. 

vii. Payment of statutory dues 

(a) There have been instances of delay in depositing with the appropriate 

Rs. In LacsThe details regarding payment of 
statutory dues are as follows: 

Particulars 

rl 

Total dues 
as on 
31/03/2023 

1318.44J .Tax deducted /collected at source 

t2.Service Tax 289.17 

,rt3. Gratuity 216.34 
63.94 

470.16 

87.37 

11.23 

3.90 
26.73 

C4 .Ieave Encash ment 

!~5.Maharashtra Value-added tax 

t6.Provident Fraud 

i7.Employees' State Insurance 

EB. Profession Taxs 
Sg.Goods and Service Tax 

(b) 

Dues for 
more than 6 
months as on 
31/03/2022 

1312.35 

289.17 

216.34 
63.94 

470.16 

87.37 

11.23 

3.90 
22.43 

undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, TDS, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service 
tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, cess and other material statutory 
dues applicable to it. 
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(c)	 There are no disputed amounts outstanding in respect of Provident 
Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise 
Duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it as at the 
last day of the financial year. The disputed amounts in respect of 
income tax are as follows: 

From where dispute is pending Assessment 
Year 

As at 3pt 
March'23 
(Rs. In 
lakhs) 

As at 3pt 
March'22 
(Rs.In 

lakhs) 

l.High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2004-05 67.25 67.25 

2.High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2005-06 152.02 152.02 

3.High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2006-07 311.45 311.45 

4.High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2007-08 418.80 418.80 

5.High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2008-09 116.00 116.00 

6.High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2009-10 156.93 156.93 

7.High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2010-11 99.95 99.95 

8.High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2011-12 35.47 35.47 

9.High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2012-13 36.15 36.15 

The !TAT Pune decided the Company's appeals for AY 2004-05, 2005­
06,2006-07,2007- 08,2008-09,2009-10,2010-11,2011-12 & 2012­
13 in favour of the Company. However, the Dept has filed a reference 
with the High Court of Judicature at Mumbai. 

(d)During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any 
amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance 
with the provisions of section 124(5) the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
4 of the Companies (Declaration & Payment of Dividend) Rules 2014, 
made thereunder. The unpaid dividend remains outstanding in the 
books from FY 2009-10.s 
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(viii) Default in repayment of bank loan 

(a)The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture 
holders as on the balance sheet date and as on the date of this 
report. The Company has also delayed repayment of dues to 
financial institutions and banks during the year. 

The details of overdue interest and overdue principal of the 
Company's borrowings are as follows: 

Bank/Financial Institution Amount overdue as on 31/3/23 

Interest 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Principal 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

1. IerCI Housing Finance Co 441.19 8,944.50 

2. State Bank of India 21.19 12,579.81 

3. Syndicate Bank 809.24 7,667.00 

4. Union Bank of India 2,804.99 6,292.86 

5. Bank of Maharashtra. 458.28 6,292.00 

6. lOBI Bank 1,755.90 4,723.66 

7. India Bulls Housing Finance 823.91 5,666.35 

8. Vijaya Bank 0.00 2,131.45 

9. Sangli Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd. 0.00 205.69 

10. The Kalyan Janata Sahakari Bank 140.35 1,336.72 

11. Tata Capital Housing Finance Ltd 94.48 713.53 

12. Bajaj Finance Ltd 202.13 1,403.31 

13. Aditya Birla Finance Ltd 176.82 936.47 

14. STCI Finance Ltd 219.48 2,386.84 

15. HDFC Bank Ltd. 0.02 1.25 

16. Toyota Financial Services 0.43 7.07 

17. Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. 0.00 0.58 
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(ix) Application of proceeds of term loans/public offer 

The company has not applied any term loans during the year. During the 
year under review, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). 

(x) Fraud 

No material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the financial year under review. 

(xi) Managerial remuneration 

The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during 
the year. Hence the contents of paragraph 3(xi) of CARO, 2016 are not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xii) Nidhi Company 

The contents of Paragraph 3(xii) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable since 
the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 

(xiii) Related party transactions & compliance with 5.177 & 188 

For want of complete records, we are unable to comment about the 
transactions with related parties and to express our opinion whether 
these transactions are in compliance with Sections 177 & 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the available details thereof have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

(xiv) Preferential allotment / private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures compliance with 542 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment/private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year 
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(xv) Non-cash transactions with directors etc. & compliance with 
5.192 

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of the 
disclaimer of opinion paragraph of the main report, according to the 
information available as at present and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. 

(xvi) Compliance with 5.451A of RBI Act 

The contents of paragraph 3(xvi) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable since 
the company is not required to register itself with RBI under section 
451A of the RBI Act. 

For P P 5 C 0 & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN:) 107356W 

Partner: - Ankit P. Sanghavi 
(M No.) 131353 
Date: - 29/05/2023 
UDIN:- 23131353BGYNNT3941 
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Independent Auditors' Report 
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. 

On standalone Ind AS financial statements 

Annexure D Referred to in Paragraph (ii)(h) under the heading 
"Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" of Our Report 
of Even Date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of D. S. 
Kulkarni Developers Ltd. ("the Company") as of 31st March 2023 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 



PPSCO
 
& ASSOCIATES 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143( 10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the 'nternal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and its operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over finaflciaI reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that 

(a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company, 
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(b)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

(c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the company does not has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were generally not 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2023 as there is no staff appointed for 
operating the system. The company is under corporate insolvency resolution 
process ('CIRP/) and its complete management and authority is under 
Resolution Professional. 

For P P 5 C 0 & Associates
 
Chartered Accountants
 
(FRN:) 107356W
 

~P~~k" 5 h"ar~nlltP. ang aVI 
(M No.) 131353
 
Date:- 29/05/2023
 
UDIN:- 23131353BGYNNT3941
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D.S.KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Website: dskcirp.com 

Email ID:ip.dskdl@gmail.com 

Representation By Management 

Date:-26/05/2023 

To Mis P P S C 0 & Associates
 
Chartered Accountants
 
8, Shaniya Enclave,
 
4th Floor, V. P. Road,
 
Vile Parle West,
 
Mumbai: 400 056
 

Sub: Representation for the purpose of audit for the financial year 2022-23. 

Dear Sir, 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Profit and Loss of D S Kulkarni Developers Limited (hereinafter also referred 
to as "the Company"), as at March 31, 2023, and for the period then ended, for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion as to whether tile financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position and results of operations of D S Kulkarni Developers 
Limitedin conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting standards in India. We 
acknowledge our responsibility for the fair presentation in the financial statements of 
financial positions and results of operations in confonnity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Standards in accordance with the recognized Accounting Standards issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia and The Companies Act, 2013.' 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are 
material. Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or 
misstatement of accounting information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, 
makes it probable that the judgement of a reasonable person relying on the infonnation would 
be changed or influenced by this omission or misstatement. 

We confinn that to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of 26thMay, 2U23, the 
infOlmation provided here is true and correct and we have made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing yourselves. 

We confinn to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of 26th May, 2023, the following 
representations have been made to you during your audits: 

------~ 

Regd. Office: DSK HOUSE, 1187/60, J.M. ROAD SHIVAJINAGAR,
 
PUNE - 411005 (MAHARASHTRA)
 

Address for communication: Office No 40, 2nd Floor, Sanas Plaza,
 
Bajirao Road, 1302 Shukrawar Peth, PUNE - 411002
 



D.S.KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED
 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Website: dskcirp.com 

Email ID:ip.dskdl@gmail.com 

A. General: 

1.	 That in preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed. 

2.	 There are no material transaction that have not been properly recorded in the 
accounting records underlying the financial statements. 

3.	 We have made available to you all the books of account and supporting 
documentation and all minutes of the meetings of shareholders, those charged with 
governance of the company and the Board of Directors, or summaries of actions of 
recent meeting for which minutes have not been prepared, from the beginning of 
the financial year to the data of this letter. 

4.	 The following have been properly recorded and when appropriate, adequately 
disclosed in the financial statements: 

a.	 Related - party transactions, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing 
arrangements, guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related 
parties. 

b.	 Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the company is contingently 
liable. 

c.	 Significant estimates and material concentrations known to management are 
disclosed properly. 

d.	 Losses arising from sale and purchase commitments. 

e.	 Agreement and options to buy back assets previously sold. 

f.	 Assets pledged as collateral. 

5.	 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including commissions. 

6.	 There have been no irregularities involving management or employees who have a 
significant role in the system ofintemal contrel that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 
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7.	 The company has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non - compliance. 

8.	 The company have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying 
value or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

9.	 There are no formal or informal compensating balance arrangements with any of 
our cash and investment accounts. 

10.	 The Cash Balance as at March 31, 2023, has been physically verified and agreeing 
as shown in the financial statements, by the management at Rs. 19,915/-. We have 
not physically verified the cash balance as on March, 31,2023 as the same is not in 
possession or access to the assets of the company to the Resolution Professional as 
all assets of the company is attached by various Government authorities. 

11.	 That all the current Assets and Current Liabilities are stated at their realizable value. 

12.	 The company has not given any guarantees for loan taken by others form bank, or 
financial institutions. 

13.	 We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of applicable laws, for 
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities especially involving management or the employees having a 
significant role in internal control and material effect on financial statements. 

14.	 We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment ofrisk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated a result of fraud. 

15.	 We have disclosed to you all information provided regarding our knowledge of any 
allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the company's financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulations, 
or others. 

16.	 Our responsibility for the design, implementation, and operation of internal control 
that is designed to prevent and detect fraud and errors. 
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17.	 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for 
and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of applicable accounting 
standards in India. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related 
parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are 
aware. The transactions have been taken place at the market competitive prices 
only. 

18.	 The payments covered under section 40A (3) were made by account payee cheques 
drawn on a bank or account payee bank draft. 

19.	 All the loans, deposits or specified sum exceeding the limit specified in section 
269SS/ST are accepted or repaid through an account payee cheque or an account 
payee bank draft. 

20.	 The information regarding applicability ofMSMED Act 2006 to the various 
vendors has not been received from them. Hence, information as required vide 
clause 22 of chapter V ofMSMED Act, 2006 is not being given. 

21.	 The loans taken from directors of the company or their relatives are out of their own 
funds and not any borrowed funds in pursuance of relevant provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013. Necessary declarations in this behalf have been obtained by 
th~ company from them. 

22.	 There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning non ­
compliance with or deficiencies in financial reporting practices. 

23.	 There are no: 

a.	 Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be 
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a 
loss contingency. 

b.	 Unascertained claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of 
assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with 
As-17, Accounting for contingenr;e'''. 

24.	 That the company has not violated any provisions regarding Deduction of Tax at 
source or Collection of Tax at source as prescribed by Income Tax Act, 1961 
except for delayed part on that-accoun . 'fo the best of our Knowleoge and 5eliefs- ---:~~~~~ 
no events have occurred subsequent to the Balance Sheet date and through the date 
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of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosw-e in the aforesaid 
financial statements or notes there to. 

25.	 There are no cases pending in any court of law against the Company, Board 
member, Promoter. 

26.	 The details of disputed dues in case of Income Tax which have not been deposited 
on account of dispute are as under. 

Sr 
No. 

1 

From where dispute is pending 

High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 

Assessment 
Year 

2004-05 

As at 3151 

March '23 (Rs. 
In lakhs) 

67.25 
2 High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2005-06 152.02 
3 High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2006-07 311.45 
4 
5 

High Court of Judicatw-e, Mumbai 
High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 

2007-08 
2008-09 

418.80 
I 116.00 

6 
7 
8 

High Court of Judicatw-c, Mumbai 
High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 
High Court of Judicatw-e, Mumbai 

2009-10 
20iO-II 
2011-12 

~ 156.93 
9Y.~5 

35.47 

I 

9 High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2012-13 36.15 

27.	 There are no black listing / show causes / reprimand, etc. of the company by any 
agency / Government / District Magistrate. 

28.	 The Board Members and the Directors are not engaged in carrying out activities 
which are in direct conflict of the activities of the company. 

29.	 There is no involvement in anti - national activities and / or money laundering. 

30.	 We have not entered into any constmction contract during the year. 

31.	 We have recorded or disclosed, as appropriate all liabilities, both actual and 
contingent, if any. 

B.	 Accounting Policies: 

1.	 'FIle accounting policies which are material or critical in determining the results of 
operations for the year or financial positions is set out in the flllancial statements are 
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consistent with those adopted in the financial statements for the previous year. The 
financial statements are prepared on accrual basis except discounts, claims and 
rebates, which cannot be determined with certainty in the respective accounting 
year. 

2.	 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
 
measured at fair value, are reasonable.
 

3.	 The significant assumptions used in preparation of financial statements
 
appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on
 
behalf of the company.
 

C.	 Assets: 

The company has satisfactory title to all owned assets and are duly utilized for the
 
business purpose only. There are no liens or encumbrances on sHch assets, nor has any
 
asset been pledged as collateral, except for those as mentioned in schedule enclosed.
 

D.	 Fixed Assets: 

The net book values at which fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet are arrived at: 
a.	 After taking into account all capital expenditure or additions thereto, but no
 

expenditure being chargeable to revenue.
 

b.	 After eliminating the cost and accumulated depreciation relating to items sold,
 
discarded or destroyed.
 

c.	 After providing adequate depreciation on fixed assets during the period. 

E.	 Capital Commitments: 
At the Balance Sheet date, there were no outstanding commitments for capital 
expenditure. 

F.	 Investments: 
1.	 All the investments shown i!" t!1e Balan('~ Sheet are "Long Term Investment". 

2.	 Long Term quoted investments are valued at cost, less provision for permanent
 
diminution in their value.
 

A,c.. 0",,(>e--	 t. \ o~r::; 

;. I	 il -Cull '0 
Z '0 _P""J1\"::7 
do '" 2U'-2'l1 I ~ ,.-.
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3.	 Long Term unquoted investments are valued at cost. 

4.	 All the investments belong to the company and they do not include any investments 
held on behalf of any other persons. 

5.	 The company has clear title to all its investments. There are no charges against the 
investments of the company except those appearing in the records of the company. 

G.	 Inventories: 
Inventories at the year end consisted of the following: 

Particulars Amount 
Rs.(in Lakhs) 

Raw Materials 245.94/-
Consumables ."" 

Work - in ­ Progress 1,55,540.42/­
Finished Goods 1,381.64/­

Other Stock 
Total 1,57,168.00/­

1.	 We have not physically verified the inventory as on 31 st March, 2023, as the same is 
not in possession or access to the inventories of the company to the Resolution 
Professional as ali inventories of the company is attached by the Government 
authorities. 

2.	 All goods included in the inventory are the property of the company, and none of 
the goods are held as consignee for others or as a bailee. 

3.	 All inventories owned by company, wherever located, have been recorded. 

4.	 Inventories do not include goods sold to customers for which delivery is yet to be 
made. 

5.	 Inventories have been valued at cost or net realizable value, which ever is less and 
is on FIFO Basis. 

6.	 In our opinion there is no excess, slow moving, damaged or obsolete inventories, 
hence, no provision is required to be made. 

7.	 No item of inventories has a net realizable value in the ordinary course of business, 
which is less than the amount at which it is included in inventories. ~~~~~~;--
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H. Debtors, Loans and Advances: 
The Following items appearing in the Books as at March 31, 2023. 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 
1. Trade Receivables 

Particulars 
Less than 6 

months 
6 months­

1 year 
1-2 year More than 3 

year 
Trade Receivable 

a. Undisputed Trade Receivable 
Considered Good 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b. Undisputed Trade Receivable 
Considered Doubtful 

Nil Nil Nil 
2663.88/­

c. Disputed Trade Receivable 
Considered Good 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

d. Disputed Trade Receivable 
Considered Doubtful 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

2. Loans and Advances. 

Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) 
Considered good Nil 
Considered Doubtful 22.286.27 / ­

Less: Provision Nil 
Net Loans and Advance 22,286.22/­

1. Liabilities: 

1.	 We have recorded all known liabilities in the financial statements except 
retirements benefits discounts, claims and rebates. 

2.	 We have disclosed in Notes on Accounts all guarantees, if any we have given to 
third parties. 

3.	 There are contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2023. 

Particulars Amount (inSr. 
Lakhs)No 

Guarantee in respect of secured loans obtained by another 10,000/·
I. 

company 
- ­ -

Balance of secured loans as at end of year 8,152.79/­2. 
Guarantee to Government Authorities 780.40/­3. 
Tax Matters under appeal 4. 15,119.12/­
Cases filed against the company ­ 339.8£/­5. 

812.16/­6. Cenvat credit availed 
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4.	 The trade payables appearing in the Books of Accounts as at March 31, 2023, is Rs. 
6,036.56/- Lakhs. For which we are unable to provide bifurcation ofMSME and 
Others. 

1. Provisions for Claims and Losses: 

1.	 There are no known losses and claims of material amounts for which provision is 
required to be made. 

2.	 There have been no events subsequent to the Balance Sheet date which require 
adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes there on. 

3. No claims in connection with litigation have been or are expected to be received. 

K. Statement of Profit and Loss: 

Except as disclosed in the financial statements, the results for the year were not 
materially affected by: 

1. Transaction of a nature not usually undertaken by the company. 

2.	 Circumstances of an exceptional or non - recurring nature. 

3. Charges or credits relating to prior years. 

4.	 Changes in accounting policies. 

For and on behalf of D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

h~ 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
Resolution Professional 
IBBI/lPA-OOl/lP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 
AFA No. AAlI11222/02/301123/104973 valid till 30/11123 
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D. S. KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED
 
CrN : IA5201PN1991PLC063340
 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st Maceh 2023
 

Particulars Notes 
As at 31 Much 2023 
(AmI. in Rs. Lakhs) 

As at 31 March 2022 
(AmI. in Rs. Lakhs) 

1 ASSETS 
1 Non-Current Assets 

(0) Prop""'·, plant and c'luipment 3 2408 286.9.1 
(c) Investment propnry 4 2,724.91 2,724.91 
(d) Other lntangibk asse" 5 5.46 5.46 
(f) Financial Assets 

i) Im:('sUllt-fi(S " 284.95 284.95 
;:j I.o"m 7 2,605,78 7,166.55 

(g) Orher ~on-(urrcnr assets ~ 1,144.64 l,09ll.25 

Total Non·Curr~nt Assets .. 7,010.12 11,567.06 

2 Current Assets 
'J 157,168.00(a) rnvcnrork's 157,168.00 

(b)	 f7inanci;l],\sscrs 
i) Tracie Rtc<:i\ abies 10 2,663.88 2,663.88 

61,66ii) (:Ish "nd Cash (.:gul\':\lcnrs II 45.89 
22,286.22iii) l..o;lns 12 22,289.46 

0,72(c) Olher Current AsselS 1:\ 4.91 
182,180.48 182,172.14Total Current Assets 

T oral Assets 189,190.60 193,739.20 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
I Equhy 

14 2,580.10 2,580.10(a) Share capi"'l 
18,802.47(b) Uther <-quity 15 23,669.85 
21,382.57 26,249.95 

LIAB ILITIES 
1 Non·Current Liabilities 

(a) Finaneialliabilities 
·/2.817.~0i) Borro\\'ing:­ n,X17.7tJ 

42.68(h) Deferred tax liabilities I 'et) 42.68 
2,091.57(c) Orht'''' n n·currcnr liabilities 2,091.57 

74,951.95 74,951.95 

2 Current liabilities 
(a) Financialli:-\bilitit's 

. 10,579.90 i) Borrowings 19 10,.196,01 
21) 6,041.77ii) Trade pay;\bles 5,9tJ9.9tJ 

(,9,610.3521iii) Othn !inanci:lliiabilitk's 69,610.35 
(b) Other curn;nr liabiJiu(.:s 22 2,121.7i 2,117.10 

4,502.29(c) Prm'isions 2.1 4,5tJ3.94 
92,856.08 92,537.30 

Total Equity and Liabilities 189,190.60 193,739.20 

Contingent Liabilities not provided for: 24 .15,204.35 35,204.35 
1,2Corporate information and statement of accounting policies 

°lh,; ;lccompanying nOtcs arc an intq;)l"fal part of [hc~<.: fin::mcial $fafCmcnr~. 

As per our audit report of ("\'en date, 

For P P S C 0 & Associates.	 For DS Kulkarni De,·lopers Lmiled 
Chartered Accountants	 (.\ company under Corporate Insol....ency -Resolution Process hy 
Firm Registration No, : l07356W 

A"_ ..t~ ~"k"''''':,"'" 0:""
",;-;;...

;~'
 Mr.M.:::l	 ,:"~ pr~~
 

P:;.rtncr RCf,~stration no. IBBljIP,\·OOljIP-POO714j2017·18jl 122" ~ '" 1:- -ca' I ~ 
Membership.No.13B53 (lne affairs, business and property of OS Kulkarni Oed -); 1 0!!A. 

I.imired arc being m:ma~d by the; Resolution profcssional '\ ,116 act- .,1 .. ,::J 
as, agent of the Company only without any person"Iliahilil:\' ~ ~.. :',~ll 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai ~ 1'" ,d' 

Dale: 2~th May, 2023 Date: 29th May, 2023	 -- ~ 

UDIN:- 2313U53BGYNNT3941 

~
 
~1 
~ 
~ 

~; 



D. S. KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Particulars Notes 
31st March 23 

(Amt. in Rs. Lakhs) 
31st March 22 

(AmI. in Rs. Lakhs) 

I. 
II. 

Revenue from operarions (G ross) 
Orher income 

Total Revenue (I + II) 

25 
26' 

-
459 
4.59 

111. Expenses: 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 
Changes in in\'cntori(;s of 1:inished Goods, \\'ork-in- Progrt:ss and 

Stock-in-Trade 

Employee benetlts expense 
Officc& admin e'penses 
Fin:lnce costs 

Depreciation and amonization expense: 

Corporare social responsibiliry expenses 

Total expenses 

27 
28 

29 
:;0 
31 
32 
33 

264.06 

42.55 

306.61 

U.OO 

210.87 

60.18 

271.06 

IV. 
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and lax (1- IV) (III-IV) 

(306.61) (266.46-) 

V. Exceptional Items 4,560.77 -

VI. Profit/(Ioss) before tax (V-VI) (4,867.38) (266.46) 

VII. 

VIII. 

Tax expense: 
Current tax 

Adjustrner.t of Depreciation on account of transitional provision 
of the Companies ,\(t, 2013 

Dt=ferrt:d tax I 

Total 

Ptofit (Loss) fOt the period from continuing operations (VII­
VIII) 

(4,867.38) (266.46) 

IX. Profit/ (loss) from discontinued opetations 

X. Ta.x expense of discontinued operations 

XI. 
Profit/ (loss) from Discontinucd opcnltions (after tax) (X-XI) (4,867.38) (266.46) 

XII. Profit/(Ioss) for the period (IX+XII) (4,867.38) (266.46) 

XIII. Othcr Comprehensive Income 
A (i) Items that will not be rcchssified to profit or loss 

(a) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit scheme 
(i) Income: tax rdaring to items that will not be reclassifil:d to 

profit or loss 
(h) gains and losses from investments in eqoity insu:uments 

designated at fair valuc through Ol:hcr comprchcnsi\·c incomc 

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassitied to 

profit or loss 

Tot"l 
13 (i) Items that ,,'ill be rec1a»ified ro protit or loss 

(ii) Income (RX relating to items that will be reclassi fied to profit 
or loss 

Tot"l 



Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) 
XIV. (Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive 

Income for the period) (4,867.38) (266.46) 

XV. 

(i) 

(ii) 

XVI. 

(i) 

(ii) 

XVII. 

(i) 

(ii) 

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation): 
B:isic 

Diluted 

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation): 
Basic 
Diluted 

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing 
operation): 

Basic 
Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements. 

As per our audit report of even dare. 

For P P S C a & Associates. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. : 107356W 

• 

For OS Kulkarni Devlopers Limited 
(A company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process by 
NCLT Order dat~d 26th S~ptember, 2019) 

Membership.No.131353 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumb2! 

Date: 29th May, 2021 Date: 29th May, 2023 

UDI!'!:- 23131353BG'rNNT3941 



D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.
 
CIN: IA5201PN1991PLC063340
 
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities 
1 Net Profit before T.x & Ext...ordin.ry Item, 

AdjilS/lllt"tJ /. monril, PBT /0 "'I rasbflo/P': 
i Depreciauon
 

ii
 Interest Expendirure
 
iii Interest & Di\"idencl ReceiveJ
 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 

2 Working capi/olo4;IIS/IlIff/1; 

i Increase (Decrease) in Shon Term Borrowings
 

ij lncrease (DcCrl::3se;;) in Other Cuw.:nt Liahilitks
 
iii Inc(~ase (D(;cr~ase) in Short Term Proyisions
 
i,· Increase (Decrease) in Other Financia.l Liabilities
 

\' Increast: (Decrease:) in Trade Payabks
 
vi ([ncrease) D".crease in Inventories
 
VII (I ncrease) Dc:.crcase in Receivables
 

viii (Increast) Dccn:ase in Shon tenn Loans & Advances
 

x (Incn:ase) Decrease in Other non-<:urrenr aSSt:rs
 

x.i (Increase) Decrease in Other curren( aSsets 

Cash generated from Operations 

i Income Tax Paid 
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 
Cash Row from Investing Activities 

i Purchase of Proper,)·, Plant and Equipment 
(Incrc:ase) Decrease in Long term Loans & Advances 

iii Sale of Propeny, Pbnt and Equipment 
iv S~le of Im"esrments 

" Interest & Dividend Recei,·ed 
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 
Cash Flow from Finaneing Acti·/ities 

i Interest Paid 
jj Increase (Decr~sc) in BorrowinJ!S
 

iii Incr~se (Decct'ase) in O~hec lon~ t("m1li~hilii;t:S
 

Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C) 
:-':et increase/decrease in eash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash & Casb Equivalent as at beginning of the year 
Cash & Cash E uivalent as at end of the 'ear 
l'\ore to rhe Cash rIo\\' Statement: Cash and Cash ECJuivalents include 
Cash and Bank Balances 

Corporate information & statement of accounting polkies
 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these tinancial statements.
 

As per our audit report of even date.
 

For P P S C 0 & Associates. For DS Kulkarni Devlopers Limited 

Chartered Accountants (..\ company undcr Corporatc Insolvcney Resolution Proce,s 

Firm Registration No. : 107356W by NCLT Order dated 26th Septcmber, 2019) 

Y'r Ay--r-1. 
Mr. Manoj Agarwal 

Partner Registration no. IBBI/IPA-IKJI/IP-POO714/2017·18/11222 

MeOlbership.No.131353 (fhe aff.irs, busines' and proper')· of DS Kulkarni Devlopers 
Jjmitc::d ace being managed by the Resolution professional who 

act as a"ent of the Company only withour any personalliabilir)".) 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 

Date: 29th May, 2023 Date: 29th May, 2023 

UDIN:- 23131353BGYNNT3941 



D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. 

CIN: lA5201PN1991PLC063340 

Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 3/31/2023 

1 Corporate information 
D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Acr, 1956. Its shares are listed on rwo recognised stock exch?nges in India i.e BSE & NSE 

Its shares arc listed on rhe Bombay Srock Exchange (ESE) in India. Thc Company is engaged in the business of real estare
 
devdopment in India.
 

An application for initiation of corporare insolvency resolution process ('URP') of D S Kulkarni Devlcopers Limited was
 
admitted by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, ;vIumbai vide order dated 26 September 2019 under the Insolvency
 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('IBC) and hence currently, Ir is under CIRP. Mr. Manoj Agarwal (IBBI regisrration number
 
(IBBl/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-18/11222) was appointed as lnrerim Rcsolurion Professional ORP') vide this order.The
 
matter a!,'ainst the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process is pending for order before the Hon'ble NCLT vide CP
 
161:>/2019.
 

Accordingly, the Resolurion Professional had been managing rhe operarions of the Company, as a going concern. inviting,
 
vetting and admitting the claims againsr rhe Companl' and managing/supervising rhe operarions of rhe Company as part of
 
CIRP.
 

The sranchlone financial sratemenrs are prepared for the year ending 31st March 2023.
 

The IND AS financial statcments werc approved by rhe Resolution Potfessional in absence of properly eonsrituted Board of
 
Directors, whose powers remain suspended during Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ('erRP').
 

2 Significant accounting policies 
2.0 I	 Date of adoption oflnd AS: 

The net worth of DSKDL as per the audited standalone B/S as at 31/03/2016 exceeds Rs 500 cr. Hence, the date of adoption 
of IND AS for the Company & its SlIbsidiaries is 01/04/2016 (Rule 4 (1)(ii)(a) of thc Companies (Indian Accounting 
Srandards) Rules, 20 I5_) 
The company needs CO prepare standalone financial statements foHowing IND AS for the Company & irs subsidiaries for 
ftnancial year ending 31/03/2023 (Rule 4 (9) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.) 

2.02	 Ind AS Financial Statements for FY 2022-23 
The Ind AS fInancial statements of d,e Company will be as foHows:
 

i Balance sheet as at 31/03/2022 and 31/03/2023
 
ii Proti: and Loss Statement for the year ended 31/03/2022 and 31/03/2023
 

iii C"h Flo\" Staremenr for rhe year coded 31/3/2022 and 31/3/2023
 
IV Notes to Financial Sratements
 

2.03	 Iud AS which are not applicable to the Company: 
i	 Ind AS 26 - Accounting & Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans: This Ind AS is not applicable since [he Company 

is nor in business of offering Retirement BenefIt Plans 

ii	 Ind AS 29 - Financial Reporting in the Hyperinflationary Economies: This lnd AS is nor applicable since the 
Company does not operare in Hyperinflationary Economics. 

iii	 Ind AS 41- Agriculture: This Ind AS is not applicablc since rhe Company is not engaged in agriculrure. 

iv	 Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payments: This Ind ,\S is not applicable since the Company has not entered into contracts 
which requite shate-based payments. 

v	 Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations: This Ind AS is not applicable since rhe Company has nut entered into any 
atrangements of the narure of mergers & / or demergers. 

vi	 Ind AS 104 - Insurance Contracts: This Ind AS is not applicable since the Company is nor engaged in the business of 
issuing insurance contracts. 

vii	 Ind AS 106 - Exploration & Evaluation of Mineral Resources: This Ind AS is not applicable since ,he Company is nor 
engaged in the business of exploration of mineral resources. 



viii	 Incl AS 108 - Operating Segments: This Ind AS is nor applicable since the Company is engaged only in one segment, 
namely, real estate development. 

LX	 Ind AS 114 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts: This lnd AS is not applicable since the Company does not conduct rate­
regulated activities. 

x	 Ind As 116- Lease: The Company h" not recognised any lease rentals in the books due to "'ek of agreement and other 
evidence in records a"d hence, Ind AS I 16 i, nor applicable 

2.04 Basis of preparation 
i	 On September 26,2019 rhe Hon'ble Narional Company La\\" Tribunal (NCL1) had admjtte<! the petition for initiating the 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution (CIR) Process under the pro\'isions of the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (TBC). 
Under rhe CIR Process, a resolution plan is to be prepared and appro\-ed by the cae. Furrher the resolution plan 
approved by the COC will also need ",CLT approval. As rhe Company is under resolution process, the financial 
st.1tt:ments h<l\'e been presented on a Hgoing concern" hasis. 

ii	 l\ccotdinp;ly, the Company has prepared financial sratements which comply in all marerial respecrs wirh rhe relevant 
provisions of the Act and with the [nd :\S applicable for periods ending on 31st March 2023, togerher with the 
comparative period data as ar and for the "car ended 31 st March 2022. 

'"	 These financial statements have been presented in accordance with the pro\"isions of Division II of Schedule III to the 
Companies (\Ct, 2013. 

iv	 These financi<1.l statements are prepared under the historic~1 cost convention, unless required / permitted othcrwise by 
applicable lnd AS. 

v	 This is the first set of the Comp~ny's staodalone fi.n~ncial statements in which Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with 
customers, has been applied. 

"i	 As required by Section 128(1) of the i\ct, these financi~1 statements arc prepared in accordance with the accrual method of 
accounting with revenues recognized and expenses accounted on their accrual including provisions / adjustments for 
committed obligations and amounts determined as p~yablc Dr receivable during the period. 

vu The pn..:pararion of financial statc.;ITIt:nts in conformity with Indian AS requires the management to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions, that ~ffect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of aSSets and 
liabiliries and disclosures of continge~t liabilities at the date of the end of the reporting periods and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses for the reporting periods. Although these estimates are based on the management's best 
knowledge of current e\"ents and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates CDuld result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustn:cnt to the carr~'ing alTIOtilHS oC 'J5"Ct~ v!' liabilities in future periods. Acrual results may differ 
fron1 thc~l' estimates. Fsrir:.;:ltt..:'i a~'.1 umll.:rlyir.;.; ;1:SS11l"'p(i:)n~ an: ~'cvlc\Vcd on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

es(ima[es are recognised in the year in which the estimate is re\·i~cJ. 

viii The standalone financial statements are prcscnrcd in INR and 3ll \'alues arc rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 1,00,000), 
except when otherwise indicated. 

2.05 Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: 
i	 The identification of an entity's signific.u',i .H.VJllluing policies is an important aspect of the financial statcnlents. rnd /\S 

I.II? requires disclosure oi the significant accbunting policies comprising 

a the measurement basis (or bases) used in preparing the financial statemenrs and 

10 the other accounting policies used that are relevant to an understanding of the financial statements. 

ii	 As required by lod AS 101 the Comp~ny has used the same accounting policies in its opening Ind AS balance sheet and 
throughout all periods presenred in its subsequent [nd AS financial statements (the first annual financial statements in 
which an entity adopts Ind AS by an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance with lnd AS). Those 3ccounting 
policies comply ,,;th each [nd AS efiecti\·c at the end of its tirs! Ind AS reporting period, except as specitied in lnd i\S 101 

(e.g., when the exceptio'1s in [nd AS 101 prohibit retrospect;\"e application or the Company avails itself of one of lnd AS 
10 I 's volunrary exemptions). The Company does not apply different versions of Ind AS that were effective at earlier dates. 
The Company may apply a new Ind AS that is not yet mandatory if that [nd AS permits early application. 



iii Current versus non-current classification - Ind AS 1.60 
a The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classificarion. 

b An asset is treated as current when it is: 

~ Expected to be realised Or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating c)'cle 

~ Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

~ Expected to be realised within twelye months after the reporting period, except work-in-progress of real 

estate development projects . 

... Ca:ih or cash equivalent unless restricted from being l.:xchanged or u::icd to senk' a liability tor at least rwdvl:: 

months after the reporting period 

All other :1sscts are classified as non-current. 

d A liability is treated as current when: 

~ It is e'pecred to be settled in nonnal operating cycle 

~ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

~ It is due to be serded within tv;e!ve months after the reporting period, or 

~ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of d,e liability for at least rweh'e months after the 

reporting periud 

e The Company classifies ail other liabilities as non-current.
 

f Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current aSSets and liabilities.
 

g The opetating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisat.ion in cash and
 

cash equivalents. The Company has identified 3-5 y~ars as its operating cycle. 

2.06	 Ind AS 2 - Inventories 
i Inventories to be valued at the lower of cost and net re<:tlisable nlue. 

Ii Coses incurred in construction of tach project arc accounted for as follows: 

a	 Construction materials: cost includes cost of purchast= and orht'r costs incLu'red in bringing the in\"cntories to 
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis. 

b	 Finished tenements and wotk in progress: cust includes cost of direct materials and labour and a propottion of 

owrheads bdsed on the normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis. 

c Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 

location ane! c:olldilllll1. rost is determined on wei,ghred average basis. 

iii Initial cost of inventories includes tht: rnlllSfn of gains and losst:s on qualifying cash flow hedges. r,,:cohrnised in el, in 

respect of the purchases of raw materials. 

iv	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, iess estimated costs of completion and 
the estiinated costs necessary to make the sale. 

The management of the company has valued the invetnories at Cost complying with the requirements cf IND 

AS2 

2.07	 Ind AS 7 - Cash and cash equivalents 
Ind AS 7.18 allows -entities to report cash flows from opemting acti"ities using either direct method or indirect method. 

The regulation 34(2)(c ) of Chapter IV of Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Oblig.ltions & Disclosure 

Requirements) Re,,'ldatiuns, 2015, requires listed companies tu present cash flow from operating activities only under 

indirect method. The Company presents its cash flows using indirect method. 

ii Certain working capital adjustments and other adjustments included in the accompanying statement of cash flow's reflect 

the change in balances between 3 I /03/2022 and 31/03/2023. 

iii The Company has reconciled profit before tax to net cash flows fw:r. operating aeti,·ities. How'ever, reconciliation uf profit 

after tax is also aeceprable under Ind AS 7. 

iii Cash and cash equi"alent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on har.d and short-term deposits with an uriginal 

maturity of three months or less. which arc subject to an insib'llificant risk of changt.·s in \·alue. 

v	 For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 

deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an int'-'gral part of the Company's 

cash management. 



2.0S	 Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
The Company's Profit & Loss Statement presents profit / loss from ordinary activities. The extra-ordinary or exceptional items 
or changes in accounting estimates and pohcies during the year under review are disclosed separately as per Ind AS 8. 

2.09	 Ind AS 10 - Events after Reporting period 
I	 These financial statements consider appropriately the imp.cr of events which occur after the reporting period but before 

the financial statements ate approved and which have an effect on the balance sheet and profit and loss statement. 

u	 The Company recognises a hability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the 
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in 
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly 
in equity. 

ill Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement 
recognised direcdy in equity. 

". Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount 
of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

2.10	 Ind AS 12 - I ncome taxes 
i Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 

ii Current income rax assets and liabihties ate measured at the amount expected to be recovered &om or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at 
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. 

iii	 Deferred tax is provided using the hability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and habihties 
and their carrying amounts for financial reponing purposes at the reponing date. 
Deferred tax asserS arc recq,'f1ised for all deductiblc temporary differences, the C3try forward of unused tax credits and anr 
unused tn losses. Deferred tax assets are to be recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary chfferences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilized 

iv	 The Company has not recognised any deferred tax asset/liability in addition to iast year as the Ccmpany is 
making losses and probable that taxable profit will be available against whieh (he deduedble temporary 
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax crechts and unused tax losses can be utilized_ 

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 
\.	 Expenses 2nd assets arc rc.:cognised nct of the .1mount of sales/ valll<': added taxes paid, except: 

~ When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, 
the tax paid is recognised os part of the cost of acquisirion of rhe ,sset or as pan of the expense item, as applicable 

~ \Vhen receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included 

\"l The net amount of tax recoverable from, or parable to, the taxation authority is included as part of recei\·ablcs or payables 
in the balance sheet. 

2.It Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and Equipment 
i	 Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), PPE ,,"ere carried in rhe balance sheer at cost of acquisition less accumulated 

depreciation 3nd accumulated impairment losses, if any. In exercise of the option vested in the Company as per Para 
29 of lnd AS 16, the Company has chosen the cost model as per Para 30 of Ind AS 16 for aU items of PPE. 
Accordingly, the Company has not revalued the PPE at 1st April 2015. 

ii	 Under the lnd AS comphant Schedule JlI, land and building are presented as two separate classes of PPE. In contrast, 
parah>raph 37 of lnd AS 16 appears to be ha\·ing flexibility to treat land and building either as one class or as two separate 
classes. Ir also stateS that a class of PPE is a grouping of assets of a similar nature and use in an entity's operations. 
However, in accordance with Para 58 of Ind AS 16 and based on the nature, characteristics and risks ofland and 
building, the management has detennined that they constitute two separate classes of properry for 
presentation in the financial statemems_ 



IU	 The Company has recognized items oi property, plant & eguipment (PPE) in accordance with lnd AS 16.07 only if it is 
probable that future economic benefits a,wciated with the item will flow to the entity and if the CO" of acguisition or 
construction of the items ofPPE can be measured reliablv in accordance with Ind AS 16.10-16.27. 

LV	 The cost of PPE items includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and eguipment if the recognition criteria are met. 
When significant parrs nf plant and eguipmene arc tcguired to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them 
separately oosed on their specific usefulli\-es. 

v \Vhen a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amoune of the plant and cguipment as a 

replacemene if the recognition criteria are satisfied. 

VL The present value of the expected COSt for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the 
respecti'"e asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

I'll	 As required by Schcdule II to the Companies ACl, 2013, the management estimate every year, on the basis of technical 
assessment, the useful life and residual value of items of PPE, if the useful life / residual value are different from that 

specified in Schedule II 

viii	 Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis ovet the estimated useful life of the assets in accordance with 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

IX	 An item of PPE ~nd any significant part inirially n.:cognisco is dert:cogniscd upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its usc or dispo,al. Any gain Ot loss arising on derecognition of the aS5er (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and tbe carrying amOunt of the asset) is included in rhe income statement 

wh<::n the asset is derecobrniscd. 

2.12	 Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits 
i The Company is reguired en assess the nature of its employee benetits and make the relevant disclnsures 

ii	 Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other 
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund 
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders rhe related sen-ice. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service 
received before tbe balance sheet date exceeds tbe contribution already paid, tbe deticit payable to the scheme is 
recognized as a liabiliry airer deducting rhe contribution alread\' paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds rhe 
contribution due for SCI vices received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that 
the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in funlre payment or a easb refund. 

iii	 The Company operates a defined henefit gratuity pian in Indi", which "quires contributions to be made to a separately 
administered fund managed by th~ Life Insurance Corporation of India. The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. The Comp"ny has not made provision for the entire 
amount calculated by LIC in respect of its liability under the aforesaid plan and ,liso not paid the entire amount. 

IV	 Past service costs arc recognised in profit or los~ on th(~ earlier of:
 

~ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
 

~ 11,e date that the Company rcrq,'11ises related resrrucruring COStS
 
v	 Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the ncr detined be'netit liabiliry or asset. The Company recognises 

the following changes in the net detined benctit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss: 

~	 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-sen-ice costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non routine 
settlements; and 

~ Net interest expense or income 
IV	 The Company is also n:C]uircd to srJ.te its policy for termination benefits, cmploYl:l.: bc:nefir n:imbursements and ben<:fir risk 

sharing. Since these are not applicable to the Company, the disclosures related to such benefits have not been 
made. 

2.13	 Ind AS 20 - Government grants 
i GO\'ernment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all areached 

conditions ,vill be complied with_ 

ii \\11en the !,'fant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis m-e; the periods that the related 
costs, for which it is intl:ndc.:o to compc.:nsML, an.: <..:xp<..:nsc.:d. 

III	 When the grant rel.tes to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts O\U the expected useful life of the related 

asset. 

IV	 \'{'hen the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets. the asset and the grant arc rccordc..:d at f:lir "altH..; amounts and 

released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the undcrlring aSset i.c. 

by cgU:ll annual instalments. 



v	 When loans or similar assistance arc provided by governments or related instirutions, with an interest rate below the 

current appticable market rate, the effect of this favourable intetesr is regarded as a government grant. The loan or 

assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between 

the initial carrying value of the loan and the ptoceeds r«eived. The loan is subsequenrly measured as per the accounting 

poticy appticable to financial tiabilities. 

vi	 The Company has chosen to present grants related to an e'pense item as other income in the statement of profit and loss. 

Howevet, the Company has not received any gtants from the Government during the year under review. 

2.14	 Ind AS 21- Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 

1 The Company's standalone fmancial statements ate presented in I~R, which is the company's functional cutreney. 

jj	 Transactions in foreign currencies arc initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency Spot rates at the date 

the transaction first qualities fOt tecognition. Howe"er, fot ptactical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if rhe 

average approximates the actual rare at the dare of the transaction. 

ill Monetary assets and tiabitiries denominated in foreign Cltn-encies are rranslated at the functional currency SpOt rates of 

exchange at the reporting date. 

IV Exchange differences arising on settlement or ttanslation of monetary irems arc recognised in profit Or loss with the 

exception of the following: 

Exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of a reporting entity's net investment in a foreign 

operation arc reco!,nised in profit or loss in the separate financial statementS of the reporting entiry or the 

individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. 

- b	 Exchange differences "ising on monetary items that are desib'11ated " part of the hedge of the Company's net 

investment of a foreign operation arc recognised in OCI unt.il the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the 

cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. 

Tox charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are al", recorded in OCt. 

v	 Non-monetary irems thar arc measured in [l,;rms of historical cost in a fon..:ign currency are translated using rht' exchange 

rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a forei!,'fI currency are translated 

using the exchange rates at the date when the fair "alue is determined. 'fhe gain or loss arising on translation of non­

n10nctary items measured at fair \·~iu<.: is treated in line with the n.:cognition of the gajn or loss on the change in f~ir \ alto;,: 

of the itc,;m (i.e.. tGll1slatlon Jiffcrences nn itc:m" whose [:'lIT value g:lin Of loss is recobrniscd i~1 OClllf profit c:" loss are :-!.lso 
recognised in ocr or profit or loss, respectively). 

vi	 The Company considered the two options available uncb Indian GAi\P, AS 11 -The Effects of changes in Foreign 

Exchange Rates with regard to accounting for exchange differencc:s arising on long-term (i.e. having a term of 12 month ... 

or more at the d"te of its origination) foreign currency monetary items and decided to tecob'flize such exchan!';e 

differences as income or expense in profit or :oss in the period in which they arise. The Company continues this 

accounting practice because it is in compliance \\~th Ind AS 21. 

2.15 Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs 

i	 Borrowing costs consist of inttn.:st and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Borrowing cost also includes exchJnge differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily 

takes a substantial period of time to gct rcady for its intended use or sale arc capitalised as part of thc cost of the asset. 

ii	 A <Iualifying asset is an asset that nt:n:ssarily rccluircs a suhstantial period of rimt: to g<...:t n.:ady for its intended liSe or sale. 

ijj	 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the ae<}uisition, consffilction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as 

part of thc cost of such aSSetS. All other borrowing costs arc recogni%cd as an expcnse in the period in which thosc arc 

incurred. 



2.16	 lod AS 24 - Related patty and Disclosures 

1 The Company has idcmified related parties as required by lnd AS 24. 
ii In compliance with lnd AS 24, the Company has recognized independent directors & investor directors as key 

management personnel. 

2.17 lod AS 27 & Ind AS 110 - Consolidated and separate Financial Statements 
i	 A~ required by Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not prepared consolidared financial 

statements which comprise the tinancial starements of the Company and its subsidiaties as at 31 March 2020, 31 March 
2021,31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 due to lack of information or books from the said subsidiaries. 

ii	 Consolidated Gnancial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries have not been been prepared by combining on a 
line to-line bnsis by adding togt,;thcr the book values ot like items of aSSl.:fS I uauiLities. im;()mcs and expenses after fully 

eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profits and losses because of una"aiJabiJiry of data 
for consolidared financial statements and its subsidiaries 

2.18	 Ind AS 28 & Ind AS 111- Investment in associates and joint ventures-
i An associate is an entity over which rhe Company has significanr influence. 

ii Significant influence is the power to participare in the financial and operarjng policy decisions of the investee, but is not 
control or joint control over those policies. 

IU A joint "cnture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that haye ioint control of the arrangement have rights to 
the net assets of the joint venture. 

IV Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 
relevtlnr activities require unanimous consent of the p~rtics sharing control. 

v	 The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to 

determine control over the subsidiaries.
 

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company.
 
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Company.
 

VI	 The Company)s invcsm1cnrs in its associate and joint n.:ntun.: an: account<..'<.i for using the cquit~' nH~thod. 

vii	 Under the equiry method, rhe investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying 
amount of the in,-estment is adjusted to recogruse changes in the Company's share of net assets of the associate or joint 
venture since the acquisition dare. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying arnnunt of 
the investment and is not tested for impairment individually. 

After application of the equity method, the Comp."y d~tennines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss 
on its i!1\ L:::ttnc:nt ir: its associate or io!nt vcnillre. At each reporting date, thc Company determines whether there is 

objective evidence thot the investment ill the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such eyiJence, the Company 
calculates the amount of impairrnenr as the difference betv,een the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture 
and irs carrying value, and then recognises the loss as 'Share of prottt of an associate and a joint venture' in rhe statement 

of profit or loss. 

\·iii	 The.:: statement of profit and loss reflects the Conlpany's shan: of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. 
r\ny change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Company's OCr. In addition, wEen there has been a 
change recognised directly in the equiry of the associate or joint ve"ture, the Company reco,;ruses its share of any changes, 
when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Un realised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the 
Company and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture. 

ix	 If an entity's share of losses of an associatl: or a joint n.:nturc l:quals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint ycnturc 

(which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company's net investment in the associate or 
joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the 
extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructi"e obligations or made payments on behalf of rhe associate or 
joint venturc. If thc associate or joint venture subsc<]uently rcp0rts profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those 
profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised. 



x	 The agf,Ffcgate at the Company's share of protit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the 
statement of profit and loss. 

Xl	 Upon loss of signiticant influence over the.:: associate or joiot control over the joint venture, the Company measures ilnd 

recognises any retained investment at its fait value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint 
venture upon loss of sif,'1lificant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from 
disposal is rccognisc~ in prOflt or loss 

XII The Company's interest in joint operations as pet lncl ,\5 111.20 is tecognised in the form of
 

~ Assers, including it, share of any asset> held joinrl)
 

~ Liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly
 

~ Revenue from the sale of its sbare of tbe output arising from the joint operation
 
... Share of the:: revenue from the sale of rh<.:: output by the joint operation 

.... Expens~s, including its share of any expt:nses incurred jointly 

XIII During the financial years under review, the Company may have some interest in any associate or joint venture 
which is not determined due to lack of information or records maintained. 

2.19	 Ind AS 32, lnd AS 107 & Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments : Presentation & Disclosures: 
i A tin,mcial insbllment is am· contract that gi\·es rise to a fmancial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

in:-;rrument of another entity. 

ii	 Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets: All financial assets are recognised initialJy at amorti%ed cost 
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to 

the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or com·ention in the market place (regular wav trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the 
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

III	 Subsequent measurement of financial assets: ror purpose~ of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified 
in fouf categories: 

..... Debt instruments at amortised COSt 

b ~ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
~ Debt instruments, derivatives and e'luity instruments at fair ,'alue through protlt Or loss (FVTPL) 

d ~ Equity instnlments measured at iair value through other comprehen~iveincome (FVTOCl) 

IV Debt instruments at amortised cost: A 'debt in~trument' is measllted at the amortised cost if both the following 
conJitions are met: 

... The asset l~ held \':ir~~in ~ busi!lC$S IliO<.kl who;>e uujcct:'.'c is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, 

and 

b ~ Contractual tetms of the asset give ri,e on ~pecified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal "nd 
interest (5PPl) on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such Gnancial assets are 
subsequently measured at a!Tlorti.ed CGst. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or 
loss. This category generally applies to trade and other recciv~bles. 

\.	 Debt instrument at FVTOCI: A 'debt insrrument' is classified as at the rVTOCI if both of the following criteria arc met: 

~ The objective of the business modcl is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and 

b ~ The asset's contractual cash tlows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category arc measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. 
fair vatuc nlOVCtncnts afC n.:cognizc.:d in the other cornprc.:hc.:nsin..: income (OCI). Howcn;r, the Company n..:c0b,'11izes 

interest illconl~, ilnpaitmcllr losses & rcn:rsals and fon_:ign exch:mge g,lin or loss in the P&L. On tit-recognition of the 

asset, cumulative gain or loss pre,·iously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst 
holding fVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income ,,,ing the Effccri\·c Interest Rate (EIR) method. 

The Company does not have any fmancial asset in the form of debt instruments at FVTOCI. 



VI	 Debt instrument at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual carcgory for debr instruments. Any debt instrument, which docs nOt 
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which orherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI 
criteria, as at FVTPL. Ho\vcver, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or elirninate::s a mc;\:-:;urement or 
recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L. 

The Company has nOt designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 

vii Equity investments at FVTPL: AU e'juity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 arc measured at fair ,·alue. Eelui,,· 
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an aC'luitet in a business combination 
to which Ind AS!03 applies are classified as at FVTPL. 

E'luity instruments included within the ['VTPL category are measuted at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L. 

The Company does not have any financial asset in the form of equity instruments at FVTPL. 

viii	 Equity investments at FVTOCI: For aU other equity insttuments, the Company mal' make an irrevocable election to 

present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fait value. The Company makes such election on an 
instrument-by-instrumcnt basis. The classification is made on initial n:c0,brnirion and is irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to c1as>ify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on [he instrument, 
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling of thc amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of 
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

The Company does not have any financial asset in the form of equity instruments at FVTOCI. 

ix Derecognition: A tinaneial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar tinancial 
assets) is primarily detecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's standalone balance sheet) when: 

~ The tights to receive cash flows from the "set han: expired, or 
~ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material dela)' to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either 

0) th,· Company has transferred substantially all the tisks and rewards of the asset, or 
0i) the Company has neither tr"nsferred nor retained substantiali)' all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has tr<msferred 
contrul of the asset. 
\,'h<::o thl..: Comp:l:1Y li;i,S tratlsft..:rr~d its righrs tn n.:c.~ivc.: Ca~h now" fnJ111 .-\0 assd or has entered i~HO a pass-throL:;h 
arrangement, it c\"aluares if :lnd to \vhat extent it has retained the risks and rewards of nwcc[ship. \X/hen it has neither 

transferred nor retained suhstantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nur lfansferred eontrol of the asset, the 
Company continues to nxognise the transferred asset to the t:xtt:nt of the Company's continuing involvcment. In that 

case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The rransferred asset and the asscciated liability are measured on 
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing invoh'cment that takes the form of a guarantee oYer the transferred asset is measured at the Jo\V\..l IJ[ liJl': 

original carrying amount of the asset and the maximLlm amount of consideration that the Company could be required to 

repay. 

The C"mpany has not derecognized any financial asset. 



,	 Impairment offmancial assets: In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies cxp<:cted credir loss (ECL) model 
for measurement and recognition of impairmenr loss on rhe following financial assets and credir risk exposure: 

~ Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured ar amortised COSt e.g., loans, debr securities, deposirs, trade 
receivables and bank balance 

~ financial assers thar are debt insrruments and are me%ured as at fVTOCI 

~ Lease receivables undet Ind AS 17 

~ Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or anorher financial asser that resulr from transactions that are 
within: the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as 'contractual r,'venue receivablcs' in these tinancial srarcmcnts) 

~ Loan commirments which are not measured as at FVTPL
 
~ Financial guarantee contracrs which are nor measured as ar FVTPL
 
The Company iollows 'simplified approach' for recognirion oi impairm<:nr loss aUowance on:
 

.... Trade receivables or contract revenue n::cci\'abks; and 

. The application of simplified approach docs not re'luire the Company to track changes in credir risk. Rather, it recognises 
imp?irment loss aUmnllce based on lifetime ECLs ar each reporting dare, righr from irs initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on Other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether 
there has been a significant increase in rhe credit risk since inirial recognition. If credir risk has nor increased sil,'l1ificantly, 
12-monrh ECL is used to provide for impairmenr loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is 
used. If, in a subse'luenr period, credit quality of the instrument lmproves such rhat there is no longer a significant lncrease 
in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entiry reverts to recol,'l1ising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month 

ECL 

Liietimc ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. The 12·month ECL is a portion of thc lifctime ECL which results from default e,'cnts that arc possible within 
12 months after the reporting date. 

ECL is the diiference berween aU contractual cash flows rhat are due to rhe Company in accordance with the contract and 
all the cash flows rhat the entity expects ro receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating 
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

~ All contractual terms of the financial instrumcnt (including prepayment, extensiun, cali and similar uptions) ()ver the 
expected life of the financial instrument. Howcycr, in rare C:l.ses when the expected life of the financial in~[n.un~nt cannot 

be estimated reliabI)', then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the 5nan.. i"i ;Ilstrt'mer:: 

~ Cash flows from the sale of collaterai held or other credit cnhanc"ments that are integral to the contractual terms 

As a practical expedient, the Compan)' uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its 
trade receivables. The prO\'ision matrix is based on its hisrorically observed dcfault rates O\'er the expccted life of the trade 
recei"ables and is adjusted for foru'ard-Iooking estimates. At every reporting date, the hisrorical observecl default rates are 
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates the following 
provision matrix at the reporting date: 

Current 1-30 31-60 days 61-90 days past 61-90 days past due 
days past past due due 

due 
Default rate 0.15% 1.60':;', 3.60% 6.60% 6.60':,-'0 
ECI. impairment loss allowance (or re"ersal) recognized during the period is recognized as income! expense in the 
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the P&L. The balance 
sheer presenrarion for \'Orious tinancial instrumenrs is described below: 

~ [,inancial asscts measured as at amortiscd cosr, contractual rC\Tnue recci";,blcs and lease rccei"ablcs: Eel.. is prcsented 
as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets III the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the 
net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company dGes not reduce impa;rment allowance from the 

gross carrying amount. 



.... Loan commitments and financial guarantee CGnU·acts: EeL is presented as a provision in thc..: balance sheet. i.e. as a
 

liability.
 

~ Debt instruments measured at rVTOCI: Since financial assetS are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance
 

is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECl amount is presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCr.
 

For assessing increase in credit risk and imp'irment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
 

shared credit risk characteristics with the objecti,·e of facilitatin.q an analrsis rhat is designed to enable signifIcant increases
 

in crectir risk to be identifled on J rim~h" basis.
 

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial
 

assets which are credit impaired on purchase / origination. The Company has made adequate provision for
 

doubtful debts and has not made any provision for EeL.
 

XI	 Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of , hybrid (combined) instrument that ,Iso includes a non-derivative host 

contract - with the effect that ,ome of the cash flows of the combined instrument "ar)' in a way similat to a standalone 

deri,·ati,·e. An embedded deri,·ati,·e causcs somc' or all of the osh nows that otherwise would be required by the contract 

to be modified according to a sp{;cificd interest ratc, financi'll instrument price, commodity price, fortign exchange rate, 

index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other "ariable, provided in the case of a nonfinancial variable rhat 

the variable is nor specific to a party to the contr'(lcr. Rt:asscssmt.:nr only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of 

the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a teclassification of a financial 

asset out of the fair value thtollgh profit or loss. 

If the hrbrid contract contains a host that is a financial asSd within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company docs not 

separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire 

hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all Other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at 

fair value if their economic chatacteristics and risks are not c10sdy rdated to mose of the host contracts and the host 

contmcts are not held for trading at designated at fair value though profit or loss. l1,ese embedded derivatives ate 

measured at fair vallie with changes in fair \'alue recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging 

instrum<.:nts. 

The Company's financial instruments are not derivative instruments. 

xu Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities: Financial liabilities arc c1assitied, at initial recognition 

a .... financial liabilitiC$ :1~ fa::- ':~llue th:ough pro!il ur luss, 

b ~ h:ns .. c,d borrowings, 

c ~ !,arables 

d ~ derivatives designated as hedwng instruments in an effective hedge 

All financial liabilities are recognised initial!:: at fair "alue and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 

directly attributable transaction COsts. 

The Company's fin,,"cial liabilities incl"cie trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 

overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts but not derivath" financial instruments. 

xiii	 Financial guarantee contracts: Financial guarantee contracts isslled by the Company arc those contracts that require a 

payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when 

due in accordance with the t<:rms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee cOntracts are tecognised initially as a liability at 

fair value, adjusted fot transaction costs that arc ditectly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the 

liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 

109 and the amount recognised kss cut11111ati\·<.,: amortisation. 

xiv	 Derecognition: 1\ finAncial liability is derecob~,ised when the obligation under the liabilit), is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 

the terms of an existing liability arc substantially modified, sllch an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised 

in the statement of profit or loss. 



xv	 Reclassification of flnancial assets: The Comp.ny determines cI.ssiflcation of financi.' assets and liabilities on initi.' 

recognition. After initial recognition, no recl.ssifie.uon is made fat financial assets which ore equity instruments and 

finnncialliabilities. For financial assets which are debt instrumenrs, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the 

business model for m.naging those assets. Ch.nges ro the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's 

senior m.nagement dercrmines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are 

si?;flificant to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external patties. A change in the business model 
occurs when the Company either begins or ceases ro petform .n .ctl,'ity rhat is significant ro its operations. If rhe 

Company reclassifies fmancial assers, it .pplies the reclassification prospectively from the recl.ssification date ,,·hich is the 

first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not reState 

any previously recognised gains, losses 0ncluding impairment gains or losses) or ;nteresr. 

The following table shows v.rious recl.ssification and how they are .ccounced for:
 

Original Revised classifleation Accounting treatment
 

dassifieat
 

ion 

Amortised FYTPL F.ir v.Jue is me.sured at reclassification dare. Difference between previous amortized 

COSt COSt and fair "alue is reco?;flised in P&L. 

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at recl.ssification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR is 

calcul.ted b.sed on the new gross carrying amount. 

Amortised FYTOl.l Fair v.lue is measured at reclassificarion dare. Difference between previous .mortised 

COSt COSt and fair value is recognised in OCl. No change in EIR due ro reclassification. 

FYTOcr Amortised cost	 Fair value at reclassification date becon1es its new amortised cost carrying amount. 

Howe,·er, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, 
the asset is measured as if it Iud <lhvays been measured at anlortised COSt. 

FVTPL FYTOCI rair valuc at reclassification Jatc bccomcs its new carrying ,,:nount. No other 
adjustment is required, 

FYTOCI FVTPL A:iscts continue to bl' m('asur~d at fair ,'allie. Cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognized ;n ocr is reclassitied to P&L at the teclassification date. 

The Company has not reclassified any financial instrument, 

xvi	 Offsetting of financial instruments: Financial assets and fmancial liabilities ,re offset and the c,et amount is reported in 
the standalone balance shcet if there is a currently enfotceable Ieg.ll right to offsct the recognised amounts and there is an 

intention to settle on a net basis, to rcalise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

The Company has not offset any flnancial asset and financialliabiliry, 

xvii Derivative fmancial instruments and hedge accounting - Ind AS 109 & 32 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement: Deri\Oari\'(; tlnancial instruments arc initially rccognise:d at fair v:llue 

on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivati"es are 
carried as tinancia] assets when the iair v.llil" is positi,"C and as tinancial Ijabilities when the fair value is nq,"'tive, The 

purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of profit and 

loss, Commodity contracts that are entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt at deli,'ery of a non­
financial item in accordanc<:: with the Company's expected purchase, sale or usage rC<luircmcnts arc held at cost. 

Any gains or losses arising from ch.mges in the fair value of deri,·au,·es ore taken directly to profit or loss, except for the 

effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later recbssificd to profit or loss when the hedge 

item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the 
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liahility, 



For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges arc classified as: 
~ Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or ~abi~ty or an 
unrecognised firm commitment 

~ Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a ponicular 

risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency 
risk in a.n unrecognised firm commitment 

~ Hedges of a nct investment in a foreign operation 
At the inception of a hedg~ relationship, the Company formaUl' designates and documents the bedge relationsbip to wbicb 
rhe Company \\~shes ro apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and straregy for undertaking rbe hedge. 
The documentation includes the Company's risk management objecrive and Strategy for undertaking hedge, rbe hedging/ 
cco~omi{" rel;uionship, tht hedged item or rr:1.ns~ction, the n~ture of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and ho\v the entity 

will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrumenr's fair value in offsetting the exposure ro changes in rhe 
hedged item's fair value or cash flows atrributable to rhe hedged risk. Such hedges arc expecred to be highly tift'ctive in 
achie\'ing offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an on-going basis to determine that they 
actually have been higbly effective throughout the (lDancial repon.ing periods for which they were designated. 

Hedges that meet the strict crireria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below: 

Fair value hedges 
The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance 
costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the 
carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as (lDance costs. 

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised 
through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as 
soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair 
value artributable to the risk being hedged_ 

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair v~lue is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When an 
unrecognised firm commirment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulat;\'e change in the iair value 
of the firm commitmenr attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asser or lial:i!ity "ith • corresponding 
gain or loss recognised in profit and loss_ 

The Company does not have interest rate swaps that are used as a hedg'e for the ~xposu.. ~ of chan;;es in 
the fair value fixed rate secured loans. 

II	 Cash flow hedges 
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hcdge 
reserve l while a.ny ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

Amounts recognised as OCI arc transferred to profit or loss when the hedged tr~nsaction affects profit or loss, 
such as when rhe hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forccast sale occurs. When 
the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liabi~ty, the amounts recognised as OU arc 
transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-fin~ncial asset or liability. 

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacemenr or rollover (as part of the 
hcdging stratq,'y), or if its dcsi6'T1ation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for 
hedge accounting, any cumulati\'e 6",in or loss previously recob'T1ised in OCI remains separately in equiry until the 
forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency tirm commitment is met. 

The Company does not use forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk 
in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure 
to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is 
recognised in finance costs. 



U1	 Hedges of a net investment 
Hedges of a net investment in a forei);l1 operation, including a hedge of a monetary irem that is occounted for as 
part of the net investment, are accounted for in a way simuar to cash now hedges. Gains or losscs on the hedging 
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised as OCI while any gains or losses relating to 
the ineffecrive portion are reco);l1ised in the Statement of profit or loss. On disposal of the forei);l1 operation, the 
cumulative value of any such gains or losses recordc:-d in equity is rt'clas~ifjed to the statement of profit or loss (as a 

reclassificarion adjustment). 

The Company does not use a loan as a hedge of its exposure to foreign exchange risk on its investments 
in foreign subsidiaries. 

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest 
rate swaps and forward C0J11111ouity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and 
commodity price risks, respectively. 

xviii Loan processing fees: 1\s required by Ind J\S 109, loan processing fees are amortized over the period of the respective 
loan. 

Categorisation of financial instruments 
Particulars As at 31st March 

2023 
As at 31st March 2022 

(i) Financial Assets 
Measured at amortised cost 

lnvl:srments 284.95 284.95 

Loans 24,892.00 29,456.01 
Trade Receinbles 2,663.88 2,663.88 

Cash and Cash Eguivalcnts 61.66 45.89 

(ii) FinanciallJabilities 
(a) Measured at amortised cost 

Borrowinb'S 83,397.60 83,213.71 

Trade Payables 6,041.77 5,909.90 

Othcr financial Liabilities 69,610.35 69,610.35 

2.20 Ind AS 33 . Earning Per share 
i Basic earnings per share ;rre calculated by dividing the net profit or loss fo' rhe paiod artriblltab1c to equity shareholders 

(after deuuccing preference di,·idends and attributable taxes) by the weighted .,verage nUlT'ber of equity shares outstanding 
during tbe perie-d. Partly paid eguity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity sbar', lV the exte'1t that tbey are entitled to 
participate in di,·idends rdative to a fully paid eCluity share during the reporting period. The weighred average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period is aJjusted f()~' events such as bonus issue, bonus dement in a rights issue, 

share split, and reverse share split (consc.ilclation of shares) tbat have changed the number of equiry shares outstanding, 
without a corn.:sponding ch;J.i1g',,: i_o rc;)ourc<:~. 

ii	 for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per sharc·, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to eCjuiry 
shareholders and the weighted ayerage number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
diluti,·e potential eguity shates, exeept where the results are anti-cluuti'·e. 

2.21 Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Asset 
i	 The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 

exists, or wh~n annual impairment resting for an asset is requin:d, the company cstinlatCS the recon:rable anl0unt of the 

asset. Sucb recoverable amount is the bigber of an asset's or cash-generoting lInit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in 
use. The I'ecuyerable amount is derernlined for an indi\'idual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 

largely independent of those from other assets or group, of assets. \,("here rhe carrying amount of an asset or CG U exceed, 
its recoycrablc amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 



ii	 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash tlows arc: discounted to theil' present value using a pre-tax discount rare 

that teflects current market assessments of the time nlue of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net 
selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an 
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, guoted share prices t"or 
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

iii	 The company bases its impairment calculation on derailcd budgets and t"orecast calculations which are prepared separately 
for each of the company's cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast 
calculations are generally cOHring a period of rive ,·ears. for longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculatcd and 
applied to project future cash nows after the 'Ifth year. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and 
applied to project future cash flows after rhe fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the 
mosr recent budgets/fotecasrs, the Company extrapolares cash tlow projections in the budget using a steady or declining 
growth rate for subseguent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed 
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or COuntry or countries in which the entity operates, or for 
the market in which the asser is used. 

iv	 Impairment losses of continuing opetations, including impairment on inventoties, are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss, e:xcept for properties previously revalued with the: rc:valuation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the 
impairment is recognised in OCl up to the amount of any previous rc,·aluation surplus. 

v	 After impairment, depreciation is provided on thl' n:\'is<:d carrying amount of the asset over its rr.:maining useful life. 

vi	 For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 

previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists. the company 
e5tim:ttes the :tsset's or cash-gener:ttlng unit's recoverable amounL A previously recognized impairment loss is reverseJ 

only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to derermine the asset's recoverable amount since the last 
impairm<...nt loss \vas recognized. The reversal is limitl'd so thar the carrying amount of the asset docs not exceed its 
recoverable atnount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no 

impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such re'·ersal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
unless the asset is carried at a revalued an)ount, in which cast.: the rt.:\·c.::rsal is trcated as a revaluation increase. 

Vd	 Goodwill is tes:"d for impairment annually as at 31st March and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value rna)' 
be impaired. 

viii ImpairmerH is der~r:nined for !!o':idwiJ! bv assessil!g the recoverable amount o[ e:1ch CGU (0r Cc:npany uf CGCs) to 

which the goodwiU rdatl:s. \\. hl:n the recovl:rabk atTl()llot of the CG U is less than its carrying amount, an inipairmcnt loss 
is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods. 

" Intangiblc asscrs with indefinite: uscful ji,·cs arc tcsred for impairment annually as at 3 i3t March at the CGU b·d, as 
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying ,·alue may be impaired. 

x Ind ,\S 36.96 pcrmits the annual impairment tc:st for a CGU to which goodwill has been allocated to be perforn,d at an\" 
time during the year, provided it is at the same ti"'e each yeat. Different goodwill and intangible assets may be tested at 
different times. . 

2.22 Ina AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset 

i	 Provisions arc n.:cogniscd when, 

a the Company has a present obli!,"'tion 0eh",1 or constructin:) as a result of a past event 
b it is probable that an OutnOw of resourc~s embodying ~conomic bendlts will be r~quired to settl~ the obligation and 

c a reliable ostimate can bc made of tho amount of tho obligation. 
ii When the Companj" expects some or all of a prO\·ision to be reimhursed, for example, under :tIl insurance contract, the 

rcimbursenlent is recognised as a separate asst.:t, bur only when the n:imbursenlcnt is virtually certain.
 

III The expensc rdating to a pro\'i::;ion is pre::;t.:ntcd in the s,tar<,;nlenr of protit and loss net of any n.:'imbur~t:ment.
 

iv	 If the effect of the time valut: of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rare thar rdlccts, 

when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. \Yhen discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
rass.go of time is recognised as a finance cost. 



v	 Provisions tor warranry-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer. Initial 
recognition is based on historical expetience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually. 

vi	 Restructuring prO\'isions arc recognised only when the Company has a constructive obugation, which is when a detailed 
formal plan identifies the business or part of the business concerned, the location and number of employees affected, a 
detailed estimate of the associated costs, and an appropriate timeune, and the employees affected have been notified of the 
plan's main features. 

\'u	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obugation Oegal or consuuctin) as a result oi a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be re'Juired ro settle the obugation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obugation. \li11en the Company expects some or all of a provision to be 
reimbursed, tor example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when 
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating ro a provision is presented in t.he statement of profit and loss 
ner of any reimbursement. 

2.23	 Ind AS 38 - Intangible Asset 
,\s required by Ind ;\S 38.72, thc Company has chosen the cost model as per Ind ,\S 38.74 for measurement of intangible 
assets. The Company has measured the cost of acrjuisition or construction of intangible assets in accotdance with lnd r\S 

.,8.24-38.71. 
ii Intangible assets aC'Juired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible aSSetS acguired in a 

business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

iii Internally genetated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is 
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which rhe expenditure is incurred. 

iv Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cOSt less any accumulated amortisation and accumulat~d 

impairment losses. 
v The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

vi Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there 
is an indication that the int.1ngible asset may b~ imp.i.re.d. 

vii	 The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset w'ith a finite useful life are reviewed at least at 
the end oi each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of fU!llre 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the .mortisation period or [••ethod, as appropriate, and 
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

viii The an1ortisation expense on intangible assets with fir..ite Lives is recognised in tht' sutemellt ef rrofil and 10:'$ unless such 

expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 
IX	 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, etther IIldi\'iJualiy or 

at the cash-generating unit level. The ,15'essment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine w'hether the indefinite 
life continues to be supportable. If nnt, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made nn a prospective basis. 

x	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of protit or loss when the ass~t is 
derecot,mised. 

2.24 Ind AS 38 - Research and development costs 
Research costs are cxpc:nsed as incurn:d. 

ii Development expenditures on an individual project arc recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can 
demonstrntc: 

~ The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset wiII be available for use or sale 

~ Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset 

~ How the asset will generate iuture economic benefits 

~ The "'allabiliry of resources to complete the asset 

~ The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development 

tU During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
 
IV Following initial recognition of the development expenditure a; an asset, the asset is eatried at COSt less any accumulated
 

anl0rcisation and accumulated impairnlent losses. 

v Amort.isation of the asset begins when de\'elopm~nt is complete and the asset is available for USe.
 

,.\ It is amortised ol'er the period oi expected fmure benetit.
 

\'ii Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value
 

of another asser. 



2.25 Ind AS 38 - Patents and licences 
i	 The Company makes upfront payments to purchase patems and licences. The patems are granted for a certain period by 

rhe relevant gO\'ernment agcncy with rhe option of renewal at rhe end of rhis period. 

ii	 Licenccs for the usc of intellectual property are granted for certain periods depending on the specific licences. The licences 
may be renewed at little or no COSt to the Company. i\S a result, those licences are assessed as having an indefinite useful 
life. 

IU	 A <ummarv of the policies applied to the Compan,,'s intanh~ble asset< i<., as follows' 

Intangible Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated or acquired 

Licences Indefinite No amortisation Acquired 
Patems Finite Amortised on a straight-line 

basis over the period of the 
patent 

Acquired 

Development 
costs 

Finite Amortised on a straight-line 
basis over rhe period of 
expected future sales from the 
relared project 

Imernally generated 

2.26	 Ind AS 40 - Investment Property 
i Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction Costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 

investment properties are stated at COSt less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

ii	 The cost includes the COSt of replacing pans and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition 
criteria are met. When signifieam parts of the investment property are required ro be replaced at intc'!"als, the Company 
depreciates them s<:parately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintcnanc<: costs ate rccognised in 
profit or loss as incurred. 

iii	 The Company depreciates building component of im'estment property Ll\'er 30 years from the date of original purcha~e. 

iv	 The Company, based on technical assessmmt mack by t<:ehnieal "'pert and managemmt estimate, depreciates the building 
over estimated useful !iv'cs which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 
The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over 
which the assets arc likely to be used. 

\'	 Though the C:ompany measures in\'c~t!~~:.:!1.r propt.:i.:ty w~ing G)~~ based measurement, the fair value of investment property 

is chscloscd in tlu.:. note~. Fair v:lI~Ie.s arc d.:tcnni~1ec1 basc.J Ol~ :1.11 ('11111\.1<11 c\"aluation performed by an accredited external 
independent valuer e.ppll'Ulg a valuation model recommended by the Interllatinnal Valuation Standards Committee. 

VI	 Investment properties are dcrecognised either when th<:)' hav<: b<:en dispos<:d of or whm rhey arc p<:rmancntly withdrawn 
from use and no future economic benefit is e.,pected from their disposal. The differcnce bctween the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of ~he asset is recogni~ed in protit or loss in the perjod of derecognition. 

\·ii	 The Company has elected to continue with the cartying va"'~ ivr all of its investment property as recognised in 
its Indian GAAP financial statements as at the transition date, viz., 1st Apri1201S. 

2.27 Ind AS lOS - Non-current assets held for sale & discontinued operations: 
i	 The Company classifies non-current assets or disposal undertaking as "held for sale I distribution to owners" if their 

carrying amounts are expected to be recovered principally through a sale I disrribution rather than through continuing use. 

u The criteria for held for salel distribution classification is re~rded met only when 

the assets or disposal undertaking is "'ailabIe for immediate sale I distribution in its present condition, subject only 
to terms that are usual and customary for sales I distribution of such assets (or disposal undertakin!,'S), 

bits saleI distribution is highly probable; 
it will g<:nuinely b~ sold, not abandon~d. 

d actions required to complete the sale I distribution indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale I 
distribution will b<: made or that the d<:ci~ion to sell I distribute will be withdrawn. 

e the appropriate le\'el of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal undertaking), 

an active programme to locate a buyer and co:-"plete the plan has been ulitiated (if applicable), 

g the asset (or disposal undertaking) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its 
current fair '"alue,.> 
the sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classifiotion , 



IU	 For these purposes l sale transactions includ(.; exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when tht: 

exchange has commercial substance. 

IV	 Non-current assers held for sale I for disrribution ro owners and disposal undertakings 'lre measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and the fair value Jess coStS to seUI distribute. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale Idistribution 
are presented separately in rhe balance sheet. 

\'	 Proper')', plant. and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale I distribution CO owners are nor 
depreciated or amortised. 

VI	 A disposal underraking qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an emit)' thar eirher has been disposed of, 
or is classified as held for sale, and 

~ represents a separare major line of business or geographical area of operarions, 

~ is parr of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of 
operationsl or 

~ is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale 

VII Discontinued operations at<: excluded from the results of continuing operariom and are presented as a single amount as 
profit or loss afrer tax from discontinued operations in the statemenr of profir and loss. 

The Company does not hold any non-current assets for sale or for discontinued operations. 

2.28 Ind AS 113 - Pair Value Measurement 
i	 The Company measures financial insrruml"nts, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sht:cr date. 

ii	 Fair value is the price that would be received to seU an asset or paid to transfer a liabiliry in an orderly rransaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liabilit)' rakes place either: 

~ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
~ In the absence of a principal market, fA the most advantageous market for the asset or liabili')' 

iii The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
IV The fair value of an asset or a liabilit)' is measured using rhe assumptions rhac market participants would use when pricing 

the asset or liability. assuming that n1arket parricipants act in their economic best intcn:s(. 

v	 A fair value measurement of a non-financial ass<;:t takes into account a market participant's ability to generate tcullomic 

benefits by using the aSSet in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market panicipant that would use the asset 
in it:; highest and best use. 

vi	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair valu~, lnax.in1isi_!"!.~ the llse of relevant observable inputs and minim;<;ing the use of l1no!::-servab~e 

inputs. 

VIl All assets and liabilities for y,hich f~ir value is measured or disc10seJ in the financial sL.tements ar(" catcf=orised within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowesr level input that is significant to the foi, value measurement as 
a whole: 
~ Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

~ l.cvel 2 - Valuation rechniques for which the lowest b'el input rhat is significant to the fair value measuremen, ;s 
directly or indirectly observable 
~ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lo,,·est leyd input (hat is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable 

viii	 For assets and liabilities that are reeo),'nised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred bctween levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest Icvel 
input that is significant to the fair value mcasurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

ix	 The Company's Valuation Committee determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, 
such as derivarive instrumt:ors and unquotc.:-d tinancial assets Int'3sured at fair '"alue. and for non-recurring measun:menr, 

such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. The Valuation Committet' comprises of rhe head of the 
investment properties segn1ent, heads of (he Company's internal mergers and acquisitions (eam, the hea,l of (he risk 
me.nagement departm~nt, financial controllers and chief tinanee officer. 

x External valuers arc in"olvcd for valuation of sihrnificant assets, such as properties and unquorcd financial ass<.:rs. and 

significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Invoh-emel1t of external valuers is decided upon annually by the
 
Valuation Committee after discussion \\~th and approval by the Company's Audit Committc·e. Selection criteria include
 

. market knowledl,>C, reputation, independence 'lnd whether professional standards are maintained. Valuers are normally
 
rotattd (::,"ery three years. The Valuation Committee Jecides, 'lftcr discussions with the Company's external \·alucrs. which 

valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case. 



Xl	 At each reporting date, the Valuation Committee analy~cs the mm·emcnts in the values of assets and liabilities which are 
requited to be r,measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this anaJysis, the Valuation 
Committee verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation 
computarion to contracts and orh~r relevant documents. 

xiii	 The Valuation Committee, in conjunction with thc Company's external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value 
of each asset and liabilIty with rc!c,·ant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. 

XUI	 On an interim basis, the Valuation Committee and the Company's externaJ. vaJuers present the vaJuation results to the 
Audit Committce and the Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in 
the valuations. 

xiv	 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined dasses of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabiliry and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explamed abovc. 

xv This note ~ummarises accounting policy for fair ,·alue. Other fair value related di~dosures are given in the relevant nOtes. 

~ Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimatcs and assumptions
 

~ Contingent consideration
 
~ Quantitative disclosure~ of fair ,·alue measurement hierarchy
 

~ Investment in unguored equity shares (discontinued operations)
 
~ Property, plant and equipment under rC\·aluation model
 

~ Investment properties
 
~ financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) 

~ Non-cash distribution 
xv The Company has not elected to apply the portfolio exception under lod AS 113.48. If an entity makes an 

accounting poucy decision to use the exception, this fact is required to be disclosed, as per lnd AS 113.96. 

2.29	 Ind AS 115 - Revenue Recognition 
lnd AS I J 5 has becn notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on />[arch 28,2018 and is effective from accounting 
period beb'inning on or after April 01, 2018. 

jj	 Th~ Company shall apply full retrospective approach in adopting the new standard (for all conm,ct, other than completed 
contracts) and accordingly recognise revenue in accotdance with Incl AS 115 as compared to earlier Percentage of 
~ompletion method as per the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (for entities to whom lnrl AS is 
applicable). 

iii	 The Company shall recognise revenue when it determir.es the sotlsfaction of performance obligations at a point in time. 
Revenue shaH he recognised upon transfer of cont",1 of prumised products to customer in an amOlltlt that retlects the 
consideration which the Companv expects to receive in exchange for those products. 

IV	 foOl" sale of units, the Company shall n:cognisc revt:nuc when its performance obligations arc satisfied and customer obtains 

centrol of the asset. 

Contract assets are to be recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over biUings on contracts. Contract assets are 

classiticd as unbilled receivables (only act ot" im·oicing is pending) when therc is u:1conditional right to rcceive cash, and 
only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. 

VI	 Contract r.... iabiliti(.;s an,; to be recognised wh<.:n th<.:n.:: is bill,jog in l.:xcc::;s of .icvt:nue and advance received from custOITH..:rs. 

VI]	 The Company enters entering into Development and Project i\!anag-ement ap;reements with land-owners. Accounting for 

inc01ne from such projects, Ineasured at fair \'alue, is done on accrual hasis as per the terms of the agreement. 

,"iii	 IND AS 115 - 'Revenue from Contracts with Customer' was notified w.e.f_ April 1, 2018, replacing IND AS 18 ­
'Revenue Recognition' and IND AS 11- 'Construction Contracts'. The Company has adopted IND AS 115 with 
modified reuospective approach for its revenue from long term service contracts. The impact thereof on the 
Financial results is not significant. 

IX	 The Company had not recognised any sale of incomplete projects in the pre,·iosu year based on the Guidance 
Note on Real Estate issued by ICAI due to lack of evidences available of the previous sales considered for 
individual projects. 
Therefore the Company is said to comply with the requirements of said IND AS 115 retrospectively and no 
effects needs to be restated in the opening retained earnings. 



x	 Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis but not at effective interest rate due to lack of interest 
statements but recorded based on Form 26AS. 

2.29	 Change in significant accounting policies 

I The Company has applied Ind AS 115 Revenue from contractS with customers using the full retrospective approach (for 
all contracts other than completed contracts). 

ii	 Ind AS 115 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whethel, how much and when revenue is 
recognised. Under Ind AS 115. with effect from April 01. 2017. revenue is recognised when a customer obtains 
control of the goods or services as compared to earlier percentage of completion method as per the Guidance 
Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (for entities to whom Ind AS is applicable). 

2.30	 Material changes reflecting the Financial Position of the.: COlnpany 

There are proceeclings going on against the company under various la\\'s such as The Maharashtra Protection of Interest of 
Depositors Act (:lIPID). Economic Offences Wing (EO\>;1 - rune, Insoh'ency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and other 
economic laws. Various agt..:ocit.:s have mo\'(;d at-,Y'aLnst the I\sscssc<': Company and its directors, viz. Din::ctorate of Enforcement 
(ED), Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SI-'IO) and other agel)cies. The original documents/agreements has been seized by 
lD and are not ,,·a.itahle for carrying out necessary audit. 

2.3!	 It is pertinent to note that the Resolution Professional made all the practical and reasonable efforts from time to time to 
facilitate the information / data from the officials of the Company. In relation to the preparation of the Financal Smtements of 
the company and also the information required by the auditors for the purpose of carrying our the audir of the financial 
statements of the Company. It is to be noted that the financial statements for the FY 17-18 as well as the information provided 
to the auditors for the purpose of audit of the same, pert"in to the period prior to the appointment of the Resolution 
Professional and therefore and therefore, while facilit.ating the collection and dissemination of the said infonmation, the 
Resolution Professiooal has relied upon and assumed the accmac\' / veracit)' of data / information provided by the officials of 
the Company, suspended Directors and long term consult.ants and the records of t.he Company made available to the RP and 
has assumed data in conformity with the applicable laws and and present a true and fair view of the pusition of the Company as 
of dares and for the period indicat~d therein. The RP has not personally verified rhe Information provided by the officials of 
the Company and has placed contidence in the data/information pro,·ided. The tinancia! statements have been signed by the 
RP as no promoter director is present.. Accoringly, the RP should be absolved from the accuracy, veracity and sufficiency or 
completeness of such Information. 
R"''<Iders and users of thc statemenrs arc ad"ised to do thcir due diligence before arriving at any conclusions. The RP has sib'l1ed 
the Financials Statem~nts to facilitate thr, CIRP pr"LC'5 end ((J faciiirate ti'e stcrumry requirements without any liability of the 
~:".me. 



D. S. KULKARNI DEVELOPERS UMITED
 

CIN : LA520\l'NI991PLC063340
 

NOTE 3: I'ROI'ERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE (Amoums jf) Re:;, L:akhs) 

NOTE
 
NC.
 

NOTe: 

I
 GROSS BLOCK (AT COST)
 DEPRECIATION I AMORTIZATION NET BLOCK 

I Additions AllhcDESCRIPTION As At Dcducti As At b .. f r At the cnd ofA. Al IFor The Year I On. As AlfI eWnn.lOg 0 (he carDeductlonson'TransfersApril 01,2022 31-Mar-23 April 01, 2022 31-Mar-23 Ihe year Y 

I 
TANGIBLE t.SSETS 

Plant & Elluipmcnt 
I'Y 2022-23 2.684.66 2.684.66 2,478.82 21.40 2.500.21 216.x·1 184.46 
I'Y,2021·22 2.684.66 2.684.61> 2,447.77 31.06 2.478.82 2)6.89 20S.85 
Furnicurc & Fixtures 
I'Y,2022-23 233.18 233.18 170.4·' 17.53 187.97 62.74 45.21 
FY,2021·22 233.18 1':>2.4;233.18 17.77 170.44 80.71 62.74 
Vehicles 
FY: 2022·23 408.32 c).27-108.32 399.06 225 401.31 7.01 
FY: 2021·22 408.32 199.0(,408.32 389.52 9.51 18.81 926 
Office Equipmcnts 
FY,2022·n 464.41 464.41 4;8.7.1 I.3H 460.11 S.Ml 4 ..11 
IY, 21121·22 464.41 4 ;7.11)464.41 1.82 458.73 7.31 3.m 
Computers 
r·y 21122·23 234.93 234.93 231.55 231.5S .1.38 3.38 
FY,21121·22 234.93 234.93 231.55 23155 .1.38 3.38 

TOI"I Tangible Assets 
I'Y,2022·2.1 4.025.51 1,i'.,)X.604,025.51 42.55 2H(l.C)1.1,781.1 -' 244.18 
\·Y: 2021-22 4,o25.SI 4.025.51 3.678.'1 I 60.18 :\,7:\H.60 )~i.ltl lX6.9:; 

INVESTMENT
 
PROPERTY
 

L.md 
I'Y: 2022-23 2.724.91 2.724.91 2,i24.91 2.724.91 
I'Y: 2021-22 2,724.91 2,724.91 2,":'24.91 2.724.91 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Computcr Softw~rc 

FY,2(122·23 233.70 233.70 228.2·' 228.24 5.46 

I 
5.46 

r·Y 2\121·22 233.70 23.1.70 228.24 228.24 5.46 5.46 

ITo'''1 (fY 2022-2]) 6,984.12 - - 6,984.12 3,966.84 42.5S I 4,009.39 .1,017.30 2,974.75
ITo',,1 (FY 2021-22) 6,984.12 - 6,984.12 3,906.64 60.18 I 3,966.84 3,077.47 3,017.30 

I 

The workinp: of 'kprcCl:ltion fOI' the year has heen worked Ollt h;\secl on the books ()f ;lccoum~ maiOl;lincd hy ,he 1ll;\Il;tgcmcm.
 

The Comp;tny h;l.s not. during rhe year, ;l\;cluired ;lOy PPJ·: or im;tngihlc lISS"IS under;\ (In:ulci:\llease 0>1" rhrO\II~h husiness co:nhln;ulons.
 

The: COlllp:Ul)' hOls nut, during lhe year, impaired any PPE or iOl;lllgihk' ;.Issets nor 1"c\'crsc·l arlY past impainnC'nt.
 

TllI..'re 'arc no 'l\ddilions ro PI'E or im;lngible asselS, dUTinl-; rcar, un :u:cOUnt uf exchange dlflcr~occs.
 

That' ;m.: no additions to PPE or inrangibk: ass!;(s, during rear, on aU;O\lnt" of n;\'aluat;on.
 

There arc 00 disposals of PPI..:: or intangible assc.:[s, during yc.:ar, on account of disc:oOllnud \lpcfillions.
 
i"p iT('ms of PPE hav(: hCt.:n l.:ollll'ihutl·d In' CUSfOllwrs during n:ar.
 



D. S. KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
ClN : 1A5201PNI991PLC063340 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year cnded As at 31st Mar' 2023 
(Arnt. in Rs. Lakhs) 

As at 31st Mar' 2022 
(Amt. in Rs. Lakhs) 

6.1 

6.2 

6.3 

Non- Cunent Investmt=nts 

Unquoted 
Im'estmentS in Equity Instruments in Subsidiaries 

DSK Infra PVL Ltd. 

20,00,000 Eqllity Shares of Rs. )0/- each fully paid 

lnvestm.ents in Equity Instruments in Other Companies 
DSr..: Global EdlicariOl1 and Research J.1d. 
7,3.1.197/7,33,197 ['Ium' Shares of Rs.IO/- each fully paid 

lnvesttnents in shares in Co-operative Banks 

1,000 shares of Rs.50/ - each fully paid in Shrec Sadb~>fu Jangli Maharaj Sahakari Bank 
I.rd. 

10 ,hares of Rs.lOOj- each fully paid inJanara Sahakari Bank I.,d. 
10 shares of Rs.50/ - each fully paid in Mah.laxmi Co-Op. Bank Ltd. 
4,080 ,hares of Rs.2S/- eaeh fully paid in Grea,er Bombay Co-Op. Bank l,d. 

20,000 shares of Rs. 25/- c'ach fuUy paid in KaI)~n Jana.. Sahakari Bank led. 
100 ,hares of Rs.IOO/- each full)" paid in rune Sahakari Bank Ltd. 
50,000 sharc's ofRs.llJO/- each fully paid in Sangli Urban Co-Op. Bank L,d. 
Total Non-Current Investments 

Additional Disclosures 
.A.g,t,'Tl"ptt: ~mounr of Quon.:J Invl.:srn1l"nts 

~r.Hkcr Value of Quoted Invesrments 

A~grl:h'3tl.: amount of Un'luotl.:d Investments 

200.00 200.00 

7.l.32 73.32 

0.50 0.50 

0.01 0.01 
0.01 0.01 
1.02 1.02 
5.00 5.00 
0.10 0.10 
5.00 5.00 

284.95 284.95 

284.95 284.9S 

As n.:quircd by Ind ;\5 27.10, rhc company h3S chosen the COSt modd for measurement of c:\[['..,.in~ value of all investment. 

All the investrnenr in subsidiary and associates arc measured at cost as per lod AS 27 Separate Financial SrarCffien($ 

Ali other inv<:s~j'ilcnts :In.: carried at amortized C05C 

Loans - non-current 
(a) Deposits unsecured, considered good 

76.33 I76.53j \':lith Rd:ttcd Partics 
278.4 ) With Others 2-8.4 i 

~") Loans ro Rd?tcd Parties, \.111sco!!"cd 

Considcn.:d good 5.00 4,565.77 
Considered doubrful 6,959.68 6,959.68 

iii Allow:mcc for bad and doubtful dcbts -4,713.84 -4.713.84 

7.1 

7.2 

7.3 
7.4 

Toeal Loans 2,605.78 7,166.55 

Debts due by direcrors or o[hcr officers of the Company or any of them either scn·rally or jointly \\~th any other person or debts due by 
tirms 01 .Jriv<ltc companies respectivel\, in which an\' director i~ a panner or a clirector or a member. 

D. S. Kulkarni De,-e!opers I.imited has one 100':~ subsidiary DSK Sou,hern Projects Pri,-ate Limited .nd 'his subsidiary company was also 
unclcr Corporate: losoh-cnc}' Resolution PfQccss. Resolution pbn for that cQlllp:my was approved by the Hon'blc ).:CLT,.Mumbai Bench on 
17,02.2023. AccorJing to the ( ...ems of the appron.:d resolution plan, D. S. Kulkarni DI.'\Tlopcrs Limited is due to rccl..'in: Rs. 5,00,000/­
towards the full and final payment: against their outs£auding loan. The same was n:ceivcd by the: company on 17.05.2023. The total outstanding 
lnan as on the date of the approval of the [e~olurion plan \Val' RsA,565.77/- lakhs. TIle remaining amount has been written off as the same is 

no longer receivable. 

Loans or deposits ro related parties have not Ix'Cn \"(~_rified due ro lack or ledger confirm:Hions 

Loans an: non ckri\'ati\'\,.' tinancial assl.'{S which gt:nl,:r:ut: ,1 tiXI.:d or \'ariable inrl'n.:~t incomL' for the Comp:ln~·. 'l1x' carrying value may bL' 
affc:cr<:d h,' the chan,I!(:s in the crc:dit risk of couIHc::rpartic:s, 

Other Non-Current Assets 
(a) Cenv", Credit 812. 16 812.16 
(h) GST Input Tax Credit 75.83 60.02 

(e) GST Reverse Charges ITC 61.33 30.76 
(d) FOICihTt) CU1"fl'ncy in Hand 2,46 2.46 

(0) Socei')- Maintenance 192.85 192.85 

8.1 

8.2 

Tota) Other Current Assets 1,144_64 1,098.25 

Credits available from GST or Ceo\':lt are not n:riticd from n:turns tiled b~' tht.' m;m;agemcnt for the pl.>riod clUJ.: to lack of login credl.:mials of 

the Go\'ernment portals inspite of various rcpn:~(:ntations. 

Society .i\laiorcnaoce paid shows the mailHt:oancc: paid on hc.;half of til(.' cmcomns for the tlats possessed by them. 'me same $t:cms to he.: 

irreco\'erable as rhe possession has bC{"11 ;'l\·ailcd. 



8.3 

9.1 

9.2 

10 

10.1 

11 

11.1 

11.2 

12 

12.1 

12.2 

13 

14 

14.1 The company has only Olle class of ("quity shan.:s haying p:u valul: of Rs, 10 per sharl.'. Each holJl.:f uf l:quity sharcs is cntitlcd to on.., ,'atl.· pl:r 

share. 111e company J<'°clarcs and pays Ji\'iden<!s in Indi:lrl rllppcs. The divid<"nd proposed hy rh<.' Board of Directors is suhject to the appro\'al 

of the sh.ucholden: in the ensuring Annual Genc•..u :\fccting. 

Balance: in foreign currency possesses rhe balance in rhe forex card held by (he Company. The S;1mc was nor available for verification hence, 

rhe amount resembles the accounting d:\t.<\. 

Inventories 

(a) ConHfllcrions ~Iatcria.1$ 245.94 245.94 
(b) W·otk-in·Progr<ss 155,540.42 155,540.42 
(c) Finished Tenements 1)81.64 1,381.64 

To.allnvenrories 157,168.00 157,168.00 
Inventories werc not wholly physic:'\J1y \Triticel b~' the l1'1(1nagelllcnr :l.OO hence th~ S:l.lTIC is relieel on !.he v:l.luation donebst rear except for the 

change in \VIP lnvt:nrory th:ilt reflects addition:ll cost Incurred or salt: of fl"\v projects pl.T(:ljnin~ to last year accouO(I.,d for In the currene year. 

~'lodc: of valuation: Sec: note: to fmanciaJ sratcmt:nts 

Trade Receivables unsecured) considered good. 

(a) Ourstanding for kss th:ln six months 

(h) Ourstanding far a period exceeding six months 

Total Trade Receivables 

Trade Receiv;tbles ::ire non-intt:rt>st bearing 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(a)	 Balances Wilh Banks
 
t:'\rm:l.rkcd B:lI:mccs with I3:lnks
 

Current Account 8alancl"s \Vlth Bank
 

iii	 B:l.l:lOCCS with Banks to the cxn:nt hcld :1S margin money or security :lgainst 
thl: borrowings, guarann,:cs, other commitn1en[s, <.:tc. 

i" Deposits wirh oribrinal maturity of less th:tn (wei\'<: monrhs 

(b) Cash on Hand 
Tor.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

2,663.88 
2,663.88 

47.96 

0.34 

13.17 

0.20 
61.66 

2,66.5.88 
2,663.88 

32.18 

0.34 

13.17 

0.20 
45.89 

111..' details ofplcd,l!;l.' ofrht: fixed deposits hdd b 'the C0l11naJ1~1 :le.., bast.'d on last Y"'ar's vcritic:luol1
 

'nlC b31anccs of b:lnk n:conkd :Ibo\"<:: :lrl: bas('d on thl: SL1t1.:m~ms :W:libbk \\'ilh th... nUn:l.gl.'Olcnt which :In.: not fully up<.btl:d and available.
 

Loans· current 

Considered doubrful 

(a) Advanct:s to related parties, unsecured, consickrnl doubrful 885.:)2 885.92 
(b) Advance to creditors 1,033.03 t,036,27 

(c) Other Ad..""e<s 20)67.28 20,367.28 
Total Lo:-ms 22)286.22 22,289.46 
Loan:' and advances. due b~' direcror$ or other o[fit:eh of the c..,mpany or :tilY of tl\cm either seyerally or jointly w'irh any other person or 

amounts due by tirms or privare cOlT'lp~!'!.ies re~p':':ti\ dy in which :my director is:l p:mner or a director or a mcmb:·r. 

Loans arc non oeriYatin: financial assc(s which gcn..'ratc ;\ fixt:d or variable intl:rt:st income for the Company. The carryin,g \':'\lut: may bl: 
afft.·ctt:d by the changes in the cr<.:<..lit risk of cauntl:rparti(.'s. 

Other Current Assets 

Prepaid expenses 

Total Prepaid expenses 

Equity Share Capital 
a) Authorised Capir;\1 

5,00,00,000 E'juity shares of Rs. 10/-e-ach 

b)	 Issuco, subscribcd and paid up capital 

2,58,01,008 [quil), shares of Rs. 10/· each 

Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

0.72 4.91 

0.72 4.91 

5,000.00 5,000.00 

2.5RO.l0 2,580.10 



14.2 In rhe <.:vcnr of liqlddarion of the l.:ompany, the holders of equity shares will be entitled [0 rel.:ciyc remaining assets of the cornpany, aftt:r 
distribution of:tll preferent:til :tmounts. The disuibulion \l'ilJ be in proporarjon to the number of equity shares held by the sh:\l'eholders. 

14.3 

c) Number of shares issued, subserib<d and fuUy paid 
d) i':Llmber of shares issued, subscribed :tnd fully paid 

e) r.r value per sh"'e 
f) Reconciliation of the nurnber shares outstanding:1.£ the beginning and the (:nd of 

the reporting period 
I Sllares outstanding at the beginning of the n:porting period 

shan~s outstanding ,H the end of the reporting period 
Aij Equicy shares capital at rht: cnd of [he [,,:porting period 

258.Q1 

10.00 

258.01 
258.01 

2,580.10 

Shares in tht: company held b' each shareholder holding mort:' than 5 pr.:l' c{."nt ~h:lfl':S 

(a) 0 S Kulkarni 
"'umber of sh.res 

sDl:cif\'in~ the numb<.:r of shan.:s hdJ 

60.00 

258.0 I 

10.00 

258.0 I 
2:)8.0! 

2,580.10 

60.00 
P('rccn(::.ge 

(b) H 0 Kulk.rni 
I'umbcr of shac<> 

23.26"/u 

49.06 

23.26"/0 

49.06 
Percentage 

(e) Ashuk r.rmar 
,,"umber of ,h.re, 
PI..'rccl1tagr.: 

(d) Chander Bhad. 
Number of slta«s 

19.01% 

38.78 

15.03% 

20.00 

19.01~{, 

38.78 

15.03(XI 

20.00 
Percentage 

(0) Ash. Bhatia 
Number of shares 

7.75% 

19.50 

1.7So/!) 

19.50 

14.4 

Pt:rccnt:tgt: 

(Q Shirish Kulbrni 
Number of shares 
Percentage 

The: Compan~' docs not han: any shares reserved for issue under ortions 

7.561;1/'0 

15.20 
7.S6~ (, 

7.56°;', 

15.20 
7.56%, 

15 Olher equity 
(a) Sl:curiti~s Prcmuim re$l"rvr.,: 

0» Deueruurc redemption rc::;crvc 

(c) G<:m:raJ reserve 
(d) Rerained earnings 

TOlal other equity 

30,822.71 
2,007.87 

953.70 

-14,981.81 

18,802.47 I 

30,~22.71 

2,1)()7.87 

953.70 
-10,114.43 

23,669.&5 

15.1 
Nature and purpose of the reserves 
Secnrities Premium 
SCC'Jrities Premium presents shares issued at premium less share issue expenses. The reserve is utilised in a<.:cordancc W;i.h the pro\'isios~ of 

Comp::mics Act, 2013. 

Particulars As at 31st Mar' 2022 As at 31st ~lar' 2022 

Opening Balance 30,822.71 30,822.71 
Add: Prt:miurn on equity shan;s issued 

Closing Balance 30,822.71 30,822.71 



15.2 

15.3 

15.4 

15.5 

I
 
I 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 

The company has issu<:d rcdecmabll:' non-converlible deb<:nrurcs, Accordingly, (ht companies (share elpital and debenrures) Rules, 2014 (as 
:1mencicd), rCljuire the comp;:my to (rColte ORR out of pr()fi~ of the comp;my :wailable for p?}'mcnr of di\·idend. DRR is required to be 

cre~tcd tor an amoul1l which is <..:<:Jual to 25%) of the valu<..: of dcbc.:nrures issued. Th~ ORR is required to be credited ovc.:r the life- of d<..:btnrurcs, 

According to the companies (Share capital and del>enrl.lrc$) Rulc$, 2014 (;t$ amended), a company should on or before the 30th day of .\priJ in 
<"::lch ~'e;lr, invl'sr or deposit, a sum which ",ill not be !c.:$S than fittl,.:<.:n percen.t of t.hc fllTIOunt of its debc.:nrures m:Huring during rhe Yl':U cnding 
on lhl,.· 31st day of .\brch of the m':'\( YC:1r. HO\\'(,;n:r, thl: company has. been unable 1O makl,; any such d\.'posit/ investInt'nc. 

Particulars As al 31s1 Mar' 2022 As at 31s1 Mar' 2022 

Opl,;ning Babncc 2,007.87 2,007.87 
,\cl<l: ,\ddirional "khcnturc rc:dC:('mcci 

Closing Balance 

General Reserves 

2,007.87 2,007.87 

The Company has transf-':ITeJ a portion of K\:r Profit:-- of till.: Company bl.:t'orc d<..:c1aring Di\'idc.:nds ro Gc:ncr:ll Rcscryc.: pursuanc to tht: earlier 

provision ofTh\.: Companic.:s. Act. 1956. J\bnJ:::nory transfer to Gl'lH:ral Rl:sc[n, is not rl,;quiIcd under the Companies Act, 2013 

Particulars As al 31st Mar' 2022 As at 31s1 Mar' 2022 

Opening Balance 953.70 95370 
Add: Addirions made 

Closing Balance 

Retained Earnings
 
Retained earnings. rcpre$ent$ the aCC1.1mlllatcd losse$ lhar the Company has till date.
 

Particulars 

Opening Balance 

Add: Net pt-ofit!(los$) for the year 

Closing Balance 

Distribution made and proposed 

Cash dividenrs on equity shares declared and paid: 

Final dividend for the year ended 
DDT on fmal dividc:nd 

Proposed dividends nn [<!uity slures 
Filial di\'idC:!I(1 rr·; t:l'': year ended 

DDT . If! fir.:~! <ii\'idend 

953.70 

As at 31st Mar' 2022 

.10,114.43 

-4,867.38 
-14,981.81 

.As at 31st Mar' 2022 
·9.847.97 

·266.46 

-10,114.43 

I Proposed dividends 011 equil'y sliares are subject ro appro\"al at thc annual general meeting ;tnu are not recognised as a liabilty (!ndudi;-,g DDT 

rhereon) as :H :> ISf 1\brch. 
15.6 j.:T:;:;':hc'::'.:::'c,:':')n~,::":p,.n:':)':':' 7-h.;;:,~n:;;o'::'t:':n:;;,"':"d;-c-"-n-r-n-o-n-,c-·"~'h~J"'":::-rr-:;jb-u-rj"'"o-n-,-o"'";t-,-s':'"h-ar-c-,7 h-o':'"ld;'"e-,,-d7u-n"'"'n-g-;b-o-th;""'"'~!~,e-ye-,,-,,-.----------------1 

953.70 
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16.1 

5,172.20 5,172.20 
2,342.55 2,342.55 

180.41 180.41 
3,442.60 3,442.60 

1,000.00 1,000.00 
12,5'9.81 12,579.81 
:,944.50 7,944.50 
7,667.1)0 7,667.00 
6,292.86 6,292.86 
6,292.00 6,292.00 
4,723.66 4,723.66 
2,131.45 2, (} 1.45 
5,666.35 5,666.35 

20569 205.69 
713.53 713.53 

1,336.72 1,336.72 

1,403.31 1,403.31 
936.47 936.47 

2,386.84 2,386.84 

1.25 1.25 

7.07 7.07 
0.58 0.58 

50.00 50.00 
25.00 25.00 

156.14 136.14 

72,658.01 72,658.01 

Z.LlO 2.00 
96..1-l 96.34 
61.35 61.35 

Unsecured Borrowings 

(aJ Dc:ro:-its fran} public 

(h) Lv::1 fn::~) (En':'ct~lrs 

(c) Loan from sharchnlocrs 

Non-current borrowings secured 

(a) Listed secured R<.:demable Non-com=eniblc Deb~nrurcs 

(i) Option I 
(ii) Oprionll 

(ii) Option III 
(iii) Oprion IV 

(b) Projt:ct tt:rm !O:ll1S from bnnks 

(i) ICICl B'nk \'edanr PTL 
(ii) S"te Bank of India Dream cit)" PTI. 
(iii) ICICI HOllsing finance Co .\nandghan rTf. 
(iv) Syndic"e Bank Dream city !'TI. 
(v) Union Bank of India Dre'am Ci~ PT!. 
(vi) l3:lnk oUvlaharashrr:l Drettm CHy PTJ. 

(vii) lOBi Bank Dream Cir~' PTL 
(viii) Vii"y" [hnk Dream City PTL 

(i:<) Indiahulls Housing Finance Limited 
(c) Corpormc fI.:rm loans from banks 

(i) Sangali Urban CoofXrativt' Bank Ltd 

(ii) Ta" Capital I.td. 
(iii) Till: K:\I)'''n jan<1t..a Sahakari Bank 

(0) Cooperotrh'c term IOilns from Financi:l1 insr.itutions 

(i) Bajaj Finan",' Ltd 
(ii) Aditya Bida Finance Ltd 
(Ui) STCl Finance Ltd 

(e) Vehide [('I'm loans from banks 

(I) HoFe Bank Lrd. 
(t) Vehicle term lo"'ns. from finandaJ in~[itulif)n 

(i) Torota Financial Ser\'ices Ltd. 

(ii) Korak ~[ahindra Prime l.td 
(g) Tam Loans from financial institutio!is sl,:cllrl."d by pkJge of pn1mvtors' shan:s 

(i) Punl..' Safety V;luh u.r 
Oi) Ruia Knowledge & Rts("arch InsriruH: Pvt. r,re\. 

(iii) SKS I'incap p,·t. 1_ld 

Total non-current borrowings secured 

Total non-current borrowings 72,817.70 72)817.70 

Right [0 rei$~ue: Subject to rhe pro\'i~ion of the Companic~ Act, 201.) where the company tu:" fully redeemed any NCDs, the Companr shall 
havc, & shall be de~:med always to h:1\"C had, the: right to keep ~uch :\'CD" in cff~,,;t witil0llt c:uingllishm<.:nt thercof, for the purposL: of n,:s:;l!c 

or rc-issue & in ,'x('rcising such right, the company shall han', & sh;)1J be dl,:I,:n1cd aL..ays (Q han: had. the power ~o re-sell or re-isslle such 

NCDs either hr reselling or re-issuing: the: sa01(' NCDs or by issuing othn NeDs, in accordance with ,:". appJicahk' lul<:s & regularions. 

16.2 Iotl.:n:st on NCD Option I is not accrued due to lack of e\"id(,:oces from the [b.nking: Insiruoons reg:\rding the rate of intc[(.:st. The ~CDs will 

he redeemed on 06/07/2017. 

16.3 

16.4 

[ntcrest on :-':CD Opnon II is :-ilL. Thc NCO, will bc rencclllcd on 06/03/2020. 

fmerest on NCO Option III is not accrued due to lack of cyidcnc.:es froln Banking Instirllrions regarding the rate of interesr. Under rhis option 
payment of principal together with interest accrued on the residual face value ",ill be paid as under: 

Sc Partial Redemption dates % to Face Value 

16

26

th Sepremher, 2016 

th S,'prember, 2017 

6th Scprembcr, 2018 

10.00 

15.00 

20.00 

4 I,th September, 2019 

6th Seprcmber, 2020 

25.00 

25.00 



16.5 Interest on NCD Option IV is nor accrued due to lack of evidences (rom Banking Institutions rcgarcljng the rate of imcresr. No NCO has 
been redeemed yet though it had been nored that The NCOs will be redeemed on 06/09/2021. Hence, the respective NCD will be de.ut '\vith 

as pt:r thl.: approved resolucion pl~n. 

16.6 The primary security for Statl.: Bank of India Or(':'Im City rTL is pari pasu 1st chargl's by way of registrcd mortgage of spl:cifil'd project land 
along with present and future struCtures thereon along with other project tcrm lcnocrs consortium Banking). The collateral security is pari 
pasu 1St charge br way of registered mortgage of specified land. In addition, the projel:t loan is secured by the personal gurantee of i\'[r, 

D.S.Kulbrni & Mr. Shirish Kldkarni. 

16.7 Thl: Primary security for the Syndicate Bank (Gold Lt:at) PTL is rcgistt:I'I.:d mortg-agt: of sr.:pcitil"Xi Proil:ct :md :llong with prcs.:nr and futurt.: 
structureS thereon, In addition, the projl:ct loan is sl'cUfed by the person:'ll gll:lr:'lntce of i\lr. D.S.Kulkarni & ~1r. Shirish kulkr:mi. 

16.8 The Primary security for Syndicate Bank Dream City PTI, is pari p:tSlI Ist charge by way of registered mongage of specified project land along 
with present and future structures thereonwith <Hher project term lenders (Consortium Bankin'. The Collateral security is pari pasll 1st 
charges by w~y of registered morrg:1gc of spcciti-.:d land In addition. the projt:ct loan is secured by th<.: personal guarantt:<.: of lvfr. D,S.Kulkarni 
& ~Ir. Shirish Kulkarni. 

16.9	 ~nle Primary security for Bank of Maharashtra Dn:am City PTf, is pari pasu 1st chargl's hy way of rcbristl;.Tt:d mortgage of spl.:citil:d project land 
along with present and fururc structures thcreonwith other project term lenders (Consortium Banking). 111e Collateral securiry is pari pasu 1Sf 

charges by way of registered mortgage of specified bnci In :lclditinn. the projel,,"t loan is secured by the personal guarantee of i\fr. D.S.Kulkarni 
& ~1r. Shirish Kulkarni. 

16.10	 The primary sc:curity for ICICI bank Vedant PTI. IS rc~is[nnl mort.!.,Y,lgl: of :-peCltil'd projl'ct bnd along with present and fllttJrl' structures 
theron. The colJatcral s{:curiry is rChl'isttri:d mortgage of specified lanel along with present & future srruClllrcs (hereon and a charge 011 the 
receivables of specifiecl projects. In addition, rh(' projecr loan is secured by rhe personal guranrec of ~Ir. D.S.Kulkarni & Mr. Shirish Kulkarni. 

16.11	 The Primary security for the ICICI HFC Lcd. An:lndghn.n PTI. is registc:rt:d l1lort'g:lg<.: of specitied Project land along with preSl'nt and fururc: 
structurl.:s ther<:on 'rne coUatcral securitr is rcgis{f(x! mOrtg:lgl' of specifi<.:d land along with present & futufl.: structure there on and 
h)l'yothecation of project n:ccivahlcs. In addition, Ihe project loan is secun:d hy the p<:rsonal gllarant('{,' of ~rr. D.S. Kulkarni, l>.'Ir, Shirish 
Kulkarni & Mr$, H.D.Kulkarni. DSK Global Edllcatiun and RC$can:h Limited i~ co gllf;-tnror to the tLlnc of receiva.bles fmm the project in lieu 
of consideration for relinquishing of dcvdf)pmcnt rights of part' of project bnd. 

16.t2	 The Primary security fOf lOBI Bank Dn.·;lm City PTl. is pari p:tSU 1st charges hr way of rcbtlstcrecl mortgag<.: of specified project land along 
'\vith present and future structures thereonwith other project term lenders (Con:"ortillm Banking). The Collatera.l security is pari p:'\~u 1st 
chart-,TCs by W:lY of n:gistt:rccl mOrtgagl' of slXcit'i..:d hnd :md hypyorhcC:1Tion of proj..:ct rr..'c..:iv:lbl<..'s. In :lddition, the.: projl'cf IO~ltl IS st:curt:d by 
the p<:rsonal guar'J.nt('(",' of Mr. D.S.Kulkarni & l\lr. Shirish Kulkarni. 

16.13 The \'ehicle fcrmloan ff()n1 Toyota Financiitl Sen'icc:" i~ ~ccllrcd bv hrpothecuinn of :"pecific vehiclc:". 

16.14 Th<.: \'chiclc term 10al1 from Kotak Mahindra Prim!.: is secured by IWl1othl'c3tion of spl'cinc \·ehidl·s. 

16.15 The vehicle term loan fwm HDFC Bank i:" secured h,' hypothecation of :"pecitic ,'{,'hidc~. 

16.16 Thl.: claims from the banks ha"t: b(.;en Juh- YCntiL·d ~nd n.:cordt:d the balances backed bv valid (.;videnct:s. 

16.16	 The loan from Ruia Knowledge & Research !!~stitl!re private Limited is secured by pledge nf 1,50,000 (P. Y. 1,50,000) Equity shares of the 
Company held by the Company's promoter>. 

16,18	 The loan from Pune Safety Vault LPP is :<:'ccll"ed hy rice:,:;'.' or 2. J(J,()()() i1;. Y. ? JO,Clr;~) f·:yu;.:-· shar('s of the rnm~~n)' hel~ hy the rnmpany'" 

Ipromoters. 

16.19 Thl:: loan frem SKS Fincap Pvt. Ltd. is secured hy pledge of 10,00,000 (p. Y. I0,00,000) Equit~, shares of th~' Company hdd hy th<: Company's 
?rorr.oter~. 

16.20 Th(; Company has accl.:ptcd deposits from the shan:holdt.:l"s without comph'ing with t'ht.: rt.:quirt:ml·nts ofthl' C.ompanies Act, 2013 

17 Deferred tax li.bilities (net) 

'nlC deferred taX liability comprises the effect of lhe following: 

DTL resulting from timimg e1ifferencl' h(:rwcc!\ hook depreciation and tax depreciation 42.68 42.68 

Total Deferred tax liabilities (nct) 42.68 42.68 

18 

18.1 
18.2 

Other non-current }j;lbilities 

(a) Deposits from subsiJi,ry 25.00 

(1.» Other deposirs 887.96 
(c) Advancl.: from debtors 1,178.62 

Total other non·current liabilities 2,091.57 
The deferrl'd (.1,. Iiabilitv/assl't h~s not bel.:n cnnsidl:rl·d for tlw n';lr dllt: to 11l1ct:rf:1intY of a ~oing concnn of the business, 

Dcpo:"i!:~ from Suu:"idiafY arc not verified due to lack of C')lltirmariol1:" {rom the third p;utie~. 

25.00 

887.96 
1,178.62 
2,091.57 
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19.1 

19.2 

19,3 

19.4 

19.5 

Current borrowings secured 
\'fork..ing capirallirnirs from banks 

1 l3ank of ~hharashatra 

2 The kalyao jal1<lta Sahakari Bank Ltd. 

3 State Bank of India 
Total current borrowings secured 

Current borcO\vings secured 

Inter corporatl.: ck'p()sits 

1 r\diStlll ExportS Pvr.Ltd. 

2 Ambianc<; Vcmun.:s E:H:1t~ & DI.:Y pq Ltd. 

3 Ai\lS hrarmenrs pyt. I.rd. 

Asi:\tic C:'Ises Limited 

Bhamagar Oil Mill Pvr. l.td. 

Bombay ~lcrc:\ntjlc & l.e:1sing Co I.rd. 

7 Citric India Ltd. 

8 I'aridabad Paper ~lill I.td 

9 (;illi "[ex P\,[. Ltd. 
10 I-Ionest Agencies Pvr ) .tei 
11 India EOt.T Gl..:n Pvr Ltd 
12 Ircscu EteCtTicills Pvt I.rd 

13 l".I<.. 11l\·l..:stmt~nt Pvt Ltd 

14 Networth Portfolio and Finance Pn I.rd 

15 Patodia Forgings and Gears Ltd 
16 Patodia Glllss industries 

17 Rajg<lrhia ~asing & Financb.l Sc:rYin's PYt. Ltd. 

18 Rovo ),{arkering PVt. T,rd. 

19 Ruia Fabrics P\"t Ltd 

20 Sak~cri<t Fkhrl\ Sug-.u l :;lCtnry l.tel. 

21 Saksl,:ri:l ()pricks P\"t. Ltd. 

22 Sebl\ri,l inou~tric~ Pn. T.to. 

23 Slushi lJ!l;'\wal H~'Jrolic P\'t. Ltd. 

24 Sha~hi R:lg agcncie~ 

25 Shri Krishna Ricc & Oil Mills p,·t. Ltd. 

26 Sunako Chemo Ind. PVt. r.rel. 
27 'l'C(;i! Cht.·mic:l!-: and hyJro Pow'.:r Ltd 

2R The ~;.lscn:t ai,:,w~ll Sl,lgar Fae.:ror~· Ltd. 
2'; 'nln..'·'; l{v~t.·s (hy.~..;n PH Ltd 

30 Traddink Exim Pn. r.td 

31 Vibrant Global CapiL11 Ltd 
Total current borrowings st:cured 

Current borrowin17s secured 

3,044.21 2,860.32 
481.85 481.85 

3,221.95 3,221.95 

6,748.01 6,564.11 

25.00 2500 
682.19 682.19 

50.5\ 50.51 
289.45 289.45 

15.00 15.00 

2.00 2.00 
183.64 183.64 

90.00 90.00 
106.00 106.00 

0.12 0.12 
19000 190.00 
75.69 75.69 

25.00 2500 
5.00 5.00 

273.51 273.51 
267.10 267.10 

281.00 281.00 
205.00 205.00 

3.10 3.10 

65.00 65.00 
10.00 10.00 

306.00 306.00 
lCO.OO 100.00 
32.nO 32.00 
10.00 10.00 

300.98 ,iC'iJ.98 
3.21 3.21 

31.96 .11.9cl 
4Q.OO 40.0(,) 

7.00 7.00 
156.44 156.44 

3,831.90 3,831.90 

10,5/9.90 10,396.01 

The pri;~l:HY sccuriry for rhe.: !3:lI1k of ;\i:lh:lr;lshtr:t C:l~h credit limit i~ hypothcc:lcion of scock :lod ..kbtOrs of encumbrance frcc projects. The 

colhltn-al secur;;., is by way nt" l.:quit:thk- mongah'"C (If sp1..·citie.:d pn.:st.:nt imnlO\·abk· propeni1..·s. In :tddition, this cash cn:dit limit is secured by 

the person'll gWi.,·;lIlrcc of ~..rr. D. S. Kulkarni &. ;,\·Irs. H. D. Kulkarni and corporate 6Tllarant('t' of Ascent Promoters & Developers P Ltd., 
Growrich t\gro-fore~tery Pvc Ltd. & llnly Lmd :\gro-ft)rc$rerr Pvr. I.ro. &. Sapphire Promorcrs & Developers Pvt. Ltd. 

The overdraft from B:lI1k of i\h.har:lshtr:1 is secured by pleoge of term deposit n::cci 1tS. 

Tht.:rc is no primary security for the "[ongage On'rdrafr limit from Kalyan Jan:lt:l Sahakari Bank Ltd. 111/>: ,:ollarcral security is rcgisten:d 
morrgagc of cerrain immovable properties. In addition, being a property owner guaranror & co-applicants for this loan are ~I/s D S Kulkarni 

& Co.& D. S. I'ulkarni & Associates. Personal GUM:lnree of Shri. D. S. Kulkuni and ~lr. Shi.rish f.:.ulkuni. 

The o,·croraft" from Syndicate B:mk i~ ~ccllred b\' plcd.~ of t('rm ocpo$it receipt$.
 

The m'crdraft from Punjab !':ational RUlk is sl..:cuf<.:d br pl....d•..,c of term lkposit receipts.
 



19.6 

-l 

The primary securiry for (he St<ltc Bank of India projc<.:t specifu; cash ne,lit limit for devclopemem & construction is regisrered mortgag(" of 
hnd :lIang with prescnt & (urure structure rhereon. In addition, this Joan is secured by the personal gU:lranree of Mr. D. S. Kulkarni & ~fr. S. 

D. Kulkarni. 

20 Trade Payables 
(.) Re1.,ed Partie< 471.15 471.15 
(b) O,h("( p.rties 5,570.62 5.438.75 

TOlal Tmde Payables 6,041.77 5,909.90 

20.1 t='l1,;;,,,:-"·..;;c;;;b;;;;m;;;'7-·":;.,;;;•.::dc,;.'.;;b:,-y~t1,,:1C;.,· ~cr"c.;;d"ito,;.r"s.;.h.;;a.;;\·c;.,· b,;.\,,·".;;·n.;;d;;';I;;,lh;.,·.;;\·c.;;·r.;;il.;;il,,·I,;1a;;;n;;;d;.""e.;;cc.;;>r~d.;;l·';:.I..;;t1-;,1<.;;' b,;.'.;;J;;;31.;;1C,,".;.S~b.;;.ac;;;k"l.;;d..;;b..\'.;;\.;;·a.;;.lid.;;..;;n.;;·i.;;J.;;cn';;C:';C';'S''­

20.2 .. pia.;;\.;;·a.;;b"lc.;.,.;;&,;;..;;.ll;..;;.l.i;.;;\I;.,>i.;.litJ.;;·c;;;'.;.."rc,-oo.;;'_".;;.in lc.;.·r..;,c;.;,,_·b;.;c;.;'.;;ri.;;I1..;.Q:...u..o_lc,;,s"'';''J:.P1c.;.·c;;;·ifi.;.'c;.;'_11.;;>t"h.;.c.;;"_\i,,'c.;._io_';;.h.;.c...;C"T;.,r.;;a.;;dc,;.'",-	 ..
T 

21 Other Financial LiClbilities 

(a) Currem marurirics of long-t~rm d-.:bc 
(i) Inrcrcsr accrued bur not due on Debentures 

(b)	 Uop.id / unclaimed public deposits 
(c)	 Inrcrcst Payable-Sub\'cl11ion SclH:mc 
(d)	 IntereSt 00 FD payable 
(c)	 A,h'ance ~g.... inst tenemenlS I plOlS 
(t) Inr1..'n,::sf accru1..'d but nO( JU1..' on borro\\'ing:,
 

Total Other Financial Uabilities
 

..I1;;.rr;;."C;;;·'_'------r-----------l 

5,221.55 5,221.55 
1,487.30 1,487.30 

277.98 277.98 
208.86 208.86 

54.012.97 54,012.97 
8,401.69 8.401.69 

69,610.35 69,610.35 
21.1	 Th1..' Jl:t:lils of mortg:1gr.:s of lh1..' :1SSl:t~ 1H.:ld by thc C()mp:ln~' :'Inti thc secured NCD~ arc disdo~l'd :1bo\T. 

21.2 The imercsl payable co Tata capital llousing Finance I.ld. On suln'enrion scheme is secured by mort,gagc of specified hind. 
22 I-:O~th-c-(-c-u-rr-e"'""'(:-:li-ab:-ili::":-'tl:-'C-S---'~---'''----------------r--'----''-''-'''''''--r-''---------l 

(:\)	 Unclaimed divid1..'nds 13.37 13.37 
(b)	 Stanuory liahilities 2,108.40 2,103.73 

Total other current liabilities 2,121.77 2,117.10 
22.1	 The bab.nce of dividend unclaimed ft)r FY 09-10 & 10-11 h:l~ not been transferred to IEPr fund a$ per the provisions of Sec 124 of 'he 

Comp:1nics .-\ct, 2013. 

22.2	 Th1..' sratutory liabiliti1..'s h:n'l.:: not bC1..'n p:"\irl rill d:1[('; and rh1..' S:lll1c i:, rdi1..'d on the accounring: records mainr:lint.::d by tl11.:: m:magr.:m1..'nt. 

Duc to b.ck of login crcd1..'ntiaJs :l\'aibb!\:. the liabi1itil..·s d\ll' ({) thc gO\'l.::rnmt:nr han.: not bt:cl1 \Tritll,:d inspjtc of various rl..·pn:scntations, 

Provisions 

(a)	 Pro\'ision for I..·xpensc:s 187.56 
(b)	 Pf(J\,jsion for emph;:ee benefits 959.49 

I 
3.fl22.41 

i (ti) InCOITW t.1X pn.)\-isLons (ne:) 

Total Provl:,:ions 4,502.29 

(c)	 Dl.:\TlopmL'nl l'XPl..:ilSCS payahk 

189.21 
959.49 

3,022.41 
332.83 

4,503.94 

23.1 ~P~r~o~\';;;is;;;io:;;n~s.;.fo,;.r;,.".;;~x;L·P~\C,;;Il~sc;;·s;..h.;;";.;\·~"~b,;;ec;;.;·o;.;,;r"7-(o;..r;,;;d;.:;"';;.I...;";.;tt,;;c,;,.';;.IU;;.I..,"-,\·';;";"\).;,·it;.;.·~·;..II1",g;..t;..h,;;,' ,;;c1;,;;";;.im.;;,;,.·r:.;e;,;;c,;;ci;;.\·;..el;..1,;;b\.,.·.;.\'a;;;r;.;io;,;;lI,;;s-i-c.;.rc;;.;·d;..il;,;;O';''';';;·'_~ __,-__,...__....,._.,...-1 
23.2 V:1rious income tax refunds are visible in Form 2fl;\S bur the S;lme has not been received by the company. Hence the same is assu:~,pd to be I 

adjusted :lg:linst thl.: previous demands outstanding as disclosed in thl.: Contingent li:lbilicy, 

23.3 Tax dcductt'<1 at source: during the )'t':lr for ,-ariolls CIRP cost incurr<:d as h<:e:n consid<:n:d hut few of the Tax deducted has not b('en paid to 

the gO\'cmmcnr llpto the (Lue of signing the final1ci;lls. The same has been qual;fied in the :\ud;t }{cport. 

24 Contingent Liabilities not pro't'ided for: 

1 Guarantcc..:: is rc..::spcct of sccurnlloan:, obt:lineJ by another cOl1lp:lny ltJ,OOO,UO 10,000.00 
Balance of secured loans as :u I,.'nd of y('ar 8,152.79 8,152.79 
Guaranr-:1..' to Go\'crnmcnt Authoririt.:s 780.40 780.40 
Tax ~lane.rs under appC'AI 15,119.12 15.119.12 
C:lses filed :lgainst the company 339.88 339.88 
Ccn":lt crr.:dit availed 812,16 812.16 
Total at the end of the reporting period 35)204.35 35,204.35 

Note: The details of contingent liabilities ha\-e been sust:lined to be S<lme I..)f pre"ious year in absence of any e\'idence. 

In :lddition to thl.: :lbon:, tht: Cen":lt Cr~:d:r :l,\":1ilcd in non-currcnt :lS:,ets is conting':nt li:lbility as th1..' Company is into liquidation through NCLT :md 
the same shall not be ohtainn! instead paid {() tht.' go\,nnmt'nt auth()rit~" 13ank guarant<.:<.' to thl' I.:Xt1..'nt of Rs. l,OO,OO,OO,()(X) and incom(' tax liabilit\" to 

the extent of Rs, 1,37,25,10,306 has hecn disclosed to the extent of l·hl..' claims rccei\'ed hy the rtspecuvc authorities :'lIld lhlhility "isihlc on the Inc(;mc 

("AX portal. 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 

Revenue from operations 

(a)	 Rl.:vcnuc from Company ocher than a fmancc company 

(i) Salo of land & Development righrs 

Total Revenue from operations 

As at
 
31st March 2023
 
(Amt in Lakhs)
 

As at
 
31st March 2022
 
(Arnt in Lakhs)
 

25.1 As per IND AS 115, the Company has n0t recognised an~ revenue since there is no ~~Hisf.\Ction of performance oiJligari')ns customer 

h;lS nor obr('tincd control of the aSSI;;[ in The curn:nt year. 'nle impact then.:of in I1l·.gligiblc. . 

26 Other Income 
(a)	 Incomc from subsidiaries 

(b)	 Interest on fixed deposits with ba~k 4.59 
(c)	 Discount Received 

Total at the end of reponing period	 4.59 

26.1 Thtr<.: iUe rcm,al income and inten:st inco!TIr.: dut from rhl.: rcLued p;Ufit~ of the Comp,my which Ius nOI bten recognised U·ilh an 

assumption of no receipt in curr(;'nt year or nay future y<::'ars. 

26.2 Dut.· to lack of Interest statt.·ml·ntS available by tilt;' managr.:n\t:nr, imeri,;"$t on various ol:posits including dt.'posirs from banks havl: bt't'n 

recorded b"'ed on rorm 26;\S. 

27 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 

(a)	 Sub-Contractor's Charges 

Total Land & / or development expenses 

28 Increase/(Decrease) in invenlOries offin.ishes tenem.entS & wip 

(a)	 Finisht'd tt"nemc;'l1rS
 

Opening
 

I.e~!' : Closing
 

(h)	 \,'ork-in-progrcss
 

Opening
 

r.cs-~ : Closing
 

(c)	 ~bto:ri;ll :It Site
 

Opening
 

I.c~s : Clo!'ing
 

Total increasc/(Dccrcasc) in inventories of finishes tenements & wip 

1,381.64 

-1381.64 

1,381.64 
(1)81.6-1) 

155,540.42 
-i5554D,42 

155,540.4~ 

(l55.~-l(J.42) 

245.94 

-245.94 

245.9.,1 

(245.0 4)1 

0.00 

28.1	 Inspire nf "arious sale of finished tenements, the S,lmc is nor recorded due to Itu.:k of documcnu,rion or S;tlc ",due wirh the management. 

29 Employee Benefits expenses
 

I (a) Salaries, wages, bonus etc
 

Total employee Benefits expenses 

29.1	 There :;'Irc no employces in the comp~ny ('ts rhe said Company is lInck-r the process ofCIRP 

29.2	 Dir{TtOrs han: not been paid :my rl:mun<.:rnuon in the current ~'c:lr with the fact th:lt rhl.:y ('tre not in a pusition to work for the compall~' 

and r("c("i\'(: the- said mont"Y. 



30 Office & admin expenese 
(a) ProfeSSional expenses 

(b) CIRP Cost 
(c) Trustee f<.:<:s 

(d) 1.egal chargc's 
(co) St'curiry charge::: 

(t) Rounded off 

Total office & admin "xpcncsc 

6.24 
89.09 

17.98 

117.28 

89.39 

79.34 
0.00 

75.62 

264.06 210.87 

30.1 The company being under CTRP process h:Js incurred various CIRP related COSt for the cae meetings held. The cOSt incurred has been 

appruvl:d by the cae members in (.;\"(.'r:o' mn:ting hc'ld 

30.2 V:1ri()u~ puioclic t::-;pcn~<.:~ h:1\'I,: nOt bt.:cn bonked {or the yc:\r due {() bck of documcmalion / cktailcd cviocnct:s for (hal pc:riod. 

31 Finance Costs 
(a) lr;:crest on deposits & 10;10$ 

(b) TrHc:re.sr roo financial insrjtuti()l\~ 

(c) Interest to b::lIlb 

(d) Other financiall:~pCll$C::i 

(e) Interest on DebenturC"s 

Total finance Costs 

31.1 I------------------------"""T"------......,r--------~ 
32 Depreciation & Amortization expenses 

(3) Dcprcci:uion <;Xpt:llSC5 42.55 60.18 

Total d~preciation & Amortization expenses 42.55 60.18 

33 Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 

(a) Gross mnnunt rC<'luirecl (() b<: ~rcnt during the year 

(b) ,-\m<oum spent dt1ring rh<: y<:~r 

Total Corporate Social Responsibiliry expenses 

.34 Earo;ng~ r'l:r ;;;ildre(EF5) 
E:1rnings pcr share is c:1lcubrcd:n ?,ccnnt.lI1C,- wirh rhl.: Ind AS .3., 

Particulars 
Protir after HIX (In lacs) 

\'V"eightcd it\Tr:lgc ~IJmb<:r of Lguiry ShMCS 

NUlllin:tl '":lIUL· of l':g,;ity shrlrc~ 

13..tsic and Dilurt:d C':lmlng:s r~r shaft' 

(4,867.38) (266.46) 

258.01 258.01 

1000 1000 



D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. 

CIN LA5201PN1991PLC063340 31-Mar-23 
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 

35 Related party disclosures 

A Names of related parties where comrol exists and related partl' relationship 

Subsidiaries	 I OSK De\'etopers Corporarion
 
2 OSI, Infra Pvt. l.td.
 

3 OSI\: Southern Projects P\"t. Ltd.
 

Step-down subsidiaries I OSK Woods LLC
 

Ke-y m~nagement personnel I Mr. D. S. Kulkarni
 

Relatives of key management personnel 1 1Ilrs Hemanti D Kulkarrti
 
2 Ivlr. Amit Deepak Kulkarni 
3 i\lrs. Ashwini Sanjay Oeshpande 

4 i\hs. Bhagyashree .-\mit Kulkarni 

Mr. :'-.fakarand S. Kulkarni 
(, l'vlrs. Tanvi S Kulkarni 

7 i\'lr. Shirish Kulkarrti 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key I ,\mbiance Venrures estates & Developments Pvt. I.td. 
management personnel or their rdatives 

2 Amit & Company
 
3 ~-\scem Promoters & Developers Pvt. Ltd.
 
4 Chandradeep Promoters & De\'e!opers Pvt. l.rd.
 

S D. S. Kulkarni ConstruCtions Pvt. Ltd.
 

6 D.S.Kulkarni & Assnciates
 

7 O.S.Kulkarni & Brothets
 

S O.S.Kulkarrti & Company
 

9 D.S.Kulkarni & Sons
 

10 OSK & ,\sso 

11 DSK & Co. 

12 DSK Auto p·,t. Lt,1. 

13 OS" Cor.structions 

14 0::,1, & Sons 

15 OSK OigiLlI Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

16 OSK} ':mertainment 1.1.C 

17 DSK Global l,c!ucarion and Research Ltd. 

IS DSK Infotech [',·t. Ltd. 

19 OS]"': Milkotronics Pvt. Ltd. 

20 OSK Motors P\'(. 1.td. 

21 OSK Mototrucks Pvt. Ltd. 

22 OSI, IIlotowheels Pvt. Ltd. 

23 DSK Prabhu Granite UP
 

24 DSK Sales & Services
 

25 OS'" ShivaJians Football Club P\'(. Ltd.
 

26 OSK Studios PVL I_td.
 

27 OSK World Education Council
 

28 OS'" World man Projects Lto.
 
29 Fairyla ..,d Promoters & O",-elopers Pvt. Lto.
 
30 Forever Solar Projects Pvt. Ltd.
 

31 Gharkul
 

32 Gtecngold Farms & Forests Pvt. Ltd
 

33 Grm"rich .-\groforestry P\'(. Ltd.
 

34 Hexagon Capital Advisors P\'(o l.t(1.
 

.15 Holdand '\b~'oforestry Pn. f .to.
 

3(, Rasa GrollI'
 

37 Sapphire Promoters & Developers Pvt. Ltd.
 

38 Shri Saptashrung Oil Mills Pvt. Ltd.
 

39 Talisman Hospitality Services Pvt. Ltd.
 

40 Tclcsmell
 

41 Tricone Infracon Ltd.
 



D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. 

CIN L45201PN1991PLC063340 31-Mar-23 
Notes to the Standalone Iod AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 

B	 Related party transactions 
BALANCE SHEET ITEMS: 

1	 Equity Contribution
 

!I·lrs. H. D. Kulkarni
 
Mr. D. S. Kulkarni
 
Mr. Shirish Kulkarni
 
Sub fotal
 

2	 Loans and Advances payable 

o S Kulkarni & Associarcs 
D S Kulkarni & Compan)" 
D.S.Kulkarni Constructions Pvt Ltc! 

DSK Infra Pvt. Ltc!. 
DSK Worldman Projects Ltd 
DSK Global Education and Research Ltd. 
DSK Global Education & Research-Anandghan Loan 

Mrs. H. D. Kulkarni 
Mr. Shirish Kulkarni 
Mr. D. S. Kulkarni 
Ambiance Ventures Estates & Developments Pyt. Ltd. 

Sub total 

3	 Deposits payable
 
D S Kulkarni & Associates
 
DSK Global Education and Reseatch Ltd.
 

tv!r. D. S. Kulkarni
 
Sub tot:ll
 

4	 Trade payable
 

DSK Motors Pvt. Ltd
 
f)SK Motowheels P"r Ltd
 
DSK Global Education and Research Ltd.
 

Talisman Hospitality Pvt. Ltd
 
Ivlr Shirish Kulkarni
 

Mrs. H D Kulkarni
 
TelesmclJ
 

D. S Kulkarni & Associates
 
Sub total
 

5	 Investments at the year end 

DSK Developers Corporation 
Less: Provision for permanent dimunition in value 
DSK Global Education and Research Ltd. 

OSK Southern Projects Pvt Ltd 
Less: Provision for permanent dimunition in value 
DSK Infra Pn Ltd 

Sub total 
~ 

r;	 Advance. receivable
 

Tricone Infracon Ltd.
 

OSK Global Education and Research Ltd.
 
Mr. Shirish Kulkarni
 

Sub total
 

2022-23
 
Rs. in Lacs
 

490.59 
600.05 

152.00 
1,242.64 

13,692.90 
37,387.79 

14.43 
145.23 

103.39 
120.26 
437.16 
299.24 
48.94 

96.34 
682.19 

53,027.85 

0.50 
25.00 

1.77 

27.27 

56.43 
155.84 
112.75 

2.48 
22198 

35.03 

0.03 
0.22 

586.76 

509.50 
(509.50) 

73.32 

200.00 

273.32 

469.28 

659.70 
226.22 

1,355.19 

2021-22 
Rs. in Lacs 

490.59 
600.05 
152.00 

1,242.64 

13,692.90 
37)8779 

14.43 

145.23 
103.39 
120.26 
437.16 

299.24 
48.94 
96.34 

682.19 
53,027.85 

0.50 I 
25.00 

1T 
27.27 I 

56.43 
155.84 
1 :2.75 

2.-18 
223.98 
35.03 

0.03 

0.22 
586.76 

509.50 

(509.50) 

73.32 
1,400.23 

(1,400.23) 
200.00 

273.32 

469.28 

659.70 
226.22 

1,355.19 



D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. 
CIN L45201PN1991PLC063340 31-Mar-23 
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 

7	 Loans receivable
 

DSK De\'elopers Corporation
 
DSK Southern Projects Pn Ltd
 
Less: PrQ\'ision for doubrful debts
 

Sub total
 

8	 Deposits receivable
 
D S Kulkarni & Comp~O\'
 

~vlr Shirish D Kulkarni
 

Mrs. H D Kulkarni
 
D S Kulkarni & Associates
 
DSK Global I,ducation & Research I.td
 

Sub total
 

9	 Trade receivable
 

DSK Shivajians FoOtball Club Pn Lrd
 
Sub toral
 

10	 Guarantees given
 

DSK Global Education and Research Ltd.
 
Sub total
 

TOTAL OF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS 
I Interest Income 

DSK Devell..)pf'r~ C.:\rporarion 
DS[, Souihertl Projecrs Pn I.tel
 

Sub total
 

6,959.68 6,959.68 

5.00 5,289.40 

(4,71384) (4,713.84) 
2,250.84 7,535.24 

25.00 25.00 

14.00 14.00 
1.50 1.50 

25.00 2500 
11m 11.03 
76.53 76.53 

0.38 0.38 
0.38 0.38 

10,000.00 10,000.00 

10,000.00 10,000.00 

68,840.78 74,125.19 

There arc interest expense due to rhe related parties of the Compao)' which has not been recognised wirh an intention of nn 
ptlYli1ent in current year I)r any future ycar$. 

TCTAL OF PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS 

Grand Total	 68,840.78 74,125.19 

36 Disclosure for assets taken on lease as per Ind AS 17: 
The Company has entered intn operating lease arrangements for office space at Pune and Mumbai.Therc are no future minimum lease 
paymcnts under non-cancellable operating leases as all rhe lease arrangements arc cancellable at rhe optinn of lessee. Derails of such 
leases are as follows: 

Sr. Landlord Premises From To Rent p.a (Rs.) 
I i:Vlrs. H 0 Kulkarni Pune J;\1 Rd. Office 1-Sep-15 31-Aug-20 
2 Mr. D. Argade Patil i\rgade Highrs, Pune 11-Jan-IS 1O-)an-20 

Total 

•The above: details are prepared as per the books maintained due to lack of lease agret'ments 
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37	 Disclosure for assets given on lease as per Ind AS 17: 
The company has giyen its land on opel'ating lease to its erstwhile subsidiary, DSK Global Educaticn & Research Ltd for a period of 

99 years w.e.f lstJull- 2008 

Particulars of asset Gross Block as Net Block as Gross Block as Net Block 
~t 31-03-2023 at 31-03-2023 at 31-03-2022 as at 31-03­

2022 

Land (Rs. in Lacs) 2,592.03 2,592.03 2,592.03 2,592.03 

future minimum lease pal'menes recei\'~ble in respect of non-c~ncellablcleases	 2022-23 2021-22 
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs 

Due witlun one year I'rorn rhe Balance Sheet clare 85.30 
Due in the period bct\\'een one year and live years 341.20 
Due after five years 7,421.10 
Total 7,847.60 

The above amounts of lease dues for I year from the Balance sheet date is kept to be Same as that of last year due to lack of data. 

Ii	 The Company has sub-leased part of its leased .\lumbai Office as follows: 
2022-23 2021-22 

Sub-lessee Premises From To Rent (Rs.) p.a 
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs 

f) S Kulkarru & Associates ,\(umbai Office (part) I-Apr-IS 31-Mar-19 o o 

The ab(Ae sub-lease income has not been recorrled in the books with rhe assumption of no receipt for the said income in the current 

rcar and in future rears. 

Additional Informaticn 20?2-23 2022-23 2021-22 2021-22 
A EXIJ nditur~ iii foreign currencv during the linancial 

year on account of 

Foreigh Travel 

Exhibitions 

Professional and cnnsult7.tinn fecs 

n	 Earnings in foreiS'11 exchange 

['oreigh Tra\'el refund 

Interest from subsidiary 
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39 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees & Investments pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34 read 

with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015: 

Maximum outstanding 
during the yearOutstanding as at 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 
Name of Entity Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs 
Loans to subsidiaries for business purpose 
DSK Developers Corporation 6,959.68 6,959.68 6,959.68 6,959.68 
DSK Southern Projecrs Pvr. Ltd. 5.00 5,289.40 5,289.4'0 5,289.40 
sub-total 6,964.68 12,249.08 12,249.08 12,249.08 
Corporate Guarantees for other companies against bank Joan 

DSK Global Education & Rcscarch l.td. 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 
Investments in subsidiaries for business purpose 

DSK Developers Corporation 509.50 509.50 509.50 509.50 
DSI< Infra Pvt. Ltd. 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 
OSI< Southern Projecrs Pvr. Ltd. 

sub-total 709.50 709.50 709.50 709.50 
Investments in former subsidiary 

DSI< Global Education & Research) .rd. 73.32 73.32 73.32 73.32 

Investment by DSK Developers Corporation (US 
subsidiary) in its own subsidiary DSK Woods LLC 

1,974.45 1,974.45 1,974.45 1,974.45 
40	 Additional information related to delayed payment by the Corupany to Micro / Smail Enterprises as per Section 22 of the 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterpris~s Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006): This disclosure is voluntary since Ind 
AS compliant Schedule III is silent about this disclosure. 

Sr No Particulars	 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs 

(i)	 The principal amounr remaining unpaid to any supplicr (as dcfined in S2(n) of ~1S(o,IED Act, Nil N;l 

2006) as at the cnd of the accounting year 

(ii)	 The interest due on rhe principal amount remaining unpoid to any such supplicr as ar the end Nil Nil 
of rhe accounting ycar 

(iii)	 The amounts of payments made to such supplier beyond the appoint~d day during the Nil Nil 
accounting year 

(iv)	 The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of S 16 of MS;\IED Act, 2006, during Nil Nil 
the accounting year 

(v)	 Th~ amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment ",ithout Nil Nil 
adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006. 

(vi)	 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year Nil Nil 

(vii)	 The amount of further interest due and payable e"en in rhe succeeding years until slIch a day Nil Nil 
when the intcrest clues are actually paid to the small entcrprise for the purpose of disallowance 
as a deductible expenditute u/s 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006 
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41	 Investments in subsidiaries: [n the opinion of the mmagement, no Joss is expected to arise in respect of investments in subsidiaries 
for which an additional provision is required. 

42	 Amounts due to Investor Education & Protection Fund: ,'\s at the bahnce sheet date, there are amounts due and outstanding to 

this FunJ perraining to FY 2009-10 to FY 2014-15. 

43	 The Compeny has not complied u'ith thc provisions of Scc 185 and 186 of the Companies r\ct, 2013 

As per our audit report of even date. 

For R C Jain & Associates For DS Kulkarni Devlopers Limited 
Chartered Accountants (.\ company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution 

f\;CLT Urder dateel 26th September, 2019) 
~O'WIOO156 

Y',' ~ 
Ankit P. Sanghavi 

Pattnet 
Membership.No.131353 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29th May, 2023 
UDIN:- 23131353BGYNNT3941 
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